


Corporate Profile

China Everbright International Limited (“the Company”, and
together with its subsidiaries “the Group”) is a fast growing
business conglomerate focusing on environmental
protection, infrastructure and property investment in the PRC.
Its major infrastructure investment projects include Shenzhen
Mawan Power Company Limited and Fuzhou Qingzhou
Bridge, while property investment projects include Far East
Finance Centre and Lippo Centre in Hong Kong and
Zhongshan Garden in Shenzhen etc. In recent years, the
Group actively explores the environmental protection
business, where it has made significant progress in both
waste-to-energy incineration as well as urban sewage
treatment in various locations, including Suzhou, Qingdao,
Yixing and Zibo etc. With its management vision, expertise
and flexibility, as well as the strong parental support from
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited, the Group is
fully prepared to further expand its foothold in the
environmental protection sector on nationwide basis, with
the aim of becoming the leading player in the environmental

protection and infrastructure businesses in the PRC.
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report

BE=x

HITEE

Ttk (%)
R (FI£/%)
FEW (F/X/F)
BN (FTECAREL)
SEISES (R rE)
ERE (BHEEE)
=5 (M 5HEE)
R

R
BUIPTTEF
BRAERT
FEE

BEKEE

=R

B
AR ER
BERERE TR

ER DB
—teotE=%



Corporate Information 2 5] & ¥

Principal bankers

CITIC Ka Wah Bank, Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Everbright Bank Co., Limited
China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.
CITIC Industrial Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Solicitors

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
Grandall Legal Group (Beijing)

Auditors

KPMG

Registrars

Tengis Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Website

www.ebchinaintl.com

Stock Code

257

FEARRIT
RERFERITERLAA

B ARIT (HFE) BRAA
REGHRITAR AT
REERIRITIRDBER QA
PRERERITRNDERDA]
RIEEXRTT

B TERTT

Em

BB AR REDTT
BlS AN E (b ) A

BB

BB G BB

R348 F &R

BEREARAR

BRBFERANER—1T/R

SEEPOL B

EFHE

www.ebchinaintl.com

R 43 4w 5%

257

HEXAEBRERAT ZFRAEER



Financial Highlights B ¥ #1

RESULTS

Turnover

Earnings before interest and tax
Profit attributable to shareholders
Return on shareholders’ equity (%)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Net asset value per share (HK$)
Gearing (%)

Current ratio (%)

Interest cover (%)

MARKET INFORMATION
Share price at year end (HK$)

Price earnings ratio at year end (times)

Market capitalisation at year end
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Corporate Milestones £ 2 KELE

2005
January o
o
February o
March o

Commencement of the charging of waste water
treatment service charges upon the commencement of
commercial operation of Qingdao Waste Water
Treatment Project

Formalized the management structure of the
environmental protection business, duly established
China Everbright Environmental Protection Holdings
Limited and China Everbright Environmental Energy
Limited, and China Everbright Environmental Protection
Investment Limited to be renamed as China Everbright
Water Investments Limited

CEH entered into a framework agreement with Shenzhen
Municipal Government for long-term strategic
cooperation, under which the scope of cooperation in
the environmental protection field was established

Foundation work of the SuNeng Waste-to-energy Project
completed. The company in charge of installation work
commenced on-site works

Entered into a framework letter of intent in respect of
methane-to-energy project with Suzhou Municipal
Government

Entered into a framework letter of intent in respect of
waste-to-energy project with Yixing Municipal
Government
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Corporate Milestones

April

May

June

EERELE

Entered into the “engineering, procurement and
construction contract”, the “equipment supply contract”
and the “service contract” with the consortium led by
Veolia, with the aim of accelerating the construction for
the extension to Qingdao Maidao Waste Water Treatment
Plant

Final result announcement for 2004, with profit
attributable to shareholders amounted to
HK$86,776,000, representing an increase of 53% as
compared to 2003

Entered into an undertaking with the Construction Bureau
of Yixing City in respect of the exclusive right to operate
a waste-to-energy project in Yixing City, with a waste-
to-energy plant to be constructed in Yixing City on BOT
basis

Held Annual General Meeting of 2005

Restructuring of the management structure of the
environmental protection business completed.
Everbright Environmental Protection Industry (Shenzhen)
Company Limited was formally renamed as Everbright
Environmental Protection Engineering (Shenzhen)
Company Limited

Entered into a framework letter of intent with Zibo
Municipal Government, under which the scope of
cooperation in the environmental protection field
between the Group and Zibo City was established

Installation work of the boiler for SuNeng Waste-to-
energy Project commenced upon completion of defects
inspection for the boiler
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Corporate Milestones

July

August

September

October

EERELE

Entered into a framework letter of intent in respect of
the construction of Suzhou Everbright Environmental
Protection Industrial Zone with the Municipal
Government of Mudu Town, Wuzhong District, Suzhou,
under which the scope of cooperation in respect of the
Zone was established

Entered into a framework letter of intent with Jinan
Municipal Government, under which the scope of
cooperation in the environmental protection field
between the Group and Jinan City was established

Interim result announcement for 2005, with profit
attributable to shareholders amounted to
HK$62,005,000, representing an increase of 38% as
compared to the same period of 2004

Incorporation of Everbright Environmental Energy
(Yixing) Limited. Construction work for Yixing waste-to-
energy plant duly commenced on 28 September

Entered into the “asset transfer agreement”, the
‘concession right agreement”, the “waste water
treatment service agreement” and the “Zibo waste water
treatment project agreement” with Zibo Municipal
Government, Zibo Finance Bureau and Zibo
Environmental Waste Water Treatment Company to
acquire Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project on TOT
basis

Dormitory building of SuNeng Waste-to-energy Project
was ready for use

Foundation laying for the methane-to-energy project in
Suzhou Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial
Zone completed

As the sole co-organizer, jointly held the “Everbright
Environment Trophy: The First Environmental Arts, Photo
and Calligraphy Exhibition in the PRC” at the National
Museum of China with six ministries and commissions
including the National Environmental Protection Agency
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Corporate Milestones £ ¥ XE4E

November

December

2006

January

March

As the sole co-organizer, jointly held the “Everbright
Environment Soiree: Environmental Protection Stars In
Concert” at Beijing Workers Coliseum with six ministries
and commissions including the National Environmental
Protection Agency

SuNeng Waste-to-energy Project successfully “supplied
electricity to the electricity transmission network of the
city” upon completion of five engineering works
milestones, establishing a new record for high quality
engineering works

Upon completion of the hand-over of Zibo Waste Water
Treatment Project, formally took charge of the operation
of the same, including the collection of waste water
treatment charge and the repair/replacement works of
equipment also commenced

Foundation laying for the disposal centre for industrial
solid waste in Suzhou Everbright Environmental
Protection Industrial Zone completed

Incorporation of the Beijing Representative Office of
China Everbright International Limited

Successfully secured a waste-to-energy project in
Jiangyin City, thereby further consolidating the leading
position of the Group in the waste-to-energy field in
Jiangsu Province

Test running for SuNeng Waste-to-energy Project
commenced

Everbright Environmental Protection Engineering
(Shenzhen) Company Limited received the licence of
“Main Contractor for Municipal Public Works” and
obtained three certificates, namely the 1ISO9001:2000
International Quality Assurance System Certificate, the
ISO-14001 Environmental Management System
Certificate and the OHSMS28001 Occupational Health
and Safety Management System Certificate

Foundation laying for the Jiangyin waste-to-energy
project completed
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~ Carry forward the spirit of
~ China Everbright

Strive to establish a renowned

Environmental Protection brand
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Chairman’s Statement £ E#{ &

The PRC economy achieved a rapid growth in 2005. Benefiting
from the continuous growth in economy, the living standard of
Chinese people has also been rising. The Central Government has
formulated various environmental protection policies to encourage
corporations to develop environmental protection business. Given
the stable business environment and in the face of the said favorable
opportunity, the Group, on the one hand, prudently managed and
operated its infrastructure investment business and property
investment business, and on the other hand, continued to create
high quality environmental protection projects, so as to shift
gradually from an investment management group to an investment
group with more operational capabilities. The Group aims to expand
its environmental protection business, making it one of its three

main focuses of business development.
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Chairman’s Statement £ &R &

During the year under review, the Group continued to achieve
improvement in its operating results. The overall financial position
of the Group was sound. Apart from registering strong cash flow,
the Group also recorded an increase in return on asset. Profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the year
amounted to HK$105,330,000, representing an increase of 21%
over HK$86,776,000 of the previous year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the steady growth in traffic flow of Qingzhou Bridge
and the increase in profits on property investments. In addition to
Qingdao Waste Water Treatment Project (“Qingdao Project”), the
newly acquired Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project (“Zibo Project”)
also started to make profit contribution to the Group in December
2005, which has further enhanced the earning base of the Group.

Given the Group’s healthy financial position and as a token of
gratitude to the support of the equity shareholders of the Company,
the Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HKO.6 cent per share
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Together with the interim
dividend of HKO.6 cent per share for 2005, total dividends for the
year amounted to HK1.2 cent per share (2004: HK1 cent per share).

Envisaging that there is enormous potential for the development of
environmental protection business, the Group has decided to
develop the same as its core business and undertaken several
new projects during the year under review. In April 2005, the Group
entered into an undertaking to construct a waste-to-energy plant
in Yixing City of Jiangsu Province on BOT basis. In September
2005, the Group acquired two waste water treatment plants in Zibo
City of Shandong Province on TOT basis. In October 2005, the
foundation laying of the methane-to-energy plant (“Methane-to-
energy Project”) in Suzhou Everbright Environmental Protection
Industrial Zone (“the Zone”) completed. In December 2005, the
foundation laying of the disposal centre for industrial solid waste
(“Solid Waste Disposal Project”) in the Zone completed. In January
2006, the Group successfully obtained the exclusive rights of
operation for the waste-to-energy plant in Jiangyin City of Jiangsu
Province. Through the abovementioned new investments, the Group
has successfully established a strong strategic position in Jiangsu
Province, while commanding a leading market position in the
industry.
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Chairman’s Statement X EiR &

Leveraging on its experience and expertise, the Group commenced
to construct the first comprehensive environmental protection
industrial zone for all types of urban solid waste in the PRC, i.e. the
Zone, during the year under review. The Zone will comprise the
first wholly-owned environmental protection project to be
constructed by the Group, i.e. SuNeng Waste-to-energy Project
(“SuNeng Project”), the said Methane-to-energy Project and Solid
Waste Disposal Project which completed the foundation laying
during the year and some other projects. Among which, SuNeng
Project and Methane-to-energy Project are expected to commence
commercial operation in the second half of 2006, while the
commercial operation of Solid Waste Disposal Project is expected
to start in the beginning of 2007. The Group believes that the Zone,
which is expected to become the base for environmental education
and promotion in Suzhou, will be the model for the development of

related projects in the future.

The development of the Group’s waste water treatment business
has been satisfactory. Following the commencement of commercial
operation of Qingdao Project during the year and the construction
for the extension to Qingdao Maidao Waste Water Treatment Plant,
the Group entered into an acquisition agreement with Zibo Municipal
Government in September 2005 and formally took charge of Zibo
Project in December 2005. Through investing in Qingdao Project
and Zibo Project, the Group successfully established a solid
business base in Shandong Province. The Group is now under
negotiation with Jinan Municipal Government for cooperation in
environmental protection projects, which is expected to further
expand the business development of the Group in the region.
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Chairman’s Statement £ &R &

In 2004, China Everbright Holdings Company Limited (“CEH") duly
positioned the environmental protection business as one of its three
main focuses of business development. In compliance with the
objective of building a compassionate society under the Eleventh
Five-year plan implemented by the Central Government and to
comply with the “Decision on the promotion of technological
development and the enhancement of environmental protection”
published by the State Council, the Group will, by leveraging on its
strong competitiveness in the waste-to-energy, waste water
treatment and other environmental-related areas and the strong
support from CEH, continue to produce quality projects. While
striving to develop itself as a leader in the environmental protection
business and infrastructure investment in the PRC, the Group
steadfastly endeavors to create an appealing communal living

environment for the society.

Finally, on behalf of the Group, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude for the unfailing support, trust and effort of all our equity
shareholders, members of the Board, the management and staff
members. With our persistent effort, | have full confidence that the
Group will achieve steady growth in the future and provide
satisfactory return for all shareholders.

Wang Mingquan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2006
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report {THE#H B &

OPERATING RESULTS

The PRC economy continued to achieve substantial growth in 2005.
The gross domestic product for 2005 increased by 9.9%. Given
the increasing concern over the ecosystem issue in the PRC,
coupled with the continuous efforts of the Central Government in
promoting environmental protection, the environmental protection
industry has been developing at a rapid pace, resulting in enormous
business opportunities in the market. As such, the Group has been
actively exploring the environmental protection field to broaden its
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report {TBl &% i &

business base since 2003, so as to maximize returns to equity
shareholders of the Company. During the year under review, the
Group continued to prudently develop its environmental protection
business and successfully secured a number of new environmental
protection projects. Meanwhile, the environmental protection
projects in operation have started to make profit contribution to the
Group, becoming new profit drivers of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group achieved
satisfactory results, registering increase in turnover. The
infrastructure investment business and the property investment
business continued to be the Group’s major profit contributors, their
operating results increased as compared with the previous year.
As regards the environmental protection business, it has started to
make profit contribution to the Group and there is much room for
its future growth. During the year under review, profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company amounted to
HK$105,330,000 (excluding the net profit of Everbright
Environmental Protection Engineering (Shenzhen) Company Limited
(“Everbright Environmental Engineering”) of HK$24,206,000),
representing an increase of 21% as compared with HK$86,776,000
of the previous year, amongst which: (i) Shenzhen Mawan Power
Company Limited (“Mawan Power”) contributed an attributable
profit of HK$68,034,000; (ii) the traffic flow of Qingzhou Bridge
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continued to grow, recording an attributable profit of
HK$27,427,000; (iii) the waste water treatment project in Qingdao
(“Qingdao Project”) contributed an attributable profit of
HK$12,628,000; (iv) property investments contributed a profit after
taxation of HK$11,530,000; and (v) the pick-up of property prices
brought about valuation gains on investment properties of
HK$25,230,000. Basic earnings per share for the year amounted
to HK4.13 cents, representing an increase of HK0.72 cent as
compared with HK3.41 cents for the previous year. During the year
under review, the Group’s consolidated turnover amounted to
HK$133,823,000, representing an increase of 105% as compared
with HK$65,244,000 of the previous year, which is mainly
attributable to the profit contribution from environmental protection
projects, as well as the continual growth in the toll bridge revenue
of Qingzhou Bridge.

Given the Group’s healthy financial position and as a token of
gratitude to the support by the equity shareholders of the Company,
the Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HKO.6 cent per share
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Together with the interim
dividend of HKO0.6 cent per share for 2005, total dividends for the
year amounted to HK1.2 cent per share (2004: HK1 cent per share).
Based on the share price of HK$0.385 of the Company on 31
December 2005, the dividend yield is 3.12%.
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INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT

Energy supply

During the year under review, Mawan Power overhauled its
machineries and facilities to enhance its operating efficiency. Apart
from this, the maintenance period has also been shortened, which
effectively extended the period for the sale of electricity. During
the year ended 31 December 2005, Mawan Power generated a
total of 5.37 billion kilowatt-hour of electricity, representing an
increase of 4% as compared with 5.17 billion kilowatt-hour for the
previous year. The ongoing surge in the prices of coal and fuel in
the PRC during the year has brought pressure on the operating
cost of Mawan Power. To deal with the situation, Mawan Power
carried out strict cost control measures and exerted efforts to
enhance production efficiency and operations management. In
addition to the above-mentioned, with effect from May 2005, Mawan
Power increased the up-loading electricity tariffs following the
government approval of fuel-cost adjustment mechanism, which
successfully relieved the adverse effect and pressure arising from
the drastic surge in the prices of coal and fuel. In 2005, attributable
profit after taxation from Mawan Power amounted to HK$68,034,000.
With a strong cash position and without any bank borrowings,
Mawan Power maintained a very sound financial position and
continued to make high dividend payout. During the year, Mawan
Power paid cash dividend of HK$99,818,000 to the Group.

Mawan Power
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Looking ahead, as the growth momentum of the PRC economy is
expected to continue, the demand for electricity is expected to be
great. While making every endeavor to put operating cost under
control, Mawan Power will rationalize its resources to achieve
economy of scale, thereby increasing the total electricity generated
to meet the huge demand in the market. It is expected that Mawan
Power will continue to operate in full capacity to provide reliable,
safe and efficient electricity supply, and will continue to serve as a
major profit source for the Group in the future.

Toll bridge

During the year under review, Fuzhou City experienced frightful
typhoon attack for four times. Against such unfavorable
background, Qingzhou Bridge, by sticking to the operation principle
of safety first, continued to have a healthy operation and achieved
impressive development progress. Benefited from the continual
growth in the traffic flow of the “Tungsan Expressway”, the traffic
flow of Qingzhou Bridge continued to rise significantly. Average
daily traffic flow during the year ended 31 December 2005
increased to 22,186 standard vehicles, representing an increase
of 23% as compared with 17,972 standard vehicles for the previous
year. Operating profit before taxation for the year under review
amounted to HK$28,880,000, representing an increase of 70% as
compared with the previous year. Taking into account the deferred
tax credit and the share of profit of minority shareholders, the
Group’s attributable profit after taxation for the year amounted to
HK$27,427,000, representing an increase of 55% as compared
with HK$17,748,000 of the previous year. It is expected that the
traffic flow of Qingzhou Bridge will rise further upon the opening of
the highway to Fuzhou Airport in 2006. In view of the implementation
of stricter control by the PRC government to deal with overloading
vehicles, coupled with the charging of toll fee according to vehicle
weight and the promotion of the production of environmentally
friendly and energy-saving vehicles, the Group anticipates that
traffic flow will continue to grow, which will benefit the healthy
development of road and bridge infrastructure in the long run.
Looking forward, the Group will enhance the management of
Qingzhou Bridge and will increase promotional activities for the

same, with the goal of enhancing its profit contribution for the Group.
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The PRC

The Group holds a four-storey commercial podium in Shenzhen
Zhongshan Garden (“the Property”) as one of its major investment
properties. The Property has been generating steady rental income
and cash flow to the Group, and its major tenants include Walmart,
Park’n Shop, McDonald, Agricultural Bank etc,. During the year
under review, as the Group increased the rent of certain major
tenants pursuant to the lease agreements, rental income of the
Property increased accordingly. The Property generated an
operating profit of HK$6,675,000 to the Group during the year.
Benefiting from the increase in rental income and the appreciation
of Renminbi exchange rate, the Group recorded valuation gains
on investment properties of HK$3,800,000 during the year. Besides,
Shenzhen Zhongshan Property Management Limited, in which the
Group holds 95% interest, recorded an attributable profit after
taxation of HK$576,000 during the year under review. And Shanghai
Trade Square and International Apartments, in which the Group
holds approximately 14% interest, has contributed a dividend
income of HK$1,135,000 to the Group.

Qingzhou Bridge
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Hong Kong

Stimulated by the continuing recovery of Hong Kong’s economy

and the development progress made by the finance, property and

retail sectors in 2005, the demand for office premises increased.

Due to the inadequate supply of new commercial premises, the

prices for Grade A office buildings rebounded drastically during
the year. Fuelled by the increase in rental and valuation, the Group
recorded rental income of HK$3,955,000 and valuation gain on
investment properties of HK$21,430,000 during the year under
review. In 2005, the Group recorded a gain of HK$916,000 on

disposal of an investment property which has been held for many
years.
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EHRE A
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BUSINESS

During the year under review, with a determination to construct high
quality projects and to become an investment operation conglomerate,
the Group, on the one hand, continued to closely monitor and strictly
control the progress of projects, and on the other hand, restructured
the management structure of its environmental protection business
and enhanced the technological level of its projects, which further
consolidated the foundation of its environmental protection business.
In 2005, Everbright Environmental Protection Industry (Shenzhen)
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
formally renamed as Everbright Environmental Protection Engineering
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Everbright Environmental

Engineering”). Everbright Environmental Engineering has become the
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official contractor for the Group’s environmental protection projects.
Everbright Environmental Engineering has already established its own
professional, efficient and dedicated technical management team, fully
capable of handling environmental protection projects independently.
During the year under review, Everbright Environmental Engineering
recorded a net profit of HK$24,206,000. Given that Everbright
Environmental Engineering acted as the main contractor for the
Group’s projects, its project management and consultancy fee income
is only an inter-company revenue. Therefore, the profit is treated as a
reduction of construction costs of the projects instead of crediting to
the consolidated income statement as profit. The total contract sum
obtained by Everbright Environmental Engineering acting in the
capacity of main contractor amounted to HK$614,165,000.

In January 2006, Everbright Environmental Engineering received the
licence of “Main Contractor for Municipal Public Works” and obtained
three certificates, namely the 1ISO9001:2000 International Quality
Management System Certificate, the ISO-14001 Environmental
Management System Certificate and the OHSMS28001 Occupational
Health and Safety Management System Certificate. The obtaining of
the aforesaid licence and certificates demonstrates that the Group
possesses the qualifications to participate in municipal public works,
which can help further expand the municipal public works business
of the Group.
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China Everbright Environmental Energy Limited (“Everbright
Environmental Energy”) and China Everbright Water Investments
Limited (“Everbright Water Investments”) continued to explore new
business opportunities in the environmental protection field in the
PRC during the year, and successfully secured three projects in
2005, namely Suzhou Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial
Zone Project (“the Zone”), Yixing Waste-to-energy Project (“Yixing
Project”) and Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project (“Zibo Project”),
and one project in January 2006, namely Jiangyin Waste-to-energy
Project (“Jiangyin Project”). Through the above, the Group has
gradually built up its reputation and business network in the industry.
The Group believes that the separate establishment of Everbright
Environmental Engineering, Everbright Environmental Energy and
Everbright Water Investments will provide a broad and solid platform
for the Group to develop its environmental protection business,

while enhancing its competitiveness.

SuNeng Waste-to-energy Project (“SuNeng Project”) is the first
wholly-owned environmental protection project to be constructed
by the Group. To ensure the success of SuNeng Project, the Group
determined to “create the project as a top quality, high standard,
high effectiveness and hi-tech one based on imported equipment”.
Since the commencement of construction of SuNeng Project in
October 2004, the Group has been devoting every effort to take
care of every detail of the Project and has provided abundant human
and financial resources for the same. The construction work has
been progressing satisfactorily, with its quality, operational safety
and progress under control. The company’s stringent management
of the Project received high recognition and great praise from the
supervisory authority, experts and the industry. The construction
work and installation work of SuNeng Project have already been
completed, and test running for the Project commenced thereafter.
SuNeng Project is expected to commence operation by June 2006.
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Due to satisfactory progress of SuNeng Project and having won the
confidence of Suzhou Municipal Government, the Group fully believes
in the successful development of the Zone. In July 2005, the Group
and Suzhou Municipal Government entered into a framework letter of
intent in respect of the construction of the Zone, which will be the first
comprehensive waste management zone for urban, industrial and
household solid waste in the PRC. The parties aim at “establishing

the area as a beautiful industrial zone, making it a base for
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SuNeng waste-to-energy plant (Dormitory building under
construction)
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environmental education and promotion in Suzhou”. The Zone will
comprise a number of environmental protection projects, including
the aforesaid SuNeng project, a methane-to-energy plant (“Methane-
to-energy Project”), a disposal centre for industrial solid waste (“Solid
Waste Disposal Project”), a sludge treatment centre and a leachate
treatment plant etc. The Zone is planned comprehensively and will be
implemented in phases over 3 to 5 years at an estimated total
investment of HK$1,500,000,000. The project yields great advantages,
including better utilization of land, extension of industry chain and

centralization of management.
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In addition to SuNeng Project, the foundation laying for Methane-to-
energy Project and Solid Waste Disposal Project in the Zone also
completed during the year. With a site area of 10 hectares, Methane-
to-energy Project will be carried out on BOO basis at a total investment
of Rmb27,940,000 and two generators with capacity of 1,250 kilo-
watt each are intended to be installed in the plant. The foundation
laying of Methane-to-energy Project completed in October 2005 and
commercial operation is expected to commence by July 2006.
Regarding Solid Waste Disposal Project, it is the third project of the
Zone, with a site area of 80 hectares and storage capacity 600,000
cubic metre. The storage capacity of Solid Waste Disposal Project
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Signing ceremony of Suzhou Everbright
Environmental Protection Industrial Zone

phase | will be 100,000 cubic metre. The investment cost will be
approximately Rmb78,260,000. The foundation laying of Solid Waste
Disposal Project completed at the end of December 2005 and
commercial operation of which is expected to commence in early
2007. With the implementation of the above-mentioned three projects,

our Zone began to take shape.
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In April 2005, the Group and the Construction Bureau of Yixing City
entered into an undertaking in respect of the exclusive right to provide
waste incineration service in Yixing City of Jiangsu Province. Pursuant
to which a waste-to-energy plant will be constructed in Yixing City in
18 months on BOT basis. The total investment cost of the project will
be approximately Rmb238,300,000 and the Group will have an
exclusive right of operation for 25 years. The power plant will be
constructed by Everbright Environmental Engineering in the capacity
of main contractor pursuant to a turnkey contract. The Group aims at
establishing Yixing project as a waste-to-energy pioneer project with
daily handling capacity of 500 tonnes using domestically built
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equipment developed from imported technology, while striving to build
up the brand name of “Everbright Environment” and to consolidate
its leading position in the waste-to-energy field in Jiangsu Province
as well as in the PRC. Both parties entered into the agreement for the
project in April 2005 and a working team has been stationed in Yixing
since May 2005. It took only four months for the Group to complete
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Foundation laying ceremony for disposal centre for
industrial solid waste in Suzhou Everbright Environmental
Protection Industrial Zone
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the necessary preliminary project approvals, including incorporation
of company, project proposal and environmental review and the
construction work duly commenced in September 2005. The Group’s
great efficiency in kicking off the project has set a good example in
the industry and received positive feedback from local government
and the industry. The development of Yixing Project has been
progressing satisfactorily. The site foundation work for the boiler
installation already commenced in March 2006 and commercial
operation of the project is expected to commence in February 2007.

In January 2006, the Group successfully won the tender for Jiangyin
Project of Jiangsu Province. With a gross handling capacity of 1,200
tonnes per day, Jiangyin Project will be constructed in two phases.
The daily handling capacity of Phase | will be 800 tonnes. Jiangyin
Project will be implemented on BOT basis at a total investment
cost of Rmb388,740,000. The term of exclusive right of operation
for such project will be 30 years. The foundation laying of the project
completed in March 2006 and commercial operation is expected
in March 2008.
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Commenced commercial operation on 1 January 2005, Qingdao
Project processed 54,370,000 cubic meters of waste water and
contributed an attributable profit of HK$12,628,000 to the Group
during the year. Regarding the construction of the Maidao Extension
Facilities, the Group entered into the engineering, procurement and
construction contract, the equipment supply contract and the
service contract with the consortium led by Veolia Water Systems
in March 2005. The total consideration for the aforesaid amounted
to approximately Rmb206,268,000. The construction of the Maidao
Extension Facilities commenced in June 2005. Civil works and
equipment installation of the project are expected to complete by
July 2006. It is expected that its daily treatment capacity will
increase from 150,000 tonnes to 220,000 tonnes upon completion
of the extension facilities.
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Zibo Project is the Group’s first wholly-owned waste water treatment
project acquired on TOT basis. The acquisition agreement was
executed on 28 September 2005. Thereafter it took only two months
for the Group to complete the transfer of assets and staff and the
handover of books and accounts. The Group formally took charge
of the operation of the project on 1 December 2005 and the project
soon became another profit generator of the Group. The
refurbishment work on equipment for the Northern plant phase Il
and the Southern plant commenced in December 2005 and are
expected to be completed by the end of April 2006. By then, the
daily treatment capacity of the plant will be more than 220,000
tonnes. Pursuant to the concession right agreement entered into
between the Group and the Zibo Municipal Government, the Group
will operate the waste water treatment plants to provide waste water
treatment service in certain specified areas in Zibo City of
Shangdong Province in the coming 25 years. Additionally, the
Group will be authorized to invest in, develop, operate and provide
reusable water generation service, and will be responsible for the
enhancement and maintenance of the facilities and equipment of

the waste water treatment plant.
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The Group has been focusing on developing its environmental
protection business in the Yangtze River Delta, the Pearl River Delta
Regions and Bohai Bay Area. After three years of efforts, the Group
has secured a number of environmental protection projects in
Jiangsu Province and Shandong Province. Through the said
projects, the Group successfully extended its investment coverage
to, and established a strategic foothold in such regions, which
created synergistic effect of project management for its projects.
The Group is now under negotiations with other municipal
governments over cooperation in environmental protection projects,
with a view to exploring new business opportunities, and have
entered into framework agreements with Shenzhen Municipal
Government and Jinan Municipal Government for long-term
strategic cooperation. In February 2005, CEH entered into a
framework agreement with Shenzhen Municipal Government for
long-term strategic cooperation, under which both parties will, base
on the principles of mutual benefit and mutual cooperation,
cooperate in every aspect. It is stated in the aforesaid agreement
that Shenzhen Municipal Government will support CEH, by way of
BOT or TOT model, to invest in or acquire the waste-to-energy
projects and the urban waste water treatment projects in Shenzhen,
and to develop such environmental protection businesses as
reusable water generation, flue gas desulphurization and
desalination. Being the environmental protection flagship of CEH,
the Group is well-positioned to benefit from the future opportunities
brought by the above-mentioned cooperation. In August 2005, the
Group entered into a framework agreement of cooperation with
Jinan Municipal Government, with a view to enhancing their
investment and cooperation in such areas as urban environmental
protection and municipal infrastructural development in Jinan
Municipal. Regarding the proposed environmental protection
projects under negotiation, the Group will strictly comply with the
relevant disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules.
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Given the fact that there is great demand for environmental
protection services, the environmental protection business has been
regarded as a sustainable business. Besides, the provision of
pollution control products and environmental services will not only
create tremendous economic benefits, it will also bring in greater
social and environmental benefits. Given the above favorable
factors, the Group will continue to build up the environmental
protection business as its long-term business focus and will strive
to enhance its market recognition and corporate image. And on
the operating principle of “creating quality projects to build our
brand”, the Group will exert efforts to further enhance the brand
name of “Everbright Environment” to boost revenue growth for its
environmental protection business. In 2005, the Group, as the sole
supporter, jointly organized the 2005 PRC Environmental Cultural
Festival under the lead of the National Environmental Protection
Agency. Events of the Cultural Festival included “Everbright
Environment Trophy: The First Environmental Arts, Photo and
Calligraphy Exhibition in the PRC” and a soiree for award
presentation — “Everbright Environment Soiree”. Held in November
2005 in Beijing, the soiree was broadcasted over a network of more
than seventy television stations in the PRC. Through the event, the
Group projects a favorable image of “Everbright Environment” and
promotes its corporate vision, which will be advantageous to the
future development of the Group’s environmental protection
business.

.

- R
#&fﬂﬁa&@ﬁ&ﬁﬂé;

HAARRRIF — 2 BURREN 2% B/R
Everbright Environment Trophy-Environmental Arts,
Photo and Calligraphy Exhibition in the PRC
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Everbright Environment Soiree — Environmental Protection Stars
in Concert
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK EBRE

The continual healthy growth of PRC economy, coupled with IS B IS B EIS R T Rk m b mnik
the faster pace of PRC’s industrialization and urbanization, have R ARWBERXNEGREE  ZLUTTAR
led to a change in the spending pattern of the people in the T B ATHISARRIG R AR EAE) 1 SRR Bt
PRC. At present, “shelter and transportation” rank higher on Rk FEBUTEEEITEZANEIZ2ERE )
people’s spending priority list. Not only will this change be a ERCERRARSERACHA NEARER
long-term trend, it will also become the driving force for future K BESME IRIRE ST ET NS AAREE
economic growth. Apart from the above, with the full support of —RER BIEERE WERE MIRIREBT R
the PRC Government to the promotion and implementation of FlaF ) B IR IR

technological development, the promotion of harmony between
economic development and ecosystems, the continual
improvement in the living standard of the people, and the
increasing awareness of the importance of environmental
protection, a positive operating environment has been created
for the Group’s core businesses, namely infrastructure
investment, property investment and environmental protection

businesses.

HEXAEBRERAE ZFRAEER
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Looking ahead, the Group is quite optimistic about the future
development of its core businesses and has set clear targets for
the same. By capitalizing on the upcoming business opportunities
in the PRC, the Group will strive to further consolidate the foundation
of its infrastructure investment, property investment and
environmental protection businesses, with a view to creating
significant and stable income sources for the Group. And given
the facts that market potential of environmental protection business
in the PRC is great, the development of environmental protection
business in the PRC is rapid, and Beijing Olympic Games and
Shanghai Expo will be held in 2008 and 2010 respectively,
investment in environmental projects and the demand for advanced
environmental technology are expected to increase substantially.
The Group will continue to build up the brand name of “Everbright
Environment” by the principles of honesty, high efficiency,
pragmatism, using advanced technology, high quality and
competitive pricing, with a view to fostering the continual
development of the Group. Realizing the importance of
management enhancement to a business during its development,
the Group will strive to enhance budget management and control
the project costs in 2006, thereby ensuring the long-term stable
development of its business. The Group will continue to develop
itself into an investment operation company with outstanding core
business and high economic efficiency at an ambitious pace, so
as to realize its target of becoming a leading infrastructure

investment and environmental protection conglomerate.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

In 2005, the Group’s consolidated turnover amounted to
HK$133,823,000, representing an increase of 105% as compared
with HK$65,244,000 for the previous year. The increase is mainly
attributable to the revenue contribution from Qingdao Project upon
commencement of operation and the continual increase in the toll
bridge revenue from Qingzhou Bridge. Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for 2005 amounted to
HK$105,330,000, representing an increase of 21% as compared
with HK$86,776,000 for the previous year. During the year, basic
earnings per share amounted to HK4.13 cents, representing an
increase of HKO.72 cent as compared with HK3.41 cents for the

previous year.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had total assets of
HK$2,673,720,000. Net assets attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company amounted to HK$1,176,857,000 and the net assets
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company per share was
HK$0.46. As at 31 December 2005, the gearing ratio (calculated
by dividing total liabilities by total assets) was 53%.
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The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated cash flow and loan facilities from banks and from its
ultimate holding company. As at 31 December 2005, the Group
had an aggregate cash balance of approximately HK$498,670,000,
representing a decrease of HK$86,454,000 as compared with
HK$585,124,000 as at the end of the previous year. As at 31
December 2005, the Group had outstanding borrowings of
approximately HK$1,147,871,000, representing an increase of
HK$235,377,000 as compared with HK$912,494,000 as at the end
of the previous year. The borrowings comprised secured bank loans
of HK$612,243,000 and loans from ultimate holding company of
HK$535,628,000. With respect to foreign exchange exposure, the
risk is minimal as all of the Group’s foreign currency assets and
borrowings are denominated in Renminbi and US dollars, and the
exchange rate of which are relatively stable against Hong Kong
dollar. The impact of exchange rate fluctuations of these currencies
is insignificant to the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2005, the Group pledged cash and fixed assets
with an aggregate net book value of approximately HK$662,693,000
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. In
addition, the shares of a subsidiary of the Group, the revenue of a
waste water treatment plant, the Group’s toll bridge revenue and
the Group’s revenue and franchising right of a waste-to-energy plant
(which the construction has yet to be completed) have been
pledged.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had capital commitments
contracted for and authorised but not contracted for amounted to
HK$289,081,000 and HK$19,667,000 respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

INTERNAL MANAGEMENT

“People-oriented, honesty, practicality, creativity and management
standardization” are the unchanged management principles of the
Group. The Group upholds the management motto of acting and
managing according to principles. The Group has already set up a
series of measures on risk control management mechanisms.
Regarding investment decision-making process, the Group, follows
the principles of integrating power with responsibility and benefit,
striking a balance between decision-making efficiency and risk
control, to perfect the decision-making process for new investments.
For environmental protection business, the Risk Management
Advisory Committee and the Engineering Technical Management
Committee, comprising senior consultants and key corporate
management of the Group, have been duly established to evaluate
the proposals from the business, legal and technical perspectives.
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In terms of risk control management, the Group strives to establish
a solid risk control culture as well as a risk management system.
The Group has formed its risk management division, which is staffed
with professional personnel specializing in regular risk control and
inspection. The risk management division has established a risk
control and internal control system, which covers such main areas
as project identification, due diligence, tendering, contracting,
construction and operation. The Group principally manages its
investment projects by delegating appropriate directors or senior
management to participate directly in project management, so as

to protect the Company'’s interest.

Regarding financial control, the Group maintains strict budget
management and established the Budget Approval Management
Committee responsible for supervising the construction budget and
operating budget of projects. The Group applies different control
measures on different subsidiaries based on their nature of
operation. As for projects at their construction stage, budget
allocations are approved and made monthly, and all major bank
accounts are directly controlled by the Hong Kong headquarters.
As for project companies in operation, the Group exercises two-
way supervision by way of closely monitoring of bank accounts
and allocation of funds according to budget. A system has been
established to carry out annual internal inspection within the Group
to enhance the Group’s management standard. Besides, the Group
strives to develop a strong team to fit the needs of its developing
environmental protection business. During the year, the Group
carried out several recruitment exercises to recruit staff of excellent
caliber. At present, the Group has built up a team of experienced

and professional staff, with outstanding professional ethics.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In November 2004, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
published the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“the
Code”) and Rules on the Corporate Governance Report. The Code,
with one exception, has become effective for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2005. The exception is in respect
of Code Provision C.2 (on internal controls and disclosure
requirements in the Corporate Governance Report relating to listed
issuers’ internal controls), which will be implemented for accounting
periods commencing on or after 1 July 2005. The Code sets out
the principles of good corporate governance, and two levels of
recommendations: (1) code provisions: listed issuers are required
to comply with. Where the listed issuer deviates from the code
provisions set out in the Code, the issuer must give considered
reasons as required; and (2) recommended best practices: for

guidance only.

The Code has been duly approved and adopted by the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the Company has met the
code provisions and some of the recommended best practices as
set out in the Code except that Mr. Wang Mingquan, the Chairman
of the Company, was unable to attend the 2005 Annual General
Meeting of the Company, However, appropriate arrangements have
been made accordingly before the holding of the Annual General
Meeting.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted the model code (“Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry of the directors, all directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out therein during the twelve
months ended 31 December 2005.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wang Mingquan
(Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Zang Qiutao, the Vice-
chairman of the Board, and three independent non-executive
directors of the Company, namely Sir David Akers-Jones, Mr.
Aubrey Li Kwok Sing and Mr. Selwyn Mar. Its main duties include
offering advice to the Board on the matters pertaining the
remuneration policy and remuneration structure of the directors
and senior management of the Company. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee are disclosed on the website of
the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising all three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Sir David Akers-Jones
(Chairman), Mr. Aubrey Li Kwok Sing and Mr. Selwyn Mar, is
primarily responsible for reviewing the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, as well as discussing and
reviewing the internal control and financial reporting matters of the
Company. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
disclosed on the website of the Company. The Audit Committee
has reviewed with the management and KPMG, the Company'’s
auditor, the accounting principles and practice adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls and financial reporting
matters, including a review of the annual report for the year ended
31 December 2005.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group devotes much attention to human resources
management, striving to establish a high quality team to support
its business development in the long run. As at 31 December 2005,
the Group had a total of approximately 470 employees in Hong
Kong and the PRC. During the year under review, the Group'’s total
staff costs were HK$30,693,000. Employees are remunerated
according to their qualification, experience, job nature,
performance, as well as market conditions. Apart from discretionary
performance bonus, the Group also provides other benefits such
as medical insurance and provident fund scheme to employees in
Hong Kong. According to the share option scheme approved at
the Company’s extraordinary general meeting held on 26 May 2003,
the board of directors of the Company was authorized to grant
share options to any employees, including directors, as incentives.
No option has been granted to any employee during the year under

review.

By Order of the Board
Chen Xiaoping
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2006
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INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT
Shenzhen Mawan Power Company Limited

The Group owns 15% interest in Shenzhen Mawan Power Company
Limited (“Mawan Power”), which is principally engaged in the
electricity supply to Guangdong Province, the PRC. Mawan Power
owns two power plants, namely Mawan Power Plant and
Yueliangwan Power Plant. With the strong facility support of a
10,000-ton oil pier and a 50,000-ton coal pier, Mawan Power has a
total generation capacity of approximately 894,000 kilowatt. The
two power plants together generated approximately 5.37 billion
kilowatt-hour of electricity in 2005, bringing major earnings to the
Group.

Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge

The Group has 80% interest in Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge (“Qingzhou
Bridge”). Located in the strategic traffic intersection of the city,
Qingzhou Bridge is not only the major bridge over Minjiang that
connects to the “Tungsan Expressway” (a coastal expressway in
eastern China that runs from Helongjiang in the north to Hainan
Province in the south), but also provides a short cut for Fuzhou
City to Changle International Airport. Opened to traffic on 29
December 2002, the 1,193m-long Qingzhou Bridge has been
designed to carry dual six lane carriageways. With a main span of
605m, the Qingzhou Bridge is one of the longest span cable-stayed
bridges in the world. Given its geographical advantages as well as
the rising need for inbound traffic, the traffic flows of Qingzhou
Bridge will continue to grow.
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Mawan Power Plant
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BUSINESS
SuZhou SuNeng Waste-to-Energy Co. Ltd.

In 2003, the Group’s joint venture with its business partner entered
into a Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture agreement with a
subsidiary of Suzhou Municipal Government and signed an
agreement in respect of exclusive right of operation with Suzhou
Municipal Government. The term for such exclusive right of
operation is 25 years. The construction of the power plant is
conducted on BOT basis. The total investment cost of the project
is approximately Rmb500,000,000. Upon setting the Suzhou project
as the key construction project, the Group acquired the remaining
50% interests owned by its partner in July 2004 and the project
has been wholly-owned by the Group since then. Thereafter the
Group made thoroughgoing preparation for the construction of the
project, with the goal of “Constructing high quality projects and
Creating outstanding works”. Commenced in October 2004, the
construction of the project has been progressing satisfactorily. The
construction work and installation work of the project have already
been completed, and test running commenced thereafter. It is
expected that the commercial operation will commence by June
2006. The plant is expected to handle no less than 1,000 tonnes of
waste daily and sell no less than 89,000,000 kilowatt-hour of
electricity per year during the terms for exclusive right of operation.
While contributing long term and stable income to the Group, the

plant will also help establishing the Group’s brand name in the

waste-to-energy field.
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Qingdao EB-VW Waste Water Treatment Co. Ltd.

In November 2003, the Group entered into an agreement in respect
of a waste water treatment project (including Qingdao Haibohe
Waste Water Treatment Plant and Qingdao Maidao Waste Water
Treatment Plant ) with Veolia Water and Qingdao Municipal
Government. The total investment cost of the project is
US$42,808,150 and the Group indirectly owns 60% interests in the
project. Upon execution of the supplementary agreements dated
1 June 2004 by the Group, Veolia Water and Qingdao Municipal
Drainage Company, the project duly commenced. The preparation
for the establishment of the Project Company (i.e. Qingdao EB-VW
Waste Water Treatment Co. Ltd.) and the Operation Company (i.e.
Qingdao Veolia Water Operating Company Limited) was completed
in August 2004. Upon approval by Qingdao Municipal Government,
the commercial operation of the plants duly commenced on 1
January 2005. Waste water treatment service charges were charged
based on the daily treatment capacity of 150,000 tonnes. In March
2005, a consortium led by Veolia Water Systems was appointed by
the Project Company to be in charge of the construction for the
extension to Qingdao Maidao Waste Water Treatment Plant under
a turnkey contract. The extension work duly commenced in June
2005 and is expected to complete in July 2006. It is expected that
its daily treatment capacity will increase from 150,000 tonnes to
220,000 tonnes upon completion of the extension facilities by July
2006.
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Everbright Environmental Energy (Yixing) Limited

In April 2005, the Group entered into an undertaking in respect of
exclusive right of operation with the Construction Bureau of Yixing
City. Pursuant to which a waste-to-energy plant will be constructed
in Yixing City. The term of such exclusive right of operation is 25
years. The power plant will be constructed on BOT basis and the
total investment cost of the project is approximately
Rmb238,300,000. The Group has made thoroughgoing preparation
for the construction of the Yixing project, with the goal of
“establishing it as a waste-to-energy pioneer project by domestic
techniques developed from imported technology”. Commenced in
September 2005, the construction of the Yixing project has been
progressing satisfactorily and is expected to complete by February
2007. The plant is expected to handle no less than 500 tonnes of
waste per day during the term for exclusive right of operation and
sell no less than 44,500,000 kilowatt-hour of electricity per year.
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Everbright Water Investments (Zibo) Limited

In September 2005, the Group entered into the “Zibo waste water
treatment project agreement”, the “concession right agreement”,
the “asset transfer agreement” and the “waste water treatment
service agreement” in respect of the Zibo waste water treatment
project with Zibo Municipal Government, Zibo Finance Bureau and
Zibo City Environmental Protection Bureau and Zibo City Fisheries
Bureau. The term of exclusive right of operation for such project
will be 25 years. The project is operated on TOT basis and the total
investment cost is approximately Rmb224,055,000. The Group has
made thoroughgoing preparation for the hand-over of the project,
with the goal of “establishing the project company as a renowned
corporation in the industry and making the same a base for
environmental education on waste water treatment in Zibo”. On 1
December 2005, the Group formally took charge of the operation
of Zibo project and began to collect waste water treatment charge.
The repair/replacement works of equipment also started in
December 2005 and is expected to complete by the end of April
2006. By then, the daily treatment capacity of the plant will be more
than 220,000 tonnes.
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Suzhou Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Zone

In July 2005, the Group entered into a framework letter of intent in
respect of the construction of Suzhou Everbright Environmental
Protection Industrial Zone with the Municipal Government of Mudu
Town, Wuzhong District, Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province. The Zone
will be the first composite waste management zone for urban,
industrial and household solid waste in the PRC. The whole project
will be implemented in phases over 3 to 5 years at an estimated
investment of HK$1,500,000,000. The Zone will comprise a number
of environmental protection projects, including, inter alias, a waste-
to-energy plant, a methane-to-energy plant, a disposal centre for
industrial solid waste, a sludge treatment centre and a leachate
treatment plant etc. The Group has made thoroughgoing
preparation for the construction of the Zone, with the goal of “making
the area a base for environmental education and promotion in
Suzhou, establishing it as a beautiful industrial zone”. Apart from
Suzhou SuNeng Waste-to-energy project, the construction works
for the methane-to-energy plant (“Methane-to-energy Project”) and
for the disposal centre for industrial solid waste (“Solid Waste
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Disposal Project”) in the Zone also started in October and
December 2005 respectively and have been progressing
satisfactorily. As for the Methane-to-energy Project, the total
investment cost is approximately Rmb27,940,000 and its
construction is expected to complete by June 2006. The plant is
expected to sell no less than 12 million kilowatt-hour of electricity
per year during the term for exclusive right of operation. Regarding
the Solid Waste Disposal Project, the total investment cost is
approximately Rmb377,484,000. As to phase | of the disposal
centre, the storage capacity will be 100,000 cubic metre and the
investment cost is approximately Rmb78,260,000. Commercial
operation of which is expected to commence by the end of 2006
upon completion of construction work.

Everbright Environmental Energy (Jiangyin) Limited

In January 2006, the Group secured a waste-to-energy project in
Jiangyin City of Jiangsu Province, which is a key project in Jiangsu
Province for the years 2006/2007. The term of exclusive right of
operation for such project is 30 years. The construction of the plant
will be conducted in two phases on BOT basis at a total investment
cost of Rmb388,740,000. Its ultimate handling capacity is expected
to be no less than 1,200 tonnes of waste per day. The Group has
made thoroughgoing preparation for the construction of the Jiangyin
project. Scheduled to be commenced in May 2006, the construction
work of phase | is expected to complete by 2008. It is expected
that phase | of the plant will be able to handle no less than 800
tonnes of waste per day during the term for exclusive right of
operation and sell no less than 77 million kilowatt-hour of electricity

per year.
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Directors

WANG MINGQUAN - CHAIRMAN

aged 59, is the Chairman of the Company. He is also the Chairman
of China Everbright Group Limited, China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited, and China Everbright Bank Company Limited.
He is the Chairman of Everbright Securities Company Limited,
Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Company Limited and China
Everbright Limited. Prior to joining the China Everbright Group, Mr.
Wang was the Vice-chairman and Governor of Bank of
Communications in China and the Chairman of China Pacific
Insurance Company Limited. He had also been appointed as the
Deputy Mayor of Wuhan City. Mr. Wang holds a Master’s Degree in
Economics from the Zhongnan University of Finance and
Economics. He is also an instructor of the Graduate Department of
the People’s Bank of China and a part-time Professor of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Wang has extensive
knowledge and experience in banking, securities, insurance and
business administration. He joined the Board in June 2000.

ZANG QIUTAO - VICE-CHAIRMAN

aged 54, is the Vice-chairman of the Company. He is also the Vice-
chairman and General Manager of China Everbright Group Limited
and China Everbright Holdings Company Limited . He is a director
of Citicorp Everbright China Fund Limited. Mr. Zang graduated
from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences. He was formerly the Division Chief of the State Economic
Commission and the Deputy Division Director of the State Planning
Commission. He joined the Board in September 2004.

LI XUEMING - VICE-CHAIRMAN

aged 58, is the Vice-chairman of the Company. He is also an
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager of China
Everbright Holdings Company Limited and a Non-executive Director
and Deputy Chairman of Hong Kong Construction (Holdings)
Limited. He joined the China Everbright Group in 1998 and was
formerly the Vice-president of China Aerospace International
Holdings Ltd. Mr. Li joined the Board in June, 2003.
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Directors (continued)

CHEN XIAOPING - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

aged 52, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is also
a director of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited, a Deputy
Chairman of Construction Science and Technology Council, a
Standing Director of China Business Council, a Standing Director
of China International Economic Cooperation Council, a Standing
Director of China Environmental Culture Promotion Association, a
Director of World Eminence Chinesebusiness Association and a
Financial Expert of Shenzhen Expert Working Federation. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chen had been a department head in the
Bureau of Investigation & Supervision of The People’s Bank of China,
the Assistant Governor of China Everbright Bank Company Limited
and the President of the Bank’s Guangzhou Branch, the Executive
Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Hong Kong
Construction (Holdings) Limited. He graduated from the Department
of Finance of the Southwest University in Finance and Economics,
the PRC, finished the MBA class of the Research Institute of
Business Management of Sichuan University, the PRC and holds a
Master’s Degree with a major in Money & Banking from the
Department of Finance and Trade of the China Research Institute
of Social Science. He holds the title of Senior Economist and
Certified Public Accountant in the PRC. He has comprehensive
experience and knowledge in banking, capital market and
management. Mr. Chen joined the Board in August 2001.

FAN YAN HOK, PHILIP - GENERAL MANAGER

aged 56, is the General Manager of the Company and a director of
Hong Kong Construction (Holdings) Limited. Mr. Fan holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial Engineering, a Master’s Degree in
Operations Research from the Stanford University and a Master’s
Degree in Management Science from the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan had been an
Executive Director of CITIC Pacific Limited in charge of industrial
projects in the PRC. He joined the Board in November 1997.
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Directors (continued)

HUANG CHAOHUA - DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER

aged 36, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company and the
General Manager of Everbright Environmental Protection
Engineering (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. He holds a Master’s Degree in
Laws from the School of Law, Renmin University of China. He is a
qualified lawyer and legal consultant for business in the PRC. Prior
to joining the Company in May 2002, he used to work for the
headquarter of China Everbright Bank Company Limited and the
Bureau of Justice of Beijing Municipal. Mr. Huang joined the Board
in December 2002.

WONG KAM CHUNG, RAYMOND - CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
aged 42, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree, a Master of Management
Degree in Information Technology Management from the Macquarie
University, Australia, and a Bachelor of Arts with Honours Degree
in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of United Kingdom and a Certified General Accountant
in Canada . He has extensive experience in accounting, finance

and auditing areas. Mr. Wong joined the Board in December 2002.

CHEN SHUANG

aged 38, is a director of China Everbright Holdings Company
Limited. He is also the Deputy General Manager of the Legal
Department of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited and
China Everbright Group Limited. Mr. Chen is also an Executive
Director and Deputy General Manager of China Everbright Limited.
He holds a Master's Degree in Laws from the East China Politic
and Law University. He is a senior economist and a qualified lawyer
in the PRC. Prior to joining the China Everbright Group, Mr. Chen
was the Chief of the Legal Department of Bank of Communications.
He joined the Board in December 2002.
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Directors (continued)

ZHANG WEIYUN
aged 49,
Management Department of China Everbright Holdings Company

is the Deputy General Manager of the Finance

Limited. Ms. Zhang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from
the Shanxi Financial University. She joined the China Everbright
Group in 1991 and was formerly the Deputy Division Chief of the
Capital Division and the Division Chief of the General Affairs Division
of the Finance Management Department of China Everbright Group
Limited. Ms. Zhang joined the Board in December 2002.

THE HON SIR DAVID AKERS-JONES, GBM

— INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
aged 79, is the chairman and non-executive director of a number
of Hong Kong companies and a member of many community
organizations. He has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since March 1995.

LI KWOK SING, AUBREY

— INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
aged 56, is a director of Management Capital Limited, a Hong Kong
based financial advisory and direct investment firm, and has over
30 years’ experience in merchant banking and commercial banking.
He is also a non-executive director of ABC Communications
(Holdings) Limited, The Bank of East Asia, Limited, Café de Coral
Holdings Limited, CNPC (Hong Kong) Limited, Kowloon
Development Company Limited, Pokfulam Development Company
Limited and Value Partners China Greenchip Fund Limited, and
non-executive Chairman of Atlantis Asian Recovery Fund Plc. Mr.
Li has a Master of Business Administration from Columbia University
and a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering from Brown
University. He joined the Board in November 1998.
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Directors (continued)

MAR SELWYN

— INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
aged 70, graduated from the London School of Economics,
University of London. He is a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of United Kingdom, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He is
the managing partner of Nexia Charles Mar Fan & Co. He is an
independent non-executive director and chairman of the board
audit committee of Standard Bank Asia Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit
committee of Onfem Holdings Limited and Man Yue International
Holdings Limited. He was the President of Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (now known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants) in 1991. He was formerly an Independent Non-
Executive Director of several listed companies in Hong Kong and
in the United States. Mr. Mar is an Honorary Fellow of the Lingnan
University. He joined the Board in September 2004.

Senior Management

POON YUEN LING

aged 38, is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. She joined the Group in April 1994, with over 10
years of experience in company secretarial and administration
areas.
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In November 2004, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
announced amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Listing Rules”), which included the publication of the “Code on
Corporate Governance Practices” (“the Code”) and “Rules on the
Corporate Governance Report” (“the Rules”) as contained in
Appendix 14 and Appendix 23 to the Listing Rules respectively.
The Code, with one exception, has become effective for accounting
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2005. The exception is
in respect of Code Provision C.2 (on internal controls and disclosure
requirements in the Corporate Governance Report relating to listed
issuers’ internal controls), which will be implemented for accounting
periods commencing on or after 1 July 2005. The Code sets out
the principles of good corporate governance, and two levels of
recommendations: (1) code provisions: Listed issuers are required
to comply with. Where the listed issuer deviates from the code
provisions set out in the Code, the issuer must give considered
reasons as required; and (2) recommended best practices: for
guidance only.

The Code was duly adopted by the Board as the code on corporate
governance practices of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the Company has met the
code provisions and some of the recommended best practices as
set out in the Code except that Mr. Wang Mingquan, the Chairman
of the Company, was unable to attend the 2005 Annual General
Meeting of the Company, However, appropriate arrangements have
been made accordingly before the holding of the Annual General
Meeting.
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE IN RELATION TO CORPORATE ERTEERNERES
GOVERNANCE
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Board of Directors
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEe

Composition and function AR RBE

EFEght _NEFERN BRNAURTES
R =B FFITE R AR

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) comprises twelve Directors,
of which nine are Executive Directors and the remaining three are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

As at 31 December 2005, the Directors were: R-EZERE+_A=+—R" 8£eKEA:

Name of Director Title EENR B

HITEE
TRt E ES
EESES e BIEE

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Mingguan Chairman

Mr. Zang Qiutao Vice-chairman

Mr. Li Xueming Vice-chairman FEREE BlEfE

Mr. Chen Xiaoping Chief Executive Officer BRANE S TIRABHE,

Mr. Philip Fan Yan Hok General Manager B AE EECSE

Mr. Huang Chaohua Deputy General Manager ECES BliBagig

Mr. Raymond Wong Kam Chung Chief Financial Officer and =IRFL A B HBEE R A B ERTAD
Qualified Accountant

Mr. Chen Shuang Executive Director PR REAE WITES

Ms. Zhang Weiyun Executive Director RERZ T BiITES

Non-executive Directors FHITEE

Sir David Akers-Jones Independent Non-executive ERERT B IEMITES
Director

Mr. Aubrey Li Kwok Sing Independent Non-executive THELE B IEITES
Director

Mr. Selwyn Mar Independent Non-executive SRR EE B IEITES

Director
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition and function (continued)

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
subject to the manner of retirement by rotation of Directors as from
time to time prescribed under the Listing Rules and notwithstanding
any contractual or other terms on which any Director may be
appointed or engaged, at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three(3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement

by rotation at least once every three years.

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
held by separate individuals, with a view to maintaining an effective
segregation of duties respecting management of the Board and
the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. Under the lead of
the Chairman, the Board is responsible for approving and
supervising the overall strategy and policies of the Group, approving
annual budget and business plans, assessing the Group’s
performance and supervising the work of the management. All
Directors have access to board papers and related materials, and
are provided with adequate information on a timely manner. The
Directors of the Company may, if necessary, seek legal or other
independent professional advice at the expense of the Company.

In respect of regular board meetings or committee meetings, the
agenda is sent out to the Directors at least fourteen days before
the meeting and the accompanying papers are sent at least three

days before the intended date of meeting for information.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition and function (continued)

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board has
established the following committees with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with the committee’s authority and
duties:—

1. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee comprises Mr. Wang Minggquan
(Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, and eight Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zang Qiutao, Mr. Li Xueming, Mr. Chen
Xiaoping, Mr. Philip Fan Yan Hok, Mr. Huang Chaohua, Mr.
Raymond Wong Kam Chung, Mr. Chen Shuang and Ms.
Zhang Weiyun. Its main duties include performing the duties
assigned by the Board as well as exercising the authority
and rights authorized by the Board. The general mandate
in relation to the Executive Committee in written form has
been established.

2. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wang
Mingguan (Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Zang
Qiutao, the Vice-chairman of the Board, and three
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Sir David Akers-Jones, Mr. Aubrey Li Kwok Sing and
Mr. Selwyn Mar. Its main duties include offering advice to
the Board on the matters pertaining the remuneration policy
and remuneration structure of the directors and senior
management of the Company. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are disclosed on the website
of the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration policy and structure of the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company, and
offered advice on the same to the Board.

The remuneration of all the Directors and their respective
interest in share options are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements and under the “Share option scheme” paragraph
in the report of the directors of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report &

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EE® (8)

Composition and function (continued) HAEREBE (&)

3.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising all three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Sir David Akers-
Jones (Chairman), Mr. Aubrey Li Kwok Sing and Mr. Selwyn
Mar, is primarily responsible for reviewing the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, as well as
discussing and reviewing the internal control and financial
reporting matters of the Company. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are disclosed on the website of the

Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
and KPMG, the Company’s auditor, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal control and financial reporting matters,
including a review of the annual report for the year ended
31 December 2005.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Management Committee comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping
(Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
Mr. Philip Fan Yan Hok, the General Manager of the
Company, Mr. Huang Chaohua, the Deputy General
Manager of the Company and Mr. Raymond Wong Kam
Chung, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The
Management Committee is the decision-making body for
day-to-day operation and its main duties include performing
the duties assigned by the Board and/or the Executive
Committee as well as exercising the authority and rights
authorized by the same. The general mandate in relation to
the Management Committee in written form has been
established.

M
")

FrZ

EREZEEREH = (DEFRITES
BREAGERLT (BETXR) FEEX
HENSREREEAR EXERE R
EHAREARA 2 S RA AR
AR AR B MM R E =
B AREZZEeNBEXEECH
(NI EEEVE AR

FHEE D RERERADARHS
SEH B D FE BN AR
2B BE A LB
R BRESFL (BEENAATR

FoPTRF A=+ AR

#&%) T—I uT A ©

EHZE

/m
g

I

BEZBGNNK B BB TR N
S (BAEXR) BEEBEBCHBEE.
BB IR A A R T = 1R
FEBEBEER®RAAEEBERET
HIEBREARERTESERS
FHITESLZEGRETNRERITER
I TORENREN - EBLZEER
HEEm—RIERE-

HEXAEBRERAT ZFRAEER




NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS EEgNZESSRNENEEENHE
AND THE ATTENDANCE RATE OF DIRECTORS RE

The following shows the number of regular board meetings and TRETFEARRFTMBIIHNEHESER
committee meetings held during the year as well as the attendance LZEEERRERESERHERE-
rate of each Director.

Attendance rate IR
Executive
Board of Committee Remuneration Audit  Management

Name of Director Directors HTES Committee  Committee Committee

EEpts Ezg £Eg ¥MzEe  ENZEES EEZEE

Mr. Wang Mingquan THERE 2/4 2/3 12 N/A N/A

NEf TNEf

Mr. Zang Qiutao BEEE 4/4 3/3 2/ N/A N/A

TNEm TNEf

Mr. Li Xueming FEREED 3/4 3/3 02 N/A N/A

NEf TNEf

Mr. Chen Xiaoping @ BNFEER 414 3/3 02 N/A 13/13
NEf

Mr. Philip Fan Yan Hok BLEBAE 404 3/3 N/A N/A 13/13
NER TNEf

Mr. Huang Chaohua BHELE 3/4 33 N/A N/A 13/13
NER TNEf

Mr. Raymond Wong Kam Chung ERLE 4/4 3/3 N/A N/A 13/13
NEA TNEf

Mr. Chen Shuang B REE 3/4 2/3 N/A N/A N/A

NEH NEf TNEf

Ms. Zhang Weiyun RERZT 404 33 N/A N/A N/A

NEH TNEf TNEf

Sir David Akers-Jones © BERERTO 2/4 N/A 112 3/3 N/A

TNEf NEf

Mr. Aubrey Li Kwok Sing TEERE 4/4 N/A 212 3/3 N/A

TER TiEA

Mr. Selwyn Mar SRELE 3/4 N/A 1/2 3/3 N/A

NEf NEf

Notes: Btet:

(1) On 31 March 2005, Mr. Li Xueming resigned as a member of (1) RIZEZTRF = A=+—HAZFERLERT
the Remuneration Committee. BEFWEZEEKE-

(2) On 31 March 2005, Mr. Chen Xiaoping resigned as a member (2) RZZEZERF=A=+—HMR/NFEERFT
of the Remuneration Committee and took up the post of RENEZEEKE URRABRETFMNES
Secretary for the Remuneration Committee on the same day. gmiEe

(3) On 31 March 2005, Sir David Akers-Jones was appointed as a (3) RZZEERF=-A=+—HSEREETER
member of the Remuneration Committee. FTMEEEKE-
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Corporate Governance Report &

THE DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES BETWEEN THE
CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should
be separate. The Chairman’s responsibility is to manage the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility is to manage the
Company’s business. The division of responsibilities between the

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer is clearly established.

The responsibilities of the Chairman include the ones set out in the
Code as well as the following:

(a) providing leadership for and overseeing the functioning of
the Board;

(b) formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company;

(c) ensuring that all Directors of the Board are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and giving each Director

an opportunity to express his/her view at board meetings;

(d) ensuring that Directors receive adequate information, which
must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner;

(e) ensuring that the Board works effectively and discharges

its responsibilities;

(f) ensuring that all key and appropriate issues are discussed
by the Board in a timely manner;

(9) drawing up and approving the agenda for each board
meeting taking into account, where appropriate, any matters
proposed by the other directors for inclusion in the agenda,;

(h) taking responsibility for ensuring that good corporate

governance practices and procedures are established;

(i encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead to ensure

that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company;
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THE DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES BETWEEN THE
CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (continued)

0] ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and that views of
shareholders are communicated to the board as a whole;
and

(k) facilitating the effective contribution of Directors and
ensuring constructive relations between Executive Directors
and Non-executive Directors.

The responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer are as follows:

(a) Taking responsibility for the Group’s operation and
management;

(b) Implementing decisions and plans approved by the Board;

(c) Making day-to-day operational and managerial decision;
and

(d) Coordinating overall business operations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent and the Company has
received an annual confirmation of independence from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

All three Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a
term of two years until 31 December 2006, and are subject to
retirement and re-election in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTOR

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors will have the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director to fill a casual vacancy in the
Board, or as an addition to the existing Board. For nomination,
consideration will be made to the qualifications of the nominee.
The Company has not established a nomination committee. During
the year, there was no change to the members of the Board.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted the model code (“Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out therein
during the year ended 31 December 2005.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure shareholder’s interest.
To do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogue with
shareholders to communicate with them and encourage their
participation through annual general meetings or other general
meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Registered shareholders are notified by post for the shareholders’
meetings. The notice of meeting contains the agenda, the proposed
resolutions and a postal voting form.

All registered shareholders are entitled to attend the annual and
extraordinary general meetings, provided that their shares have
been recorded in the Register of Shareholders.

Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting may
complete and return to the Company’s Share Registrar the proxy
form enclosed with the notice of meeting to give proxy to their
representatives, another shareholder or chairman of the meetings.

Procedure for voting by poll has been included in circular of the
Company accompanying notice convening general meeting of the
Company and has been read out by the chairman at the general
meeting of the Company.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

It is the auditors’ responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on their audit, on the Company’s financial statements and
to report their opinion solely to the Company, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the report
of the auditors.

Apart from the provision of annual audit services, KPMG, the
Group’s external auditors, also carried out interim review of the
Group’s results and provided other financial services in compliance
with the requirements under the Listing Rules and the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2005, KPMG, the external auditors
received the following remuneration from the Group in connection
with the provision of audit and non-audit services to the Group:—

Annual audit services FEEZRG
Interim review services EE T B A ARTS
Other services H A AR7S

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has full responsibility for the Group’s internal control
system, which includes the establishment of a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority. The system is designed
to help the achievement of business objectives of the Group,
safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication and
ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulation. The
internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective
internal controls are as follows:

- organizational structure
An appropriate organizational structure is in place with

defined operating policies and procedures as well as
responsibility and lines of authority.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

- Authority and Control

The Executive Directors and senior management are
delegated with respective levels of authorities to carry out
the corporate strategies and policies and the related matters
formulated by the Board.

- Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting

The Group implements budget management, and financial
budget is executed upon approval by the Board. Relevant
procedures have been established to assess, review and
approve major capital and recurrent expenditures, and
regular review and comparison between operating results

and the budget are made.

The Group has established appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure the keeping of accurate and complete
accounting and management records on a timely basis.
Examination and review are carried out regularly to ensure
that the financial statements are properly prepared in
conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles, the Group’s accounting policies and the
applicable laws and regulations.

- Internal Auditing

The Group has regularly conducted internal audit to review
whether the internal control procedures are implemented

appropriately.

Having conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system (including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions), the Board
was of the opinion that the existing internal control system was
effective.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors confirm that they are responsible for the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements.

The Finance Department of the Company is taken charge by the
Qualified Accountant. With the assistance of the Finance
Department, the Directors ensure that the Group’s financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
relevant regulations and applicable accounting principles.

A statement by KPMG, the auditors of the Company, about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is included in the Report of the Auditors on page 85.

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND COMMUNICATION

The Company recognizes the importance of good communications
with shareholders and the investment community. Briefings and
meetings with institutional investors and analysts are conducted
regularly to provide them with up-to-date and comprehensive
information about the Group’s development. Annual and interim
reports offer comprehensive operational and financial performance
information to shareholders and the annual general meeting of the
Company provides a forum for shareholders to exchange views
directly with the Board, which together help enhance and facilitate
communication with shareholders. The Company also maintained
a website (http://www.ebchinaintl.com) which enables
shareholders, investors and the general public to have access to
the information of the Company on a timely basis.

AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

To align with the amendments to the Listing Rules, the Articles of
Association of the Company were amended accordingly and
approved by shareholders at the 2005 Annual General Meeting
held on 18 May 2005. The relevant amendments to the Articles of
Association can be found in the circular to shareholders dated 25
April 2005.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2005.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

China Everbright International Limited (“the Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
and principal place of business at Room 2703, 27th Floor, Far East

Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 17 on the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during
the financial year are set out in note 13 on the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the five largest customers in
aggregate and the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 50% and 39% respectively of the Group’s turnover. For
the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group only had one major
supplier, which provided services for the operation of waste-water

treatment plants.

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital) had any interest
in these major customers and suppliers.
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Report of the Directors
ESERE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In June 2004, Qingdao EB-VW Waste Water Treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Qingdao EB-VW”, a subsidiary of the Company) entered into an
operation and maintenance agreement with Qingdao Veolia Water
Operating Company Limited (“Qingdao Veolia”, an associate of the
Group). Pursuant to the agreement, Qingdao EB-VW will subcontract
to Qingdao Veolia the provision of the operation and maintenance
services in respect of the waste-water treatment plants (“the Plants”)
in Qingdao, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). During the year
ended 31 December 2005, service fee for the operation and
maintenance of the Plants paid to Qingdao Veolia amounted to
HK$18,800,000 (2004: Nil).

In June 2004, Qingdao EB-VW entered into a waste-water treatment
agreement with Qingdao Municipal Drainage Company (“Qingdao
Drainage”, a minority shareholder of Qingdao EB-VW). Pursuant to the
agreement, Qingdao EB-VW will provide waste-water treatment
services and other related services to Qingdao Drainage on an
exclusive basis. During the year ended 31 December 2005, waste-
water treatment revenue received from Qingdao Drainage amounted
to HK$52,423,000 (2004: Nil).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such

transactions were:

- entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the

Group;

- conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third

parties; and

- in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 3 March 2005, Qingdao EB-VW entered into the following contracts
with the subsidiaries of Veolia Water Systems S.A. (“Veolia
Subsidiaries”, which are subsidiaries of a minority shareholder of a

non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group):

(i) The engineering, procurement and construction contract,
pursuant to which, the Veolia Subsidiaries and an independent
third party will design and construct the extension facilities of a
waste-water treatment plant in Qingdao, the PRC (“the Extension

Facilities”).

(ii) The equipment supply contract, pursuant to which, a Veolia
Subsidiary will supply foreign equipment to be used in the
construction of the Extension Facilities.

(iii)  The service contract, pursuant to which, a Veolia Subsidiary
will provide offshore basic design, offshore project management,
other technical services, process guarantee, patent and
proprietary provision to be used in the construction of the
Extension Facilities.

The transactions constituted connected transactions as defined by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”) and were announced by
way of a press announcement by the Company on 9 March 2005.
Details of the transactions have been included in the circular to
shareholders dated 31 March 2005.
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DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

On 26 September 2005, China Everbright Water Investments Limited
(“CE Water Investments”, a subsidiary of the Company) entered into
an asset transfer agreement with Zibo Finance Bureau and Zibo
Environmental Waste Water Treatment Company (“Zibo
Environmental”), pursuant to which, Zibo Finance Bureau and Zibo
Environmental agreed to sell and CE Water Investments, on behalf of
its subsidiary, agreed to acquire waste-water treatment plants at a
total consideration of RMB224,055,000 (equivalent to
HK$214,891,000). The transaction constituted a discloseable
transaction as defined by the Listing Rules and was announced by
way of a press announcement by the Company on 27 September 2005.
Details of the transaction have been included in the circular to
shareholders dated 18 October 2005.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2005 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 87 to 212.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$120,844,000 (2004: HK$86,218,000) have been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK0.6 cent per share (2004: HKO.4 cent per
share) was paid on 31 October 2005. The directors now recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HKO.6 cent per share (2004: HKO.6

cent per share) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2005.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in
note 14 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 29(c) to the financial statements. Shares were
issued during the year on exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year were:
Executive directors

Wang Mingquan, Chairman

Zang Qiutao, Vice-chairman

Li Xueming, Vice-chairman

Chen Xiaoping, Chief Executive Officer

Fan Yan Hok, Philip, General Manager

Huang Chaohua, Deputy General Manager

Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, Chief Financial Officer
Chen Shuang

Zhang Weiyun

Independent non-executive directors

Sir David Akers-Jones
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
Mar Selwyn

In accordance with articles 73, 77, 78 and 79 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr Li Xueming, Mr Huang Chaohua, Mr Wong Kam
Chung, Raymond and Mr Chen Shuang retire from the board at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term until

31 December 2006 and subject to retirement in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association as indicated above.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive of the Company who held office at
31 December 2005 had the following interests in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company, its holding companies,
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) at that date as recorded
in the register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO are as

follows:

(i) Long position in underlying shares of equity derivatives of
the Company

EEZRBEH

2R R S AEAAT B B 1 B 3f A B A B A 2R
TZBRRBAFRE LRBBECEFRL
AR —FARMNEE (—REERER
SN FUIAR L 2 RIEMARTE A 4

EERFETRAERAZRG HE
ROORESBER KR

b/ ZIN/N 7$E¢F?%‘#&Hﬂ‘éﬂ%1§ﬂ%35211%%,%
EERATEFEZESZREETBAE#EZ
BB MRS EA_7?£¢+
:HE+—HEEZ$Qﬂ§$&IKH
BABRZBEARRAR] EZER AR KB
NEIREMBEAR (ERREEFRAEK
Bl) 2 B 1n - ABRERR (D &S AT R 2 1
wmRORB T

(i) RAEAREERDRATETRZ

HRE
Number
of equity Number of
derivatives held underlying
(share options) shares

Nature of BERAE (ordinary shares)
Name of director interest PTETAHA HERHEE Percentage
B RN E (BB R ) ZiER) BAk
Wang Mingquan TRA%E Personal fEA 25,400,000 25,400,000 1.00%
Li Xueming 228 Personal f&A 18,000,000 18,000,000 0.71%
Chen Xiaoping BR/NF Personal fEA 18,000,000 18,000,000 0.71%
Fan Yan Hok, Philip PR Personal fEA 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.39%
Huang Chaohua HEAE Personal f&A 9,000,000 9,000,000 0.35%
Wong Kam Chung, =5 Personal f&A 9,000,000 9,000,000 0.35%
Raymond
Chen Shuang BR 3R Personal f&A 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.16%
Zhang Weiyun RE= Personal {EA 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.16%
Sir David Akers-Jones EREEEL  Personal fAA 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.04%
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 2 Personal fEA 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.04%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(iii) Long position in underlying shares of equity derivatives of
China Everbright Limited (“CEL”), an associated corporation

EERFTETHRAEREZRG 1HE
BRORESERRKE (B)

(i) RAEQXRAZBBRATFELRER
BRAF (EAREZR]) HERG R

of the Company ATETEZHAE
Number

of equity Number of

derivatives held underlying

(share options) shares

Nature of HERAE (ordinary shares)
Name of director interest TETEZE HEBRMDEE Percentage
Espns RERME (R (BER) Bk
Wang Mingquan TR Personal f&A 4,920,000 4,920,000 0.31%
Chen Shuang PR 3% Personal fEA 2,030,000 2,030,000 0.13%

All the above underlying shares of equity derivatives (being unlisted
and physically settled) were beneficially owned by the directors
concerned. The percentage shown was calculated based on the
respective number of issued shares of the Company and CEL as at 31
December 2005.

Further details relating to the options granted to the directors and chief
executive of the Company are set out in the section “Share option
scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors and chief executive of
the Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years
of age has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 26
May 2003 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors
of any company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares
of the Company. The purpose of the scheme is to provide an
opportunity for employees of the Group to acquire an equity
participation in the Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The share option scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years ending on 25 May
2013, after which no further options will be granted.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the
shares, the closing price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant and the
average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant. The options
are exercisable six months (or a later date as determined by the
directors of the Company) after the date on which the options are
granted for a period up to ten years or 25 May 2013, whichever is
earlier.

The total number of securities available for issue under the share option
scheme as at 31 December 2005 was 254,831,170 shares (including
options for 105,400,000 shares that have been granted but not yet
lapsed or exercised) which represented approximately 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at 31 December 2005. In respect
of the maximum entitlement of each participant under the share option
scheme, the number of securities issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant in any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue.

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted when the
letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee
together with a remittance of HK$1 is received within 28 days from the
date of offer. The share option scheme will expire on 25 May 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRAETE (&)

RZZEERF+-A=1+—H XRRES
NAE BRI R AN A R IR0 2 RE AR A R
B TR (R_EERF+-_A=+—H
Z ZTEAE0.3857T) o B RARENAETY
BB RA R BT SR R B R ER T
BB & T ARER R TIEE
ARE—RA RN FERAESB0ITTZE

As at 31 December 2005, the directors and employees of the Company
had the following interests in options to subscribe for shares of the
Company (market value per share at 31 December 2005 was
HK$0.385) granted at nominal consideration under the share option
scheme of the Company. The options are unlisted. Each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.1 of
the Company.

R 2 ER -
No. of
No. of shares Market
options acquired No. of value per Market
outstanding  on exercise options share at value per
atthe of options  outstanding date of share on
beginning during the at the Period during grantof exercise of
of the year year year end which options Exercise options* options*
| ERfE E# are exercisable price RERE BRE
WAz  BREBA  HRGEZ Date granted BRE  pershare BHAH2 fif:d:
BREZE <RHHE BREXR Rk AH LR BRAEE  SRWE  SRWE
Directors
gz
Wang Mingquan THE 12,700,000 - 12,700,000 29 September 29March 2004 HK$0.296 HK$0.296 -
003 t025May2013  B%0206T  %%0.206%
Z%3=F Z2EmE
AR=thR  ZA-thARE
ZE-CF
il e i
12,700,000 - 12,700,000 29 September 29 September 2004 HK$0.296 HK$0.296 -
2003 025 May 2013 EH0.206T 0.6
it e
ARZTAE  AAZThBEZE
“E-CF
il e i
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EFEHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No. of

options

outstanding

at the

beginning

of the year

£4

WAfTEZ

BREHE

524

Li Xueming 9,000,000

9,000,000

RN

Chen Xiaoping 9,000,000

9,000,000

No. of
shares
acquired
on exercise
of options
during the
year
ERfTi
BRERA
ZRGEA

No. of
options
outstanding
at the

year end
ER
WAfTEZ
BREHE

9,000,000

9,000,000

9,000,000

9,000,000

Date granted
RAAH

29 September

2003
o

—TRT—

AAZTNA

29 September
2003
“ET=f

AAZthA

29 September

2003
o

—TT—

NAZTNA

29 September
2003
it

RAZthA

BRESE (@)

Period during
which options
are exercisable
ERE
PAL

29 March 2004
to 25 May 2013
“ZEME
ZA-thRE
“5-ZF
TA-THA

29 September 2004
to 25 May 2013
“TTME
NAZTNEE
—F-c%
BA-tRA

29 March 2004
fo 25 May 2013
“ZENE
ZA-thREZ
“5-ZF
i) I il

29 September 2004
to 25 May 2013
“TEME
NAZTNEE
“3-ZF
BA-tRA

Exercise
price
per share

ERf%RE

HK$0.296
02967

HK$0.296
B0.2967T

HK$0.296
0,267

HK$0.296
0,267

Market
value per
share at
date of
grant of
options*
RERE
RYBHZ
gRME

HK$0.296
750,297

HK$0.296
75150.0967C

HK$0.296
750,297

HK$0.296
75150.0967C

Market
value per
share on

exercise of
options*

BhRE
TR

gRHE
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EFEHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No. of
options
outstanding
at the
beginning
of the year
£4
WAfTEZ
BREHE

Fan Yan Hok, Philp 828 5,000,000

5,000,000

#

ik

e

Huang Chaohua 4,500,000

4,500,000

No. of
shares
acquired No. of
on exercise options
of options  outstanding
during the atthe
year year end
ERfrE ER
BREBA HATEL
ZBRHEE BREHA
- 5,000,000
- 5,000,000
- 4,500,000
- 4,500,000
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Date granted BRE  pershare
RAAH ZER  BROEE
29 September 29 March 2004 HK$0.296
2003 t025May2013  #%0.206T
Z%3=F Z2EmE
AAZthB ZB-tAhBZ
ZE-CF
il s i
29 September 29 September 2004 HK$0.296
003 to25May2013 %0267
—F%= “TTME
ARZTRA  ARZtABEZ
—F-c%
BA-tRA
29 September 29 March 2004 HK$0.296
2003 t025May2013  #%0.206%
Z33=F Z2EmE
AAZthB ZB-tAhBZ
ZE-Zf
RA-THA
29 September 29 September 2004 HK$0.296
003 to25May2013 %0267
—F%= ZTTME
ARZTHRA  ARZtABEZ
“3-ZF
BA-tRA

Market
value per
share at
date of
grant of
options*
RERE
RYBHZ
BRME

HK$0.296
750,297

HK$0.296
75150.0967C

HK$0.296
750,297

HK$0.296
75150.0967C

Market
value per
share on

exercise of
options*

BhRE
TR

gRME
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No. of
options
outstanding
at the
beginning
of the year
£4
WAfTEZ
BREHE

Wong Kam Chung, &5
Raymond

4,500,000

4,500,000

Chen Shuang 3k

2,000,000

2,000,000

No. of
shares
acquired No. of
on exercise options
of options  outstanding
during the atthe
year year end
ERfTi ER
BREBA HATEL
ZBRHHE BREHA
- 4,500,000
- 4,500,000
- 2,000,000
- 2,000,000

BRESE (@)

Period during

which options

are exercisable

Date granted EhE
RAAH PAiL L
29 September 29 March 2004
2003 to 25 May 2013
“Z2%- Z2EmE
iz ey = Y : B o =
ZE-CF

i)z Pl il =

29 September 29 September 2004
2003 to 25 May 2013

ZFT=E ks
AAZTAB AAZTARZ
—F-c%

BA-tRA

29 September 29 March 2004
2003 to 25 May 2013
—%E= “EIQRE
AA-tAB  ZR-fthARZ
Z%-=f%

il Il i

29 September 29 September 2004
2003 to 25 May 2013

—EE= “ZEME
AB=tNE  HB-tABZ
“3-ZE

AR=taA

Market
value per Market
share at value per
date of share on
grantof exercise of
Exercise options* options*
pice  RERE BhE
pershare REAHMz KL
SROEE  BROE* BRTE
HK$0.296 HK$0.296 -
AH0206T #0297
HK$0.296 HK$0.296 -
B%0206T 502967
HK$0.296 HK$0.296 -
A%0296m %0206
HK$0.296 HK$0.296 -
B%0206T 502967
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No. of

options

outstanding

at the

beginning

of the year

£4

WAfTEZ

BREHE

REz

Zhang Weiyun 2,000,000

2,000,000

Sir David ERAET

Akers-Jones

500,000

500,000

No. of
shares
acquired No. of
on exercise options
of options  outstanding
during the atthe
year year end
ERfrE ER
BREBA HATEL
ZBRHEE BREHA
- 2,000,000
- 2,000,000
- 500,000
- 500,000
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Date granted
REAH

29 September

2003
“33=%

—TR

AAZTNA

29 September
2003
it

AAZthA

29 September

2003
“33=%

—TR

AAZTNA

29 September
2003
it

RAZthA

BRESE (@)

Period during
which options
are exercisable
ERE

PA S

29 March 2004
fo 25 May 2013
“ZEME
ZA-thREZ
“5-ZF
TA-THA

29 September 2004
to 25 May 2013
“TTME
NAZTNEE
—F-c%
BA-tRA

29 March 2004
fo 25 May 2013
“ZEME
ZA-thBE
“5-ZF
i) I il

29 September 2004
to 25 May 2013
ZTEME
NAZTNEE
“E-ZF
BA-tRA

Exercise
price
per share

SRi%ERE

HK$0.296
02967

HK$0.296
0.2967T

HK$0.296
02967

HK$0.296
0.2967T

Market
value per
share at
date of
grant of
options*
RERE
RYBHZ
BRME

HK$0.296
750,297

HK$0.296
75150.0967C

HK$0.296
750,297

HK$0.296
75150.0967C

Market
value per
share on

exercise of
options*

BhRE
TR

gRME
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No. of
options
outstanding
at the
beginning
of the year
£4
WAfTEZ
BREHE

Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ~ ZEI2 500,000

500,000

Employees 8 4,500,000

4,500,000

No. of

shares
acquired No. of
on exercise options

of options  outstanding
during the atthe
year year end
ERfrE ER
BREBA HATEL
ZRBEE  BREYUE

= 500,000

= 500,000

(1,500,000) 3,000,000

(1,500,000) 3,000,000

Date granted
RAAH

29 September

2003
“33=%

—TR

AAZTNA

29 September
2003
“ET-F

AAZthA

29 September

2003
“33=%

—TR

AAZTNA

29 September
2003
it

NAZthA

BRETE (&)
Market
value per Market
share at value per
date of share on
Period during grantof exercise of

which options Exercise options* options*
are exercisable pice  RERE BRE
BRE  pershare BHBHZ k2
S SRGEE SRAEr  SRRE

9March2004  HK$0.296  HK$0.296 =
t025May 2013  %%0296  E%0.2067C
“ZEME
ZA-thBEZ
—%3-=%
TA-THA

29 September 2004 HK$0.296 HK$0.296 -
f025May 2013 B%0206w  %%02067
“TTME
ARZTHAZE
—E-CF
il e i

29March2004  HK$0.296  HK$0.296 HKS$0.45
t025May2013  B%0296m  E%0.206T 04T
“ZEME
ZA-thBE
—%-=%
i) I il

29 September 2004 HK$0.296 HK$0.296 HK$0.45

f025May 2013 B%0206m  A¥0206w %0457
“TEME
NAZTNEE
“E-ZF
BA-tRA
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The options granted to the directors are registered under the names
of the directors who are also the beneficial owners. The closing price
of the Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the date of grant
of options was HK$0.29.

*  being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were granted or
exercised, as applicable.

During the year, no option was granted, lapsed or cancelled under

the share option scheme.
SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF CEL
As at 31 December 2005, two directors of the Company had the

following interests in options to subscribe for shares of CEL, which

was granted under the share option scheme of CEL.

No. of options No. of No. of No. of
outstanding options options options
atthe granted lapsed  outstanding
beginning during during atthe

of the year the year the year year end

EQHATE FARLZ FRANZ FAHATE

CERESE BRESE EREZE 2BREYE

Wang Mingquan IHE 6,000,000 - (6,000,000) =
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000

- 1,920,000 - 1,920,000
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BRESE (@)
RYEE2BRENDAEE 2 MBS M

BHENMRSEREBA KRR EBRERRE
BRI R R 2 W ERB10.297T

¥ BIARR A BB R RER L BT
(B Z @A) A RIFT 2 Ik P (B

RANFEERN R SR T WEEM
BRI - B R R 8
KRERZBRETE
R-ZFZRF+-_A=1—B ARAM4%

£ 5 TR B AR R 85
T SRR AR AR B AR M2

Period during Exercise

which options price per

Date granted exercisable share

RYBH EREZGER SRORKE

26 June 2002 27 June 2003 HK$4.36

IRRCE 026 December 2005 BH4.3610
AAZTAR  ZEEZESA-TtHE
“5%1 ﬁﬂ' Az ﬂ'/\ H

7 July 2003 8 July 2004 HK$2.375

S = o7 January 2007 E¥2.3757
tAtA “STMELANRE
“Z2tE-AtA

3 May 2005 4 May 2006 HK$2.85

“ETRE 03May2010  E¥2857
RA=A “E5FRANER
“Z-EF1A=H
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF CEL (continued) FHRERBRETS (&)
No. of options No. of No. of No. of
outstanding options options options
atthe granted lapsed  outstanding
beginning during during at the Period during Exercise
of the year the year the year year end which options price per
EPHAGTE EREEZ  ERXNZ FRERAR Date granted exercisable share
YBREHR BREHR BRELE ZBRELE REAH BREZGER SROKE
Chen Shuang Bisk 750,000 - - 750,000 3 September 2004 4 September 2005 HK$3.225
e £ 1k3 to3March 2008 %3.2257L
nA=A ZESRENANAE
“2E\F=A=H
- 1,280,000 - 1,280,000 3 May 2005 4 May 2006 HK$2.85
“ETRE 03May2010  AE2.85T
TA=A ZEERFRANAE
Z3-SFnA=H

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company, B SRt E SN AR AR ] AN
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party REEA R AR B AR E R
to any arrangement to enable the directors or chief executive of the BRRYESREMLE BEARFZE
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in FAFRITHRABAHEBEAQRISHEM

or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate. HAE ABEE 2 RSB Z M ES Flaso
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ FERRRHEMACERS RAEBR

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND BHREEZERRAR
UNDERLYING SHARES

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the ARREER—FERF+A=+—
Company’s issued shares at 31 December 2005 amounting to 5% or BEEARBIE TR 2B ED T
more of the ordinary shares in issue: AR5 %A £ Z BRERLAT

H
ol
=]

Long position

in ordinary Percentage of total

shares held issued shares

i HEHE BT

LTERHAE BHAEDE

China Everbright Holdings HREE RSB ERAF 1,758,595,910 approximately 69%
Company Limited (“CEH?) (IeREE]) (Htaz) #4969%

(Note)

HEXAEBRERAR —FRAEER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Note: Out of the 1,758,595,910 shares, 1,758,215,910 shares are held by
Guildford Limited (“Guildford”). Guildford is owned as to 55% by Datten
Investments Limited (“Datten”) and the remaining 45% by CEH. Datten
is wholly-owned by CEH. The remaining 380,000 shares are held by
Everbright Investment & Management Limited (“EIM”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CEH. Accordingly, CEH is deemed to be interested in the
1,758,215,910 shares held by Guildford and the 380,000 shares held
by EIM.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have been notified to
the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.
BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and

the Group as at 31 December 2005 are set out in notes 23 and 26(a)
to the financial statements.
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HAXAEEFE Datten B AEEZ
2 &I EB A 7] - H#380,0000% Bl A
SEZ2ENBARNAREETERR
AR ([NAREEEIR]) HBE UL XK
EEWEAEAGuildford a2
1,758,215,91088 B0 R N NI B B2
Fir# 75 2.380,000 % f% 15 °
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FIVEYEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 213 and 214 of the

annual report.
PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on pages
215 and 216 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company provides retirement benefits to all local eligible
employees under an approved defined contribution provident fund
(“the ORSO Scheme”). The ORSO Scheme is administered by trustees,
the majority of which are independent, with its assets held separately
from those of the Company. The ORSO Scheme is funded by
contributions from employees and employers at 5% each based on
the monthly salaries of employees. Forfeited contribution may be used
to reduce the existing level of contribution by the Company.

As from 1 December 2000, the Group also operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and not previously covered by the ORSO Scheme. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
are members of the retirement schemes operated by the local
authorities. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to these schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is the
required contributions under the schemes.

TERERE

AEEBEREMBFEZEEREER
BEMEENFRE_5—T=ZEREZ
B—tHE-

ES

AEBZ TEYEFBFENFRFE B —
THEREZA—+E-

RS

ﬁ“ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁmAﬁﬁﬁéﬁiﬁT

BHRLES ([BERAKETERDIG
iM)%%LWJﬂMWJQEESACK
MNRBIUEFRAN) B - HEEEART
ZEBEDFRA REREIOARBRE
Rt BlEGIGH B SR 2 RI AR E A
5% ° SRUH TR AT AFRIHA R RIR BRI
Z MR

E—%%%¢+—H—E@¢E@Wmﬁ
BREGEAESTEEHNAXEEER
16 B1%E EHE%K@%E%iLW+ﬂM
PlsrElN 2 E B IR E R I E 5 S
(MaEestall) BT REBELE
FEABE 2 ERMHFRAETEBiRRES
T2 EERIEE S BARG SR HK
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%*ﬁ%%kﬁﬁz
PR &% 20,0007T °

REARKNBNRBARZREHSE
WEFE EZLWﬁ%&%WEA IR
BTHecrmTEDLR EAFSELH
FepUEABME ARE2E—BER
R FFTEEH IR K-
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES (continued)

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to income
statement during the year ended 31 December 2005 amounted to
HK$1,146,000.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independent pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

A resolution for the reappointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company

is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
Wang Mingquan

Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2006
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Report of the Auditors
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 87 to 212 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, that judgements and estimates are made which are
prudent and reasonable and that the reasons for any significant
departure from applicable accounting standards are stated.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

HPBEAEARBEBERABEFRR
R ET R & E
(REB AL HR L E])

AAZEE AT T8 [H 1)) BB TIRE
NTEREEF AT -AEREELRR
St RAGHNTBRE

ESREBANEE

FR(ABRFRIDREESTARAUABEMND
AWM BEHRR -ERBEELYBHRRE B
EVAEBBERBAENG B FLER
K& BOHE MG LR AEMNEXNSBE
AR e ERMRE -

BB ERBRERFIBZTENGER B
BUMBHRARELB IR LIRRELE
(RTMEDD FAAEHRTE  ERERR
WEFRULASN RAIMBEE T BIEE
- R AREENAR HE
AEMATR B AR EER T
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BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide
us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2005 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2006
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Consolidated Income Statement

HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE—FEAF+-A=+—-HILFE (LUE¥HE)

Turnover
Direct costs and operating expenses

Other revenue

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Valuation gains on investment properties

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Share of profits
Share of valuation gains on investment properties

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year
Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

Profit for the year

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the year:
Interim dividend declared during the year
Final dividend proposed after the balance

sheet date

Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

The notes on pages 96 to 212 form part of these financial statements.
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&

HtpA
TRER
HEtEegR
REMERGERS

TERA
PBER

FrEBE A RRE
FriG &R
Pt EMEHERS

BRBLAI B A
e

FEERA
Bz
AARBE
DU
FEERA
BRA AL ARKZ
FEERE:
FREERFIRE

HERREZZEDIK
RERE

BREF

AR

Note
it i

3&13

14

5(a)

7(a)

10& 29
29
29

11

12

BRENTREEF AT _BEZHEIREEHBRER 2 —HH-

2005 2004
—ETRE —ETONF
(restated)

(E#H)

$°000 $000

T Fir
133,823 65,244
(43,161) (14,755)
90,662 50,489
12,413 4,603
(55,284) (35,463)

= (6,097)

25,230 14,790
73,021 28,322
(32,090) (27,614)
40,931 708
68,045 80,888

= 4,294

108,976 85,890
11,868 328
120,844 86,218
105,330 86,776
15,514 (558)
120,844 86,218
15,311 10,193
15,311 15,293
30,622 25,486
4.13 centsfll 3.41 centsfll
4.07 centsfll 3.35 centsfll

FEEABERAERAE ZRFAFER




Consolidated Balance Sheet

GEEERRER

At 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-EZEEF+ZA=1+—H (UBEFE)

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

— Investment properties

— Other property, plant and
equipment

— Interest in leasehold land
held for own use under
operating leases

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Interest in associates
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Pledged bank deposits

Deposits with bank

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Secured bank loans
Amounts due to minority
shareholders
Creditors, other payables
and accrued expenses
Current taxation

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities carried forward
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A DB SRR
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RBEEFHR

REERRD
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Note
W&t

14(a)

15
16
18
19
27(b)

20
21

22

23
24

25
27(a)

$°000
Fr

109,023
89,197
907
408,566

607,693

40,227
575

233,219
2,138

276,159

2005
—EERE

$°000 $'000

Fr Fr
262,194
1,163,052
76,045
1,501,291
34,433
48,236
413,304
51,931
16,832
2,066,027

49,911

6,912

5,854

572,358

635,035

62,450

7,962

18,123

98

88,633
331,534
2,397,561

2004
—EEWEEF
(restated)
(EH)

$'000

FIir

230,054

658,338

888,392
45,453

435,479
46,462

1,415,786

546,402

1,962,188



Consolidated Balance Sheet

GEEERRER

At 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-EZEEF+ZA=1+—H (UBEFE)

2005 2004
—EZARF —EEEEF
(restated)
(E#)
Note $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
iogz3 Fr Fr Frr Fir
Total assets less current BEERRE
liabilities brought forward 8 &R 2,397,561 1,962,188
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Secured bank loans BHEARITER 23 572,016 304,838
Loans from ultimate holding RESTER A A]
company B3 26(a) 535,628 545,206
Amount due to ultimate holding & SAERL
company INSERE] 26(b) - 9,186
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBEE 27(b) 20,732 20,822
1,128,376 880,052
NET ASSETS BEFRH 1,269,185 1,082,136
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRA R 29(a)
Share capital ey 255,181 254,881
Reserves {1 921,676 824,061
Total equity attributable to AR RREL
equity shareholders of the A
Company 1,176,857 1,078,942
Minority interests DERRES 92,328 3,194
TOTAL EQUITY BHERE 1,269,185 1,082,136

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2006
EEeR _EEANF=RA -+ /\B&AERFFA T

Chen Xiaoping Philip Fan Yan Hok
SN B

Director Director

£2F £2F

The notes on pages 96 to 212 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

b, £

EEBRR

At 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-EZEEF+ZA=1+—H (UBEFE)

2005 2004
—ZEThHF —ETNF
Note $°000 $’000 $'000 $000
i &t Fr Fr Fir Fir
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment  ¥13 BE K% 14(b) 1,314 897
Interest in subsidiaries MB A RlkEs 17 978,225 713,526
Interest in associates B N AR 18 205,199 205,199
Other financial assets Hin B EE 19 13,649 13,649
1,198,387 933,271
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits Ho A fEUGRIE
and prepayments Be RIENRIE 8,853 22,279
Cash and cash equivalents B RREEEY 22 228,407 444,003
237,260 466,282
Current liabilities nBaE
Secured bank loans BEIPIRITER 23 31,429 62,429
Other payables and accrued ~ HEEMZIAR
expenses fEsTE A 22,187 6,943
53,616 69,372
Net current assets RBEERE 183,644 396,910
Total assets less current BEER
liabilities mEEE 1,382,031 1,330,181
Non-current liabilities *RBAE
Secured bank loans BHERBITER 23 30,536 36,964
Loans from ultimate holding oSt WNE]
company =57 26(a) 440,480 451,705
Amount due to ultimate A S AR AE R
holding company NAIFIA 26(b) - 8,559
471,016 497,228
NET ASSETS EERE 911,015 832,953
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Balance Sheet

b, £

EEBRR

At 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-EZEEF+ZA=1+—H (UBEFE)

2005 2004
—EEEF —2EWF
Note $°000 $°000 $000 $000
B et Fr Fr Fir Fr

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRA K #E 29(b)
Share capital AR 255,181 254,881
Reserves {1 655,834 578,072
TOTAL EQUITY AR 911,015 832,953

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2006
EEeRN T AF A+ N\BZAERFATET

Chen Xiaoping Philip Fan Yan Hok
BR /N B

Director Director

£2F £2F

The notes on pages 96 to 212 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

u‘“%%ﬁ%i’]%

For the year ended 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—ZTZRF+-A=1—HLEFE (UEBEFTE)

Total equity at 1 January:
Attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company

(as previously reported
at 31 December)

Minority interests (as previously
presented separately in the

income statement)

Opening balance adjustments

arising from changes in
accounting policies

At 1 January, after opening
balance adjustments

Net income recognised
directly in equity:

Share of capital reserve of
associate

Share of exchange reserves of

associates
Exchange differences on
translation of financial

statements of subsidiaries

and associates
Changes in fair value of

available-for-sale securities

Net income for the year

recognised directly in equity

Net profit for the year:
Attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company

(as previously reported)

Minority interests (as previously
presented separately in the

income statement)

Net profit for the year
Capital reserve realised on
liquidation of subsidiary

Exchange reserve realised on
disposal of subsidiary and

associate

MR—B—BzEREHE:

2R A B e AL BB 1D
(AT +=A
=+—HZ2®)

DHRR R
(AT EER

NHEH)

BHEKRDH X
P

R—A—R el
P ER AR

EENMERRRZ
LN ¢
FinBEE DB AN

PRGBS R BINE S

BEKE AR L
AR REELE
ZIEHER

FEFFLAEZ

29

BEENESER L
RERWNFE

AEEFRA:
ARBIRREMH D
(FnFT2#)

DHRR R
(RTERERT

NHER)

AREZFEF]
MEBARBERMER
ZEAGHE
HEMEAT &
BEnmmERL
I 5L

Total recognised income and FAEEEEIBRAR

expense for the year
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Note
Jiogz3

29

29
29

29

29

29

29

29

29

29

29

29

2005

—EERFE

$°000 $°000

Fr F
1,078,942
3,194
1,082,136
(2,662)

1,079,474

9,598

8,868

8,811

27,277

120,844

148,121

$000
Fr

1,000,396

1,000,396

86,776

(558)

2004
—ETmF
(restated)
(ER)

$'000

T

1,000,396

905

802

1,471

3,178

86,218

(555)



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
M‘é%ﬁ%ﬁ&%%éb%%

For the year ended 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—ZTZRF+-A=1—HLEFE (UEBEFTE)

2005 2004
ZEERF —ZEEMF
(restated)
(E%®)
Note $°000 $°000 $'000 $000
liog=z3 Fi Fi Fir FIr
Attributable to: FEIGER A -
- equity shareholders of the —ARRAIRE
Company 130,293 88,591
— minority interests —LH R FEER 17,828 (558)
148,121 88,033
Dividends declared: BIRARE:
— by Company to equity —ARBEATRE
shareholders (30,604) (10,193)
— by non-wholly owned —F2EHEAR
subsidiary to minority SRTOERR
shareholder (575) (566)
(31,179) (10,759)
Movements in equity arising B2 T RRETT
from capital transactions ARG MELE
with equity shareholders ZEREE:
of the Company:
Shares issued under share RS2
option scheme BT 29 888 148
Movements in equity arising FZ2EH B A RIHE
from transactions between HOBRRET
non-wholly owned REMEEZ
subsidiaries and their EREE:
minority shareholders:
Acquisition of non-wholly W2 BB AR
owned subsidiary 29 - 38
Capital contributions received ~ JE2EB A
by non-wholly owned WE D R R &
subsidiaries from minority
shareholders 29 71,881 4,280
71,881 4318
Total equity at 31 December R+=—A=+—HZ
ERBE 1,269,185 1,082,136

The notes on pages 96 to 212 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE—FSAF+-A=+—-HILFE (LUE¥HE)

Operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

- Valuation gains on investment properties

— Depreciation

- Amortisation of land lease premium

- Amortisation of intangible assets

— Amortisation of positive goodwill

- Finance costs

— Interest income

— Share of profits of associates

— Share of valuation gains on investment
properties of associates

— Gain on liquidation of subsidiary

— Net gain on sale of fixed assets

- Foreign exchange loss/(gain)

Operating profit before changes in
working capital

Increase in amounts due from associates

Decrease/(increase) in debtors, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments

(Decrease)fincrease in amounts due to
minority shareholders

Increase/(decrease) in creditors, other payables

and accrued expenses
Decrease in amount due to ultimate holding
company

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Interest paid

Interest received

People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) income
tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

geEy

BRER A 2

ECES

- REMEGERHS

—-E

-t EE RSN

- BV EESH

—FRAEHH

-HBER
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—FribBE AR AN

—FriEBERRRE
NEHBERR

—M B~ RERAS K

—HEREEERSF R

—EXBE (K&)

LELSBBAZ
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FEMREE & X B SRIRIE AN
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BAHR0RR /(1)
D BRRHE
(). /8
AR AR
AT BRI (52)
B AR A
e O

REEE/ BA) 2RE

ERHE

E A S

ENREARKME
([RE) st

RETHEE (BA) 2
RERE

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report

2005 2004
—EERf —ETONEF
Note $°000 $000
fif &t FT Fr
108,976 85,890
(25,230) (14,790)
22,293 15,168
283 -
115 =
= 1,881
32,090 27,614
(9,072) (1,148)
(68,045) (80,888)
- (4,294)
= (555)
(587) (37)
2,304 (2,127)
63,127 26,714
= (8,442)
10,011 (32,802)
(7,962) 627
34,235 (50,711)
= (55)
99,411 (64,669)
(50,853) (56,208)
9,072 1,148
(2,610) (1,117)
55,020 (120,846)



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—ZTZRF+-A=1—HLEFE (UEBEFTE)

2005 2004
—EEEE —TTWF
Note $°000 $'000
&t Fr Fr
Investing activities RETH
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets EEETEEFUR (370,449) (6,189)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEBTEEMSHE 2,845 98
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits BIEARRITER (32 m) /
i (82,285) 864
Decrease/(increase) in deposits with bank BITEFORD,/ () 4,947 (4,956)
Payment for purchase of associates EEHE DR A - (575)
Payment for purchase of business, fE B 275 2 0B (FRRUkEE
net of cash acquired i e) 31 (99,883) -
Payment for purchase of subsidiaries, EENBAR IR
net of cash acquired (InkkEmEHRS) - (12,025)
Proceeds from sale of associates HEBE DR FTE B - 489,229
Dividend received from associate B HNET 5 99,818 98,798
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing BRETH (BA) EEZ
activities BEFH (445,007) 565,244
Financing activities &S
Proceeds from new bank loans HMERT EFETSFA 328,971 161,713
Repayment of bank loans ERBITER (88,735) (159,719)
Proceeds from new loans from ultimate iR SIER A RIER
holding company FriS5IA - 9,425
Repayment of loans from ultimate holding EEFKERARER
company (9,425) (42,364)
Capital contributions received by non-wholly F2ENBARRRDE
owned subsidiaries from minority shareholders RERLE 24,277 4,280
Proceeds from shares issued under share option ~ 1RIEBEMIERT 212547 (D
scheme FriS5IA 888 148
Dividend paid to equity shareholders of the BAADEIRERS
Company (30,604) (10,193)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMETBEL (BA)
financing activities ZEEFE 225,372 (36,710)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BERESEEY (RD) /Em
cash equivalents BE (164,615) 407,688
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B-RzBRLREEEEY 572,358 164,115
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes Exgnye 823 555
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RT=A=t+—-Hz2
RERBREEEY 22 408,566 572,358

The notes on pages 96 to 212 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are effective or available for early adoption
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2005. Information on the changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these new and revised
HKFRSs for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements is provided in
note 2.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2005 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in associates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set
out below:

- investment property (see note 1(g)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-

sale securities (see note 1(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary, in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is a company in which the Group,
directly or indirectly, holds more than half of the issued
share capital or controls more than half of the voting
power or controls the composition of the board of
directors. Subsidiaries are considered to be controlled
if the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to
govern the financial and operating policies, so as to
obtain benefits from their activities.

An investment in a controlled subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control

ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests at the balance sheet date, being the
portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to
equity interests that are not owned by the Company,
whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet and
statement of changes in equity within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for
the year between minority interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the minority,
are charged against the Group’s interest except to the
extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and
is able to, make additional investment to cover the losses.
If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s
interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has
been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses
(see note 1(k)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the associate’s net assets, unless it is classified
as held for sale. The consolidated income statement
includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the associates for the year, including any
impairment loss on goodwill relating to the investments
in associates recognised for the year (see note 1(e)
and (k)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal and
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in
the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(k)), unless it is classified as held for sale.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment of associates over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 1(k)). In
respect of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill
is included in the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report

FESEE (B

(d)

(e)

BE AT (&)

AR E HEE 2 EEBAE
REEE N Rl 2 s BIARSE
ErEZBEEREST BRA
SETHZBE A REEE
ENMHETEE TR RS
RRMER A RON BARER
HAibEsiE-pitm s AEE
B N B 2 e AR R AE
mEHEMBZRERE
B ERERER S R
ERNAZIREFHEE AR
HifE R o

REBEREBENRIMZR
SIBH 2 REREEHTT
REE 2B A RIS F
- HEMARSRFEEREHD
EREAENREEL BIZA
SN AEBE R PR

RRARIZEEBBRA R
Bt N R 2 A BIRKAE
WEFEEE (RME—
(k) FIER B EREIREDR
WIERFEIRERIRRIN

]

BEAAEASIRERE
DA Z RANBRA S BRI
REBEZAIHBIEE A
BEMRBREZRAAZH

P BIREAMER R EHERE
BIR-BERIERRS
HEBN WRESFERE
AR (RHIRE—(K)) ~BLEgE &
RAME BB ZREES
BEREE QRS RE
BRe-



Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Goodwill (continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate
during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or
loss on disposal.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries
and associates, are as follows:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets and are initially stated at fair value. At
each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
with any resulted gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(Kk)).-

Other investments in securities are classified as
available-for-sale securities and are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised directly in equity, except for
impairment losses (see note 1(k)). When these
investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

(h)

Other investments in equity securities (continued)

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/
sell the investments.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at
fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 1(s)(iii).

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see note 1(u)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong

dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items

of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated

residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

toll bridge is depreciated on an units-of-usage
basis which is based on the actual traffic volume
for a particular period over the projected total
traffic volume throughout the periods for which
the Group is granted the right to operate the
bridge. The projected total traffic volume is based
on independent professional traffic studies. It is
a Group policy to compare the yearly actual traffic
volume with the projected traffic volume.
Appropriate adjustments will be made should
actual volume be materially different from that
projected;

buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

- other fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

Toll bridge ancillary facilities 5to 10 years

Waste-water treatment 20 years

infrastructure

Machinery and equipment 51to 15 years

Leasehold improvements 10 years or over
the remaining
term of the
lease, if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 5to 10 years

Motor vehicles, electronic 3to 12 years

equipment and other
fixed assets

No depreciation is provided in respect of

construction in progress.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) —. TESEE #)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Amortisation of waste-water treatment concession right

is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

its estimated useful life of 25 years. Both the period and

method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

(i)

BREE (BEKRN) (&)

THIKBR IR RS TR S 2 B
WEAREN AT R ERFH
“tHRFAFABRR %
W LRI e TR

(i) Leased assets () HEEE
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) HETAEEZ EE
Z DM
Assets that are held by Group under leases which NEERBEHERE

transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ZEE MEPBAX
AR AR KR
MEIBBEEASH
ZHE FOBRE

ownership to the Group are classified as BHE-TEEBE
operating leases, with the following exception: ANEBDEBRE 2R
KAz TASE 2
ENNBRRKENR

Land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured

separately from the fair value of a building situated

B ETIRERRIN:

REBEQEHERER
Rzt ERARE
TEESERRT AR SR

thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted EERNE FrEEY
for as being held under a finance lease, unless ZARESHEE"
the building is also clearly held under an EERMEHEANR:
operating lease. For these purposes, the BB R T e
inception of the lease is the time that the lease BIRCEHERER
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over BRIBRSNFLLETT S -
from the previous lessee, or at the date of IR EREAREE
construction of those buildings, if later. BRG] M &R -3

B RIEAGE AR W

SRRy EER

(I RBOB 2 ) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(i) Leased assets (continued) () HEEE (&)
(i) Assets acquired under finance leases (i)  WREREHEBAZ
Where the Group acquires the use of assets under B AR E AR A
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair ERGEEFREL

value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Company or Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 1(h). Impairment losses
are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 1(k). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R RM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(i) Leased assets (continued) ) HEEE (&)

(i) Operating lease charges (i)  AEEHESZ L
Where the Group has the use of assets under NBASBEERLE
operating leases, payments made under the HERREEZE
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal g BRI E R
instalments over the accounting periods covered 2 REER SRR
by the lease term, except where an alternative HE st HRENR:
basis is more representative of the pattern of NEE ST AER
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. K ENEHME
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit AR B it R AR AR
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net EEEMESE 2 W
lease payments made. R RIBRAN A8 &

B Kk R
iR ERERT
TR REE T
B2 AR
The cost of acquiring land held under an BIFCERERFF 2
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line b2 YHE R AR TR
basis over the period of the lease term except MAHAR A B AR A
where the property is classified as an investment $H MR YMES R
property. RIREMERIBR SN
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(k)  Impairment of assets (k) EEHSE
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and ()  RAEFRERAM
other receivables JEYWKIA < 718
Investments in equity securities and other current R AN B S SE A AR
and non-current receivables that are stated at SRR B AR ER AR R A
cost or amortised cost or are classified as BRH L BRAEBEHK
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at each & REMTEEIETR
balance sheet date to determine whether there FENGRIA SR
is objective evidence of impairment. If any such EEBEITRE A
evidence exist, any impairment loss is determined HE B S R EREME
and recognised as follows: BFEIR - NF R
FiER AleEE
REREEBREN
T
= For current receivables that are carried at = IR AN B
cost, the impairment loss is measured as HI| BR 2 7% B
the difference between the carrying FE W SR IE T
amount of the financial asset and the = HEEEE
estimated future cash flows, discounted LB EE
at the current market rate of return for a Z R E B B
similar financial asset where the effect of % 48 LBt 7%
discounting is material. Impairment losses BE BT
for current receivables are reversed if in a % B ¥ &=
subsequent period the amount of the Ah3R (ZRBLIR
impairment loss decreases. HEEKN)
FF 2 R
EMELZE
BEETE W
HEHHERE
BEEEZ2
R Bl
&) fE Y 5018
ZiEEEE
Al T4l
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(k)  Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEEE B
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and ()  RAEFRERAM
other receivables (continued) JE W 5k 18 2 FE 1B
(#&)
For financial assets carried at amortised = W AR 8 K
cost, the impairment loss is measured as KI|ER 2 B
the difference between the asset’s carrying BEEMS
amount and the present value of estimated FIEEEZ
future cash flows, discounted at the BEZER
financial asset’s original effective interest B #IR B 7%
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate BE&YNZ
computed at initial recognition of these EREAIZ (B
assets). It E 8B EK
]t 3R B 5T

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised

in prior years.

ERBEZE
BRA =) fh5t
ZARERE
mEREZ
ERATE

i 70 EL 12 23
FFEEER
8B TR
CANLIES
Hh B2 7 R A
BERRE
EZ2EHE
B AR
BERESR
B8 853K ot
PR [0 2
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RREEE
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BB EE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) —. TFESTBE#)
(k)  Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEEE B
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and ()  RAEFRERAM
other receivables (continued) JE W 5k 18 2 FE 1B
(#)

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in equity is removed from equity
and is recognised in profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised
directly in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(k)  Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEEE B
(i) Impairment of other assets (i)  EMEEZFERE

Internal and external sources of information are TEEeREGEEE

reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify HEBINED RN

indications that the following assets may be SER LAREE T3
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an BERS HBFAREL
impairment loss previously recognised no longer FRIE R FEEE

exists or may have decreased: BB ERE R

D (FFZBRAN) -
- property, plant and equipment (other than = L EN =N
properties carried at revalued amounts); =i (REM
BEINEZ
/eI IE
= intangible assets; = EAE:

- investments in subsidiaries and associates - NG
(except for those classified as being held K B & R 7]
for sale); and 2B (Hn

BREEE
BRON) K

= goodwill. = FEESE

If any such indication exists, the asset’s fish 3R 1E 7] 5% & B

recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for 5 BB EE 2 I

goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated O] SRR TR otk

annually whether or not there is any indication of SN SRETBRM S B

impairment. WEHESGF (AT

(TimB & HIRFEE
PR °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R RM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.

N Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments
are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(k)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts (see note 1(k)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
cost and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses

Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(p) Employee benefits (p) EEEF

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions (i) FEAE S 1E M N ERE
to defined contribution plans Vs G257
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, Fie FEALFE
contributions to defined contribution plans and B R EREMEHR
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in R TR IERER
the year in which the associated services are Mz RN EE R
rendered by employees. Where payment or SRR FER
settlement is deferred and the effect would be R o s B < ROE RE 1T
material, these amounts are stated at their present EREAD R B
values. HFEARARET

(i) Share-based payments (i) KRG EN

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant

RERFEREZA
RESHRF/EIN
R-MEERZANZE
AR 238

date using the binomial lattice model, taking into e RAETIERRAZ
account the terms and conditions upon which the T B AR - 4
options were granted. Where the employees have =R IR 2 15

to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) —. TESEE #)

(p)  Employee benefits (continued) (p) 1EEFEF &)

(i) Share-based payments (continued) (i) HUBRHEN (&)
During the vesting period, the number of share A RRERA - (5T AT
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any SR RIS g
adjustment to the cumulative fair value {EH IR AT - BRIER K
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to METSZHNAREE
the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless Rz ER BEIE
the original employee expenses qualify for AR EEFHERZZR
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding T ARE L FHRIAETE
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting RETFAN L Bamks
date, the amount recognised as an expense is A B WEE
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share NFE B IERER R -
options that vest (with a corresponding LB BRIERE
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where REEFFE E UGS
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting SRR B SR AR AN
conditions that relate to the market price of the NEIEH 2 TER
Company’s shares. The equity amount is B SRR R
recognised in the capital reserve until either the L BRRIR AR AR
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the ZEREHB ERAE
share premium account) or the option expires (WAE B A REEIERR
(when it is released directly to retained profits). JERE) Hme T

EEAFEETER
BEXEREEITR
(BRE=RHRE
AR) - Sk AR R fE M
(EEEBAREBR
M) Blke

(q9) Income tax () FIsH

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which
case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or

AEFEMASHERARHE
FMBERRREERBEE
B AR RRLEREE
ENABZEHHERER
MEERR - HEAN R B3 () 2 AN Hf
BMREMEEHAEENAE

P RE RN RERT
HER < RB B AZED
RN B R M 2 FE AR

RETRIR IR AT E FER
WA AREE B ERAE

substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and T YRR E o FELARE
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous SR RAEAEEAEE
Y, ERMBIE Y B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Income tax (continued)

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of

the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Toll bridge revenue

Toll bridge revenue, net of business tax, is

recognised on usage of the bridge.

(i) Waste-water treatment revenue

Waste-water treatment revenue is recognised

when the waste-water treatment process has

been completed.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Revenue recognition (continued)

FTEETHE (B

(s)

WAFER ()

(i) Rental income from operating leases (i) HEHEEFEZHE
WA
Rental income receivable under operating leases BIFLEHERK 2
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments e WA R E F 5
over the periods covered by the lease term, FrlE 2 &st AR
except where an alternative basis is more SHEEEEREKR
representative of the pattern of benefits to be R MRIEF S —HE
derived from the use of leased asset. Lease FRAXEAEESR
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss EFfEEZ2HNZm 2R
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease o B R H 2 HE R
payments receivable. REHEXRPRRER
1% T UEL 2 4 7H & 5K
T HERR) — 15
(iv)  Property management fee and environmental (iv) VEEEERIRIRE
protection project management and consultancy B & EIA R BN
fee income
Property management fee and environmental MEEIRE RIRIRIE
protection project management and consultancy BEREBAMERA
fee income are recognised when the related T4 (48 7 AR 75 s
services are rendered. e
(v)  Dividends (v) RE
Dividend income from unlisted investments is FLEMRE KRB
recognised when the shareholder’s right to A 5 8 P ER 1 37 W R

receive payment is established.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

®)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(vi)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised directly in a separate component of equity.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation
acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated at the
foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to

get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditures for
the asset are being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

interrupted or complete.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties
are considered to be related to the Group if the Group
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party
or exercise significant influence over the party in making
financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where
the Group and the party are subject to common control
or common significant influence. Related parties may
be individuals (being members of key management
personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close
family members) or other entities and include entities
which are under the significant influence of related
parties of the Group where those parties are individuals,
and post-employment benefit plans which are for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is
a related party of the Group.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format and
geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial
statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to that segment. For example, segment assets may
include trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between
group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available to
other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax
balances, corporate and financing expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2005.

The accounting policies of the Group and/or Company after
the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs have been
summarised in note 1. The following sets out information on the
significant changes in accounting policies for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 38).

(a) Amortisation of positive and negative goodwill
(HKFRS 3, Business combinations and HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets)

In prior periods:

- positive or negative goodwill which arose prior to
1 January 2001 was taken directly to reserves at
the time it arose, and was not recognised in the
income statement until disposal or impairment of

the acquired business;

- positive goodwill which arose on or after 1
January 2001 was amortised on a straight line
basis over its useful life and was subject to
impairment testing when there were indications
of impairment; and
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Amortisation of positive and negative goodwill
(HKFRS 3, Business combinations and HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets) (continued)

- negative goodwill which arose on or after 1
January 2001 was amortised over the weighted
average useful life of the depreciable/amortisable
non-monetary assets acquired, except to the
extent it related to identified expected future
losses as at the date of acquisition. In such cases
it was recognised in the income statement as

those expected losses were incurred.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36, the Group has changed its
accounting policies relating to goodwill. Under the new
policy, the Group no longer amortises positive goodwill
but tests it at least annually for impairment. Also with
effect from 1 January 2005 and in accordance with
HKFRS 3, if the fair value of the net assets acquired in a
business combination exceeds the consideration paid
(i.e. an amount arises which would have been known as
negative goodwill under the previous accounting policy),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
it arises. Further details of these new policies are set out

in note 1(e).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Amortisation of positive and negative goodwill
(HKFRS 3, Business combinations and HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets) (continued)

The new policy in respect of the amortisation of positive
goodwill has been applied prospectively in accordance
with the transitional arrangements under HKFRS 3. As a
result, comparative amounts have not been restated, the
cumulative amount of amortisation as at 1 January 2005
has been offset against the cost of the goodwill and no
amortisation charge for goodwill has been recognised
in the income statement for the year ended 31 December
2005. This has increased the Group’s profit after taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2005 by $2,442,000.

Also in accordance with the transitional arrangements
under HKFRS 3, goodwill which had previously been
taken directly to reserves (i.e. goodwill which arose
before 1 January 2001) will not be recognised in profit
or loss on disposal or impairment of the acquired
business, or under any other circumstances.

According to HKFRS 3, the amount which would have
been known as negative goodwill under the previous
accounting policy is recognised immediately in the
income statement as it arises. The carrying amount of
negative goodwill existing at 1 January 2005 shall be
derecognised, with a corresponding adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits. These have
decreased the Group’s profit after taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2005 by $50,000 and net assets of
the Group at 31 December 2005 have increased by
$630,000.
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2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Financial instruments (HKAS 32, Financial
instruments: Disclosure and presentation and HKAS
39, Financial instruments: Recognition and

measurement)

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKAS 32 and HKAS 39, the Group has changed its
accounting policies relating to financial instruments to

those as set out in notes 1(f), (k) to (n).

In prior years, equity investments held on a continuing
basis for an identifiable long-term purpose were
classified as investment securities and stated at cost
less provision. Other investments in securities (including
those held for trading and for non-trading purposes) were
stated at fair value with changes in fair value recognised

in profit or loss.

With effect from 1 January 2005, and in accordance with
HKAS 39, all investments, with the exception of securities
held for trading purposes, dated debt securities being
held to maturity and certain unquoted equity investments,
are classified as available-for-sale securities and carried
at fair value. Changes in the fair value of available-for-
sale securities are recognised in equity, unless there is
objective evidence that an individual investment has
been impaired. Further details of the new policies are
set out in note 1(f).
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2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial instruments (HKAS 32, Financial
instruments: Disclosure and presentation and HKAS
39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement) (continued)

The changes in accounting policies were adopted by
way of an opening balance adjustment to retained
earnings as at 1 January 2005 and net assets of the
Group have decreased by $3,342,000. Comparative
amounts have not been restated as this is prohibited by
the transitional arrangements in HKAS 39.

As a result of these new policies, there is no material
impact on the Group’s profit before taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2005 and net income recognised
directly in equity for the year ended 31 December 2005
has increased by $8,811,000.

Employee share option scheme (HKFRS 2, Share-
based payment)

In prior years, no amounts were recognised when
employees (which term includes directors) were granted
share options over shares in the Company. If the
employees chose to exercise the options, the nominal
amount of share capital and share premium were
credited only to the extent of the option’s exercise price
receivable.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKFRS 2, the Group has adopted a new policy for
employee share options. Under the new policy, the
Group recognises the fair value of such share options
as an expense with a corresponding increase recognised
in a capital reserve within equity.
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2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Employee share option scheme (HKFRS 2, Share-
based payment) (continued)

The Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions set out in HKFRS 2 under which the new
recognition and measurement policies have not been

applied to the following grants of options:

(a) all options granted to employees on or before
7 November 2002; and

(b) all options granted to employees after
7 November 2002 but which had vested before
1 January 2005.

As the Group’s options were granted to employees after
7 November 2002 but which had vested before 1 January
2005, the adoption of HKFRS 2 has no impact on the
Group’s net assets and results for the current and prior

years.

Details of the employee share option scheme are set
out in report of the directors and note 28.
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2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Investment property (HKAS 40, Investment property

and HK(SIC) Interpretation 21, Income taxes —

Recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets)

Changes in accounting policies relating to investment

properties are as follows:

(i)

Timing of recognition of movements in fair value
in the income statement

In prior years movements in the fair value of the
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Group’s investment property were recognised WEMFEZ A A
directly in the investment property revaluation BEENREMEE

reserve except when, on a portfolio basis, the
reserve was insufficient to cover a deficit on the
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portfolio, or when a deficit previously recognised R B A SERZ AR
in the income statement had reversed, or when BZEBR HERD
an individual investment property was disposed RSP ERZE

of. In these limited circumstances movements in
the fair value were recognised in the income
statement.

Upon adoption of HKAS 40 as from 1 January
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REMEDHE It
ERREZEBHAE
R AER -

R_TETRE—F—

2005, the Group has adopted a new policy for BN CEBSEE
investment property. Under this new policy, all B 55405%1% A" &
changes in the fair value of investment property BN T BEEED
are recognised directly in the profit or loss in AR AR B FT
accordance with the fair value model in HKAS BE REMEIR
40. Further details of the new policy for investment BZRBEZESHEIK

property are set out in note 1(g).

(BB EANE
405k 2 AL EER
BEERBZRTE
R WL I E W EEFTIR
RZE—HERFR
MEE—(q) °

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTHN FTEELBEUBYAE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Investment property (HKAS 40, Investment property

and HK(SIC) Interpretation 21, Income taxes —

Recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets)

B BRZ2E (&)

(d)

REMF (BBSTERD
BAK [ REWEIR(EB
S ERD RBE215R [ Fr

(continued) BH - WEEATEREE
El (#&)
(i) Timing of recognition of movements in fair value ()  REZXERANLE
in the income statement (continued) ZE) i ()
As the Group had no investment property HRAEEN IR E

(ii)

revaluation reserve and deficits were recognised
in the income statement previously, the adoption
of this new policy has no impact on the Group’s
net assets and results for the current and prior

years.

Measurement of deferred tax on movements in

fair value

In prior years the Group was required to apply
the tax rate that would be applicable to the sale
of investment property to determine whether any
amounts of deferred tax should be recognised

on the revaluation of investment property.

(ii)

MEEGFE MB
EEBRENEERT
R BRI TR
SRR BB AR
BAFE REFE
ZEEFMEREER
PRI &

HEAR ERBE
o FERE

RBEFE AEHE
ARSERRN T ERE
MEZIBREERE
B YR /ARER
ZAEFERIR 1t - 40

Consequently, deferred tax was only provided to BT ARREE
the extent that tax allowances already given would HE - ARERIE 2
be clawed back if the property were disposed of BEERREATH
at its carrying value, as there would be no R 2 B4 Bi&
additional tax payable on disposal. & BB EEEIME
(NP
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Investment property (HKAS 40, Investment property

and HK(SIC) Interpretation 21, Income taxes —

Recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets)

B BRZ2E (@)

(d)

REMF (BBSTERD
BAK [ REWEIR(EB
S ERD RBE215R [ Fr

(continued) BH - WEEATEREE
Bl (&)
(i) Measurement of deferred tax on movements in (i)  FrEAREZEAE
fair value (continued) £ ZEHERE ()
As from 1 January 2005, in accordance with H-_ZETRF—H—

HK(SIC) Interpretation 21, the Group recognises
deferred tax on movements in the value of an
investment property using tax rates that are
applicable to the property’s use, if the Group has

B mRC(EES
FPERD BEE21
5% - a7 5 B 3 5t
EHEREME K

no intention to sell it and the property would have RSB WA A
been depreciable had the Group not adopted the AR EEXARNAES
fair value model. Further details of the policy for RENMETERE
deferred tax are set out in note 1(q). The adoption REEEFRABEAR
of this new accounting policy has no impact on ZNER R 2 TR
the Group’s net assets and results for the current HRZEIREYERE
and prior years. EESBRFEE L

R AE T TE o I IR AE T

TR ZE—HE
B E—(q) © $R
TR R R
BHANEEAFER
BEFEZEEFE
REGEBRERF
&,

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Leasehold land and buildings (HKAS 17, Leases)

In prior years, leasehold land and buildings held for own
use were stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKAS 17, the Group has adopted a new policy for
leasehold land and buildings held for own use. Under
the new policy, the leasehold interest in the land held
for own use is accounted for as being held under an
operating lease where the fair value of the interest in
any buildings situated on the leasehold land could be
measured separately from the fair value of the leasehold
interest in the land at the time the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee,
or at the date of construction of those buildings, if later.
In case the two elements cannot be allocated reliably,
the entire lease is classified as a finance lease and
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Further details of the new policy are
set out in notes 1(h) and (j). The adoption of this new
policy has no impact on the Group’s net assets and
results for the current and prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R RM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Retranslation of goodwill on consolidation of a
foreign operation (HKAS 21, The effects of changes
in foreigh exchange rates)

In prior years, goodwill arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation was translated at the exchange rates

ruling at the transaction dates.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKAS 21, the Group has changed its accounting policy
relating to retranslation of goodwill. Under the new policy,
any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation is treated as an asset of the foreign operation
and is retranslated at exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date, together with the retranslation of
the net assets of the foreign operation. Further details of

the new policy are set out in note 1(t).

In accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKAS 21, this new policy has not been adopted
retrospectively and is only applied to acquisitions
occurring on or after 1 January 2005. The adoption of
this new policy to acquisitions occurring on or after
1 January 2005 has no material impact on the Group’s

net assets for the current year.

B BRZ2E (@)

()

EHEEBIEBIREREHN
BERE (FAGTER
FAH[IMEEREH &
£1)

RIBAE R I T
ety BBERR B 28
AR RE -

BE-ZETRF—A—HE:
BT HE(EBEHEANSE
IR AEEEET
ERBREREZGTHBIR.
IRIRFBUR - W g INETS
FEA 2 EMEESEES
INERzEERE ERE
HBREBIINEB 2 EETF
B UEERA 2 EXSHHR
B bHER 2 E—FER
FPARTE—() °

BREBE(E A ER) E21
S 2 1B R S I TR R BUR
TEBPER UREESR
AR=ZE2RF—A—H
ZEETZWEEERE -G
TTHF ARk
172 W B THER AN R THRT I
FUWEHREEREE 2
BEFEBKERNERY
a,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9) Changes in presentation (HKAS 1, Presentation of

financial statements)

B BRZ2E (&)

(9)

EHHA 22 (FEE
BN FE1R B BHRRZ2
#]1)

(i) Presentation of shares of associate’s taxation (i) YRy AN b= P
(HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements) Z2#HAR ((BEE
FTERIY 155 (8175

WK Z#H])

In prior years, the Group’s share of taxation of
associates accounted for using the equity method

RBEFE AEH
R EhATELZ

was included as part of the Group’s income tax Fir B & A R B8 -
in the consolidated income statement. With effect STAREELGRE B
from 1 January 2005, in accordance with the KEIGHMET-B=

implementation guidance in HKAS 1, the Group
has changed the presentation and includes the
share of taxation of associates accounted for
using the equity method in the respective shares
of profit or loss reported in the consolidated
income statement before arriving at the Group’s
profit or loss before tax. These changes in
presentation have been applied retrospectively
with comparatives restated accordingly.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9) Changes in presentation (HKAS 1, Presentation of

financial statements) (continued)

(ii)

Minority interests (HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements and HKAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements)

In prior years, minority interests at the balance

BIEER 28 (B)

(9)

EHHA 22 (T
ERAD F1R M BHERZ2
1) (&)

(i) LEREER ((F
B2 IR E 15
(B &R 2 2]
R(EE SR
FoTH [trE KA
B#HE])

EREFE REE

sheet date were presented in the consolidated Bz DBIRR R T
balance sheet separately from liabilities and as RiraBERBRA

deduction from net assets. Minority interests in
the results of the Group for the year were also

HEEO RE®R I
SIEE EFRE 2

separately presented in the income statement as o DB R T &
a deduction before arriving at the profit EFANFEEITEEE
attributable to shareholders (the equity mERNDFR2H W

shareholders of the Company).

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to
comply with HKAS 1 and HKAS 27, the Group
has changed its accounting policy relating to
presentation of minority interests. Under the new

SVERTEBR (AR
BIRCR) AR B AT
YR 2 3R

REB(EBESHE
AN EIRR(EES
FHERD 2757 2R
B H_TERF—

policy, minority interests are presented as part of A—BE REEE
equity, separately from interests attributable to FT AL BREE
the equity shareholders of the Company. Further 2w EETIH

details of the new policy are set out in note 1(c).
These changes in presentation have been applied
retrospectively with comparatives restated
accordingly.

RARBINER - D
PR “E@ﬁlJf’E@E#
Z— &b EmAR
Hx%ZFHﬁ%E%Eﬁ
S PIHR 2
—HERERHE—
(c) ° WE2HHAZ
HECEYER M
BB F I ERE
#Po
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i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Definition of related parties (HKAS 24, Related party
disclosures)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 24, Related party
disclosures, the definition of related parties as disclosed
in note 1(v) has been expanded to clarify that related
parties include entities that are under the significant
influence of a related party that is an individual (i.e. key
management personnel, significant shareholders and/
or their close family members) and post-employment
benefit plans which are for the benefit of employees of
the Group or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group. The clarification of the definition of related parties
has not resulted in any material changes to the previously
reported disclosures of related party transactions nor
has it had any material effect on the disclosures made
in the current period, as compared to those that would
have been reported had Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 20, Related party disclosures, still
been in effect.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

3.  TURNOVER =. EX%
The principal activities of the Group are toll bridge operation, REBEZFEZEBBKNEBRBRE
environmental protection investment and operation (waste-water BOIRRIRE REE O57KBRIER &
treatment plants and waste-to-energy power plants), property WIRREREWH) MERERE
investments and management, environmental protection project B IRREEEERBERRKRERE
management and consultancy and investment holding. i
Turnover represents the toll bridge revenue, waste-water EXERERERRKE J5KE
treatment revenue, property rental income, property B MERSWAVEERE
management fee income and environmental protection project WA RIRIRIE B B 18 MR BRI
management and consultancy fee income. The amount of each AN FERNEEE FEREARNZIE
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during FERASRIBEFELR T :
the year is as follows:
2005 2004
—2THF —ZTE
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
Toll bridge revenue W ERRY = 59,824 47,103
Waste-water treatment revenue VAL 56,340 =
Property rental income IETIEEAL YN 14,245 12,819
Property management fee income MEEEBWA 3,414 2,721
Environmental protection project IRIRIE B B KB
management and consultancy & A
fee income - 2,601
133,823 65,044

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

4. OTHER REVENUE

Interest income

Dividend income from unlisted securities
Gain on disposal of associates

Gain on liquidation of subsidiary

Others

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

S IA

FEEMESFZBBUWA
HEB 2 ARz W
B A RERMSE

Hit

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Finance costs:

Interest on bank advances wholly
repayable within five years

Interest on other bank advances

Interest on loans from ultimate
holding company

Less: borrowing costs capitalised

into construction in progress

*

MIEER:

ARAFREHEER
ZIRITERZHE

HARITERZHE

REERARER

ZFB

W ERNERZTIZ

Bz fEERA

* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of

6.1% — 6.4% per annum (2004: Nil).
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Hlg A
2005 2004
—EERF —ETNF
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
9,072 1,148
1,135 266
= 660
= 555
2,206 1,974
12,413 4,603
BB AT E R
BRELRTEFIS R, (GTA) :
2005 2004
—ETRF —EEPOE
$’000 $000
F Fr
986 2,088
23,540 14,814
17,141 10,712
41,667 27,614
(9,577) =
32,090 27,614

* EBERAEKE 1% —6.4% 2 FRKE
A (ZFEZPYEF - 4E)
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B F iR M aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(continued)

(b)

Staff costs: (b)

Contributions to defined
contribution plans
Salaries, wages and other benefits

Less: staff costs capitalised into
construction in progress

Other items: (c)

Amortisation of land lease premium
Amortisation (other than of land
lease premium)
— positive goodwill
— negative goodwill included in
share of profits of associates
— other intangible assets
Depreciation
— assets held for use under
operating leases
— other assets
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Auditors’ remuneration
— audit services
— other services
Loss on disposal of associate
Net gain on sale of fixed assets
Operating lease charges: minimum
lease payments
— hire of waste-water treatment
facilities
— hire of premises
Rentals receivable from investment
properties less direct outgoings of
$1,149,000 (2004: $1,391,000)

. BRHRAEFN (&)

8 TR A:

TE BT 8l
R

e TEREMER

B ERERTRE
BERLzBTRA

HIER :

TR E & R
#iE (LA EERRIN)

— A2
— BEE GrAMGEZ
RAEEM)
- Hit BV EE
e
—-REREHE
MEE
—HMEE
(5 (Was) /iR FeE
AN 2
—EZRE
— B AR
HEBERRZER
HERBEEE 2 WaFER
HEMEER &
HEEH
— KRR REEE

— YRS
JEWIEEMER S HE
7 Hi1,149,0007T
ZETNE:
1,391,0007T)

BEATBMENR, GEA) : (&)

2005 2004
—EERF —ETPOF
$’000 $'000
F Fr
1,146 525
29,547 17,375
30,693 17,900
(10,314) =
20,379 17,900
283 =
= 1,881
= (674)
115 =
1,018 1,018
21,275 14,150
(1,151) 3,556
1,825 1,480
5 1,086
= 660
(587) (37)
959 =
649 370
(13,096) (11,428)
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B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

6. SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSOCIATES

Share of profits of associates before
taxation

Share of associates’ taxation

Amortisation of negative goodwill

Share of valuation gains on investment

properties

PTG & R RIRR AT &L A

PGB R R IR
BB
FrE R BB ERR
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il

2005 2004
—EZHEF —EFNF
(restated)
(E#H)

$°000 $'000
FiT Fr
78,738 99,049

(10,693) (18,835)
68,045 80,214
- 674
68,045 80,888
- 4,294
68,045 85,182
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R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

7.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement

represents:
Current tax — PRC income tax AEABIE —
FRiEH

Provision for the year RNERZRE

Over-provision in respect of BTFERE
prior years B

Deferred tax BB IE

Origination and reversal of ERERNES
temporary differences FNéE o]

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the financial statements as the Group sustained a loss
for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes during the year.
Taxation for the PRC operations is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the PRC.
During the year, certain PRC subsidiaries are subject to
tax at 50% of the standard tax rates or fully exempt from
income tax under the relevant tax rules and regulations.

+.

REBBRZFEHR
(a) HREBRRRAMTVAESR
F=

2005 2004
—EBERF —ZTE
(restated)

(E#H)

$°000 $'000

Fi T

4,748 1,211
(50) (3,208)
4,698 (1,997)

(16,566) 1,669
(11,868) (328)

HRAFEAREBRZH
TRE1R - B AR SR B A
MR BR SR
B BRI 2 HIRE T
BIRITEERR R E-F
A RIEBRARBAR IR
BETHENEBRRZRE
B RE0% ANV AR E S
LGk C IS

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT +.
(continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before tax

Notional tax on profit before tax,
calculated at the rates
applicable to profits in the tax
jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of profits entitled to tax
exemption in the PRC

Tax effect of prior year’s temporary
differences recognised this year

Tax effect of utilisation of unused
tax losses not recognised
in prior years

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Over-provision in prior years

Actual tax credit

ER Tt B & A

RRBRERBEE SR 2
TS T R GhBR B AT
BRFE 2 ZHHIE

PRIFRSE 2 IR &

FERBMMAZ BRI E
AZETEFIRREES
Z BNz RARE
REFEAZAEFE
ERERHIBTE
PRABEFEREAMA
AR Z AIHENERZ

BIES
*ﬁ%ﬁﬂ*ﬁ%Zﬂﬁﬂ
EEHIELE
NEFER AR

BERHIBRE
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mERERZMES (&)

(b) RERARRFEZHERD

EE AR 2 # iR
2005 2004
—E2FHF —TTF
(restated)
(E#H)
$°000 $'000
FiT Fr
108,976 85,890
20,028 19,365
4,002 3,192
(14,881) (23,102)
(6,874) (3,661)
(7,396) =
(6,715) (733)
18 7,819
(50) (3,208)
(11,868) (328)
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B F iR M aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION N EEEE
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of REBERBCRBEBDE—B/~+—
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: ol EEMEWT:
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme 2005
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
£ A 1) “BTHF
£ Xtk ENFE BBTEA  BRGHEMN #BE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors YTES
Wang Mingquan FHRE - 25 - - 25
Zang Qiutao k= - 1,694 500 - 2,194
Li Xueming Z2mH - 1,694 500 - 2,194
Chen Xiaoping BRNF - 1,944 1,200 - 3,144
Fan Yan Hok, Philip BLE - 1,605 420 100 2,125
Huang Chaohua HHE - 1,136 700 - 1,836
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond #3352 - 1,026 180 59 1,265
Chen Shuang B3k - 25 - - 25
Zhang Weiyun K= - 878 - - 878
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Sir David Akers-Jones BREHT 110 25 - - 135
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEE 100 25 = = 125
Mar Selwyn Bk 100 25 - - 125
310 10,102 3,500 159 14,071

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) N. EE#ME @)
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme 2004
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
E2 = )4 U3
ik EMHz WIBTEA  RIRETEIMESR ok
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fir Fir Fir Fr Fir
Executive directors HTES

Wang Mingquan T - - - - -
Zang Qiutao milE - 1,284 = = 1,284
Li Xueming 2 = 770 = = 770
Chen Xiaoping BN - 1,562 800 - 2,362
Fan Yan Hok, Philip BB - 1,300 400 85 1,785
Huang Chaohua UES - 715 400 - 1,115
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =852 - 780 400 59 1,239
Chen Shuang PR3k - 328 - - 328
Zhang Weiyun RE= = 853 = = 853

Independent non- BYFHTES

executive directors
Sir David Akers-Jones BRERT 85 - - - 85
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZEE 80 - - - 80
Mar Selwyn BHE 23 = = = 23
Lee Ka Sze, Carmelo Rt 60 - - - 60
248 7,592 2,000 144 9,984
As at 31 December 2005, the directors held share options under R-ZEZERFE+_A=+—"H &
the Company’s share option scheme. The details of the share SRBAQBEIRETEIFEBR
options are disclosed under the paragraph “Share option - BREREFEHNEETE W
scheme” in the report of the directors and note 28. & ERER S — B R+
AG
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS .

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, all are
directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.

10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF T.
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a profit of $107,778,000 (2004:
$152,687,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

11. DIVIDENDS
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

Interim dividend declared and BBk & AR S &R
paid of 0.6 cent per ordinary share
(2004: 0.4 cent per ordinary share) &I EAZ0.4751l)

Final dividend proposed after the REEE Bz D kAR

1% B A% E B A% 0.6 1L

(ZZZME - gKR

TmA%0.6751L)

balance sheet date of 0.6 cent
per ordinary share (2004: 0.6 cent

per ordinary share)

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

B = % B (Bl A £

hE&EHFMENACHRES:
BRENME BN\

RATRREGEERT

RAEIRERELERE BFIBIEET
107,778,000 (ZEEMNF:
152,687,0007T) B AR R Z B
THEKR A

EBR0.6/8Il (ZETmF:

. RE
(a) BEREFFAQX2IRRZAE
ERE
2005 2004
—EERF —ETPOF
$°000 $'000
F Fr
15,311 10,193
15,311 15,293
30,622 25,486

WEE RREZED KRS
AERAEAERREE.

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

11. DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year, of 0.6

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $105,330,000 (2004: $86,776,000) and
the weighted average number of 2,550,669,234 ordinary
shares (2004: 2,548,418,257 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—
Effect of share options exercised
(note 29(c)(ii))

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report

B E—EMBEFEE -
WA F AR EI 5 2
REARR BB AR & A%0.675 1L
cent per ordinary share (2004: Nil) (=== P04 : %)

Eﬂﬁ%kgz/
(HtaE=-—+1(c)(ii))

W+-A=+—H2
BB 8

+—. RE (&)

(b)

BRE—EMRFE XR

FRAEL TG F AR TR
RERRKRE

2005 2004

—ETRF —EEPOE

$°000 $'000

For Fr

15,293 -

+=. SRER

(a) EBREXREF

BREARZFTHREEAR AR
TaRRREMGLZRF
105,330,0007T (== Z[Y
% :86,776,0007T) R FAE,
BT E R INFE T A&
2,550,669, 234 5% & @Ak (—
TEPYLE 2 548,418,257 /%
LTAR) st E -HitE A
T

TR AR I -5 2R
2005 2004
—ETRF —ETF
’000 ‘000
FiE Fhg
2,548,812 2,548,312
1,857 106
2,550,669 2,548,418
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) +=. SRERN &)

(b)  Diluted earnings per share (b) SHREBER
BREERFTIEANRRY
Bk R R EWGAF
105,330,0007T (==
% :86,776,0007T) ML i@A%
AT 522 588,143,435
B (Z T T WM F
2,587,073,527%) st & H
FTEARAT:

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based

0|

on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of $105,330,000 (2004: $86,776,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,5688,143,435 shares (2004: 2,587,073,527 shares),
calculated as follows:

EmBE I (HE)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

2005 2004
—EFTRF ZEEFNF
’000 ‘000
FiR Fhir
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—8H<
ordinary shares at 31 December B AR N T 5 8K 2,550,669 2,548,418
Effect of deemed issue of shares BB R AR T &
under the Company’s share R AEREZTRO 2 ZE
option scheme for nil (Htax=+/1)
consideration (note 28) 37,474 38,656
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—Hz
ordinary shares (diluted) at BRI a2 (hE)
31 December 2,588,143 2,587,074
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING T= ZEHE
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s D EE LR IRA S B 2 FB MR
business and geographical segments. Business segment DEMEL 2 BN EH D EE R
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because HAEE S EBERIBARERR
this is more relevant to the Group in making operating and N HMEBARESBEENEE
financial decisions. e
Business segments By SR
The Group comprises the following main business segments: REBEZEEZXBHEWAT:
Infrastructure investment  The operation of a toll bridge to generate toll HEhE BB W B B R A R
and operation fee revenue and investment in associates, K& Hlfias RIRER
which engage in power industry, to REENITEM
generate dividend income. B A A DA BRER
BREUA -
Property investmentand ~ The leasing and management of office ESE HEREBHAE
management premises and shopping arcades to RER B R 735 A R
generate rental and management fee RieRkEEE
income and to gain from the appreciation in WA AR5
the properties’ values in the long term. EBEzREAE
R s o
Environmental protection  The operation of waste-water treatment plants RIRIEE A8 25 7K B 38 DA
investment and to generate waste-water treatment revenue K &E FREUS KB B U
operation and construction of waste-to-energy power X B AE I R
plants. B E e
Environmental protection  The provision of management and RIRIEH RERRELEERE
project management consultancy services to environmental EBENS L N AP AR 75 - AR
and consultancy protection projects to generate NEE KBRS
management and consultancy fee income. FYA
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i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) +=. 2BHRE (&)
Business segments (continued) eSS (1)
Environmental Environmental
Infrastructure protection protection project
investment and Property investment investment management and Inter-segment
operation and management and operation consultancy limination Consolidated
HRRAREE NERERER BRREREE  BREREERED ARREE L

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Z221F _ZIME CRRRE CTENF C8RRE _TTME CERRF _TIMG C3RRE CEQE CSRRE SEME
(restated) (restated) (restated)

(ER) (&%) (E%)

§oo0  $0o0 o0  §ooo S0 S0 §oo0  §ooo  Sooo  s000  gooo  $000
i I i I i I i I r I i I

Revente from exteral RENMER

customers JA 59824 47108 17659 15540 56,340 - - 2,601 - - 19382 6o
Inter-segment revenue ABEMA - - - - - - M0 154 (7M0)  (15437) - -
Other revenue from external RENREP

oustomers AfplA 1316 952 % 26 - 590 21 - - 1909 1917
Unallocated other revenue FAREMBRA - - - - - - - - - - 10504 2686
Total Aif 5995 48774 18611 15560 56,576 - 00 18259 (3T,110) (15437) 146,206 69847
Segment resuls P 30 837 a8 4318 13876 (3047) B9 1447 (30479) (16437) 87867 47748
Unallocated operating income FALAE

and expenses WARER (14846)  (19426)
Proft fiom operations il B 83
Finance coss HhES (32000)  (27614)
Share of profs of associates AN 68,034 72633 - T 11 662 - - - - 6805 80888
Share of valuation gains on FEERELT

investment properties of RENZEE

associales B4 - - -4 - - - - - - -4
Income tax iR 11,868 38
Proft atr taxaton it 12084 86218

Depreciafion and amorfisafion KEEHE

for the year R 14175 13283 210 2,330 4819 561 1,155 509
Valuation gains on investment RANZER
properties B3 - - BB 14790 - - - -

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Environmental
Infrastructure protection
investment and Property investment investment
operation and management and operation
ERREREE WERERER RRRENEE
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
CESRE _SEMF CEERE _TEIMF CEERE _RAlA
§000 S0 soo0 oo Soa0  $000
i T fr T r S
Segment assets ABEE 640275 646726 346,791 319106 924435 143486
Interest in associates BENARE 2702 434,904 - - 602 575
Unallocated assets FIWAE
Total assets AESE
Segment liabilties B8k 2158 2537 6589 6762 20995 8141
Unallocated liabilties AR
Total liabilfes BEEE
Capital expenditure incurred RERAELR
during the year EXRY 3 385 7 8 620745 4564

T= oE®E (&)
Ko (&)
Environmental
protection project
management and Inter-segment
consultancy limination Consolidated
BREREERER ARREH &8
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
ZRR5F CTIMF C89RE _TIMF CRREE TN
$000  §oo0 o0 soo0 o0 $000
r S r S r I
52,99 47,007 - - 1964497 1,156,415
- - - - H3304 435479
25919 458927
2,673,720 2,050,821
4649 1202 - -2 18682
1,181,204 950,003
1404535 968,685
5242 119

Geographical segments

The Group’s business participates in two principal economic
environments. Hong Kong and other parts of the PRC are the
major markets for the Group’s business.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure

are based on the geographical location of the assets.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) +=.

Geographical segments (continued)

Revenue from external customers: REINAE PN

Hong Kong BB

Other parts of the PRC Fh B AL D 3t [

Segment assets: DEEE:

Hong Kong o

Other parts of the PRC R B E b b [

Capital expenditure incurred RNEREANEENERFAX
during the year:

Hong Kong BB

Other parts of the PRC Fh B AL D 3th [

DEEWE (&)

XD (&)

2005 2004
—EZRF —ETNF
$’000 $'000
F Fr

3,955 3,312
129,868 61,932
133,823 65,244
2005 2004
—EERF —ETNF
$’000 $'000
FiT Fr
467,094 654,920
2,206,626 1,395,901
2,673,720 2,050,821
2005 2004
—EERF —ETPOF
$°000 $'000
F Fr

767 39
636,025 6,150
636,792 6,189
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

14.  FIXED ASSETS TH. EEEE
(a) The Group (a) A&&£EH
Motor
vehicles, Interest in
Leasehold electronic |easehold land
improve-  equipment held for own
Toll Waste- ments,  and other use under
bridge water furniture  fixed assets operating
ancillary  treatment Machinery  and fixtures HE leases Total
Tol  faciities infrastructure  Land and and  HEHE  ETRE Construction Investment  RESERE fived assets
bridge ~ WEER  5KEE  buldngs equipment  EBBA REfh inprogress  Subdotal properties  HEEEz  BEEE
WERR  KERE  BEER  IHREF HERAE REE  EEEE  ARIR M RENE ERINER 4B
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $1000 $1000 $000 $1000 $1000 $000
i i i S S0 S S S i i i i
Cost or valuation; HAESEE:
At 1 January 2005 H_E5hE
-A-A 571,305 20,009 - 124,160 2,754 312 4173 3,209 728,733 230,054 - 958,787
Exchange adjustments B35 10,062 352 - 135 Pi] 1 67 - 10,650 - - 10,650
Addtions b5
- through acauistion -EauE
of business %] - - 50,232 11,521 35,162 - 3073 - 99,994 - 66,076 166,070
- others i - - 15,256 12,358 37,550 1,489 3,718 355,551 425,922 - 10,252 436,174
Transfer &2 - - - ) - - - - (BY0) 6810 - -
Disposels te - - S [e0)  6m) (%) () - W) - - W)
Fair value aojusiment Mg - - - - - - - - - 25,230 - 2,230
At 31 Decemoer 2005 NZ551%
SRR WO NN 0 TS O SR A MY R e
Representing; f&:
Cost fAE 561,367 20,361 65,468 139,420 74814 444 10,795 358,760 1,265,446 - 76328 1,331,774
Valuation - 2005 [fE-_550% - - - - - - - - - 262,194 - 262,194
581,367 20,361 65,488 139,420 74814 444 10,795 358,760 1,295,446 262,194 76,328 1,593,968
Accumulated depreciation BitiTERE%:
and amortisation:
At January 2005 NZ551%
-A-A 14,004 5,784 - 45471 1,702 1,720 1,708 - 70,395 - - 70,395
Exchange adusiments ~ [E:3% 246 101 - 9 1 1 i - 391 - - 391
Charge for the year KEENE 10,839 3,229 917 2,962 3,308 M8 760 - 22,293 - 283 2,576
Writen back on disposals ~ HERAR - - - (10) (344) (117) (214) - (685) - - (685)
At 31 Decemoer 2005 NZ551%
CREEEBM WM W MW My - wM - W e
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2005 i
+2A=1-H 556,278 1,47 64,57 90,982 10,141 2,559 8,514 358,760 1,163,052 262,194 76,045 1,501,291
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

14.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) TH. BE&EE (&)
(a) The Group (continued) (a) NEE (&)
Inferest in
Leasehold Motor vehicles, leasehold land
improve- ~ electronic held for own
Tol Waste- ments,  equipment USe Under
bridge water fumitue ~ and other operating
ancilary ~ treatment Machinery  and fixtures ~fixed assets leases Total
Tol faclies ifrestuctre Land and ad  BEME  FEET  Constuction Ivestment BEEEHEE  fxed assels

bidge  MERR  SKRE  budngs  equpment  EEEE REREE  npogess  Slold  popetes  #fRAz  EREE
KERR  MERE  ARER  DURBT  BRRRE REE  EREE ERIE G REME REDHES |
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
S0 S0 S i i i i i T T T S

Cost or valuation; AAEARE:

At 1 January 2004 H_E5RE
-A-A 568,275 199% - 12099 1823 2811 2,184 - 716,085 217,264 - 933,349
Exchange adjustments L 3,030 13 - 3 2 2 10 - 3,09 - - 3,095
Additons iz
- through acauisiion -
of subsidiary HBLA = - - 1,126 179 - 584 - 1,889 - - 1,889
- others ~ifp - - - - 178 310 1,892 3,209 6,189 - - 6,189
Transfer 88 - - - 20 - - - S ) - -
Disposals il - - - - (28) - (497) - (5%) - - (5%)
Fairvalue adjustment D EHE - - - - - - - - - 14790 - 14790
A3 December 2004 H-FERE
LI 1 1 N ) S O 1 N1 SN .1 N . R - 1.
Representing; f&:
Cost A 571,306 20,009 - 124160 254 3123 4173 3209 128,133 - - 128,133
Valuaton - 2004 ftfe--%3mE - - - - - - - - - 00 - 00
571,305 20,009 - 124,160 2,154 3123 4173 3,209 728,733 230,054 - 958,787
Accumulated depreciation BitiTERE%:
and amortisation:
At 1 January 2004 -5
-A-A 5350 2,588 - 42814 1431 1421 1,612 - 55,28 - - 55,228
Exchange adusiments B3 10 ¥ - 1 1 - § - 52 - - 52
Through acoisiton el
of subsidiary B - - = 106 i) - 81 - 41 = - 4
Cagefortheyesr  AEERE BoM 3ibd S 0% 0 0 % - 588 : S 588
Writen back on disposals ~ HiER &R - - - - (17) - (s47) - (4p4) - - (4p4)
A3 December 004 R-FFLE
TRRETR M e - & e i e - - - T
Net book value: FHFE:
At 31 December 2004
557,301 14225 - 78,683 1,092 1403 246 3209 658,338 230,064 - 888,392
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14.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) +H. BEEE (&)
(b) The Company (b) AT
Machinery Furniture Total
and Leasehold and fixed
equipment improvements fixtures Motor assets
BER HENE AR vehicles EEEE
R %8 %E HE A
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost: BAE:

At 1 January 2005 i
—A-A 1,434 1,861 244 250 3,789
Additions g 81 - - 684 765
Disposals & (314) - (12) - (326)

At 31 December 2005 RZZERF
+-A=1+—H 1,201 1,861 232 934 4,228

Accumulated depreciation: Z&HE:

At 1 January 2005 R=ZETHE

—-A-R 1,270 1,242 192 188 2,892
Charge for the year KEERE 68 186 15 62 331
Written back on disposals HER AR (298) - (11) - (309)
At 31 December 2005 RZZZRE

+-A=+-FH 1,040 1,428 196 250 2,914
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2005 WZEZTRE

+-A=1+—H 161 433 36 684 1,314
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

14.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) TN BEEE (&)
(b) The Company (continued) (b) NN T (&)
Machinery Furniture Total
and Leasehold and fixed
equipment  improvements fixtures Motor assets
KER HENZE i vehicles ETEE
B B RE e s
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr T Fr T
Cost: BAfE:
At 1 January 2004 R_ZERF
—H—H 1,491 1,861 244 599 4,195
Additions ’E 39 - - - 39
Disposals HE (96) - = (349) (445)
At 31 December 2004 ik
T=AST-R e - I = . e
Accumulated depreciation: ~ RiHE:
At 1 January 2004 RZEZWEF
—H—H 1,230 1,056 177 198 2,661
Charge for the year AEEHE 78 186 15 77 356
Written back on disposals &R E (38) = - (87) (125)
At 31 December 2004 ik
t=A=t-8 10 1M 2 18260
Net book value: BERE:
At 31 December 2004 R-ZZMF
+-A=1—H 164 619 52 62 897
(c) Investment properties of the Group were revalued as at (c) NEFBZIEEYHEEDNR-E
31 December 2005 on an open market value basis TRE+=—A=+—HIRE
calculated by reference to net rental income allowing S ABFEA LA E RS UK
for reversionary income potential. The valuations were AMEtEZ A AFRTMEETE
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, RHL fy o E 1 By YB S BI E BT 5K
Appraisal Ltd., who have among their staff Association T EEEE B R A 7 #
of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent T EPR BT AEEHZRD
experience in the location and category of property being BeoS FHEHBHWE
revalued. FrAEth AN %R 516 3T FR(H (B A

Be
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

14.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) +H. BEEE (&)
(d)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as (d) YVEEBREFEZZHMT:
follows:
The Group
rEE
2005 2004
—EZhHEF —ETNF
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
In the PRC G
Hong Kong: BB
— medium-term leases —FEE 65,932 =
— long leases —RHEE 106,200 154,583
Other parts of the PRC: FR [ EL fh 3 [
— medium-term leases —FEE 255,739 152,764
— long leases —RHEE 1,350 1,390
429,221 308,737
Representing: K&
Land and buildings T RIEF 90,982 78,683
Investment properties TEYE 262,194 230,054
353,176 308,737
Interest in leasehold land held BB EHER
for own use under fEE Bz S s
operating leases 76,045 -
429,221 308,737
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14.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) T BE&EE (&)
(e)  Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (e) MRELLHESHEZEEE
-3
The Group leases out properties under operating leases. REERBKEAEHEY
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to ten ¥o PMHE T FHERE
years, with an option to renew the lease after that date NS EP—2+%F WalE
at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the BEY BRATEERES
leases includes contingent rentals. E¥EE] c LAMAEENE
EkEHE

All properties held under operating leases that would FrERBEEHERFFIEL
otherwise meet the definition of investment property are REREMEER I MFES

disclosed as investment property. WERIRE Y-
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under REBIRBE AT R A
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as HETE B R ERE IR

follows: BT
The Group
rEE

2005 2004
—EERF —ETE
$°000 $°000
FiT Fr
Within 1 year —F R 6,309 8,127
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEBERFR 1,276 1,133
After 5 years hFi% 130 219
7,715 9,479
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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15.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS TH. BEEE
The Group
Waste-water
treatment
concession
right
VEPIN ok
SRR
$'000
Fr
Cost: RAME:
At 1 January 2005 R_ZEZERF—HA—H =
Addition through acquisition FRWIEERILE
of business 34,548
At 31 December 2005 RZZEZERF+_H=1+—8H 34,548
Accumulated amortisation: HeE#sH:
At 1 January 2005 R-ZEZERF—HA—H -
Charge for the year NEEHEE 115
At 31 December 2005 R-ZZETRF+_-_A=+—H 115
Net book value: BRMERE:
At 31 December 2005 R-ZZETRF+_-_A=+—H 34,433
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “direct costs NEE#BTAGEBER B
and operating expenses” in the consolidated income statement. AR LB R Ae
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

16. GOODWILL T &8
The Group
ARE
Positive Negative
goodwill goodwill Total
EBHE g wmE
$'000 $'000 $'000
FiT T Fr
Cost: RAME:
At 1 January 2005 R-EZERF—H—H 48,855 (718) 48,137
Opening balance adjustment  HR¥4&5fR %L
to eliminate accumulated VASK 5 2 5+ 85
amortisation (2,722) - (2,722)
Opening balance adjustment  Hi#)4E AR LUREE
to derecognise to RE &
retained profits - 718 718
Addition through acquisition FRWIEERILE
of business 2,103 - 2,103
At 31 December 2005 R-EZERF+-_A=+—H 48,236 - 48,236
Accumulated amortisation: =~ R&H#gH:
At 1 January 2005 R-EZRF—A— 2,722 (38) 2,684
Eliminated against cost at RZETRF—H—
1 January 2005 DNk (2,722) = (2,722)
Opening balance adjustment  Hi¥I4E R TR LAURHZE
to derecognise to REBAF
retained profits - 38 38
At 31 December 2005 RZEERF+_A=1+—H = = =
Carrying amount: BRTEE:
At 31 December 2005 R-EZERF+-_A=+—H 48,236 - 48,236
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Cost:
At 1 January 2004

Additions through acquisition
of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2004

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2004
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2004

Carrying amount:

At 31 December 2004

ARAE:

R-ZEZWF—HA—H

FERRBHBEARIEE

R=ZEmFE+=A=1—8

Rt

R-ZEZWF—HA—H
NG

R=ZEmFE+=A=1—8

ARMEE:

R=ZEmFE+=A=+—8

In 2004, positive goodwill not already recognised directly in

reserves was amortised on a straight-line basis over 20 years.

The amortisation of positive goodwill for the year ended 31

December 2004 was included in “other operating expenses” in

the consolidated income statement.
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The Group
A%M

Positive Negative
goodwill goodwill Total
EHE auE e
$'000 $'000 $'000
FT FiT FiT
27,518 - 27,518
21,337 (718) 20,619
48,855 (718) 48,137
803 - 803
1,919 (38) 1,881
2,722 (38) 2,684
46,133 (680) 45,453

R-_TZME W RN HEEEERE
RZEBBREREND —+5H#
HBE_TTEMFE+_A=1—
BIEEEZ FRE#HEETALE
Bak [ EMEEER]A-



Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

16. GOODWILL (continued)

As explained further in note 2(a), with effect from 1 January
2005 the Group no longer amortises goodwill. In accordance
with the transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 3, the
accumulated amortisation of goodwill as at 1 January 2005 has
been eliminated against the cost of goodwill as at that date.
The negative goodwill has been derecognised at 1 January
2005 with a corresponding adjustment to the opening balance

of retained profits.

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing

goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGU”) identified according to business segment as follows:

Infrastructure investment and
operation (Toll bridge)

Environmental protection investment
and operation (Waste—water
treatment plants and
waste-to-energy power plant)

The recoverable amount of the respective CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five year period. Discount rates of
10% — 12% have been used for the value-in-use calculations.
Management determined the budgets based on independent
professional traffic studies and/or service agreements governing
the relevant operations. The discount rates used are pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

_|_
\l’
A

. R (B

KT —(a)E— B B =%
TRFE-A—RAE AEETBH
HEE-RIB(BBMBRELEA)
EIRAHMBREGRBE—FTA
F-A—BZRFIRBEHERD
HZAZEBERARH-BREE
R-ZZERF—H— A M
R E B A E AR R R -

BEHEZRSEESEN 2 HEERA
=S

AREEREH DDA E TR

Rl RS EESBMIAT:
The Group
rEH
2005 2004
—22EHF —TENE
$°000 $'000
FiT Fr
EERENEE
(W EBR) 25,340 25,340
RIRIE R EE
CE7KEEER &
NIRRT BT RR)
22,896 20,793
48,236 46,133
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17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES ++. WEARER

The Company

¥ NN

2005 2004
—B2FRF —TTF
$°000 $'000
Fi FIL

Unlisted shares/capital LW LB
contributions, at cost A ANME 388,642 407,842
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BB A B R IE 2,126,938 1,840,866
2,515,580 2,248,708
Less: impairment losses B FEE 1R (1,480,947) (1,484,684)
1,034,633 764,024
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTHY B A R F0E (56,408) (50,498)
978,225 713,526
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free FEUL (FERD) F B A BIFUA A
and not expected to be recovered within one year. e B RFEHTER —FRNEER.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report



Notes to the Financial Statements
B F iR M aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

17.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and operation

Name of company B/ TR A

NEER RE Y

Everbright Water PRC
(Zibo) Limited* H
(“EB Water (Zibo)")

(note (a))

KAKE O1E) BRA A"
(AKX C68) 1)
(Hiit(a)

Fuzhou Guang Min PRC
Road and Bridge Lol
Construction &

Development
Company Limited
(“FZGM")*

BINEERBRR
REERAH
([EREE)*

On Land Limited Hong Kong

BRBRAR &

Qingdao EB-VW PRC
Waste Water H
Treatment Co., Ltd.

(“Qingdao EB-VW")#

EEARKER
BRAR
([ESKEL)*

Sino Villa Holdings British Virgin

Limited Islands
("BVI")/PRC

RERNES/

i

Suzhou SuNeng PRC
Waste-to-Energy Co. Ltd. H

(“Suzhou Suneng”)*
sNTRR A R EE

BRAR

(&R MARRE])*

Particulars of
issued and paid
up capital
ERTR
BRREER
RMB96,816,370
ARE
96,816,3707C

RMB224,730,000
N
224,730,0007T

2 shares of $1 each
2R EREE
1T
RMB126,331,107
ARE
126,331,1077C

1 share of US$1
1REREE
1ETRG

RMB141,943,349
AR
141,943,3497C

Tt WEBQAER (B

A TMES M AREB RS BEX
BEBKEIEXEZHEBARE
FroBr B AERIN RN RE
e

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERERLA

Group’s
effective
interest
XEEZ
ERER

100%

Note (b)
Fizt(b)

100%

Note (c)
fii(c)

100%

Note (d)
Hiit(a)

* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment

enterprise.

#  Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign co-operative

joint venture.

Company
HAAH

held by

the held by
a subsidiary

HNELR
53] 53]

= 100%

Principal
activity
TEXH

Operation and
maintenance of
waste-water
treatment plants
LERBBRE
KR

- Note (b)
Wizt (b)

Development,
construction,
operation and
maintenance of
a toll bridge
RE g
BEREERE
R

- 100%  Property investment

NERE

Note (c)
i (c)

Construction,
operation and
maintenance of
waste-water
treatment plants
Bk BEREE
RETKEER
Property investment

NERE

100% =

- Note (d)
Hit(a)

Design, construction,
operation and
management of
waste-to-energy
power plant

Rt s 2ER
BEERNEREEER

Y IRIBBEER M R IR A

t REBEHELEEM BT INEER &
PE-

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 1 December 2005, EB Water (Zibo) acquired the waste-
water treatment business together with the corresponding
assets and liabilities from Zibo Finance Bureau and Zibo
Environmental Waste Water Treatment Company (“the
Transferors") at a consideration of RMB224,055,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$214,891,000). In addition, pursuant to a
concession right agreement, EB Water (Zibo) was granted the
exclusive right to operate the waste-water treatment plants to
provide waste water treatment service in certain specified areas
in Zibo city, the PRC for a period of 25 years commencing from
December 2005. Upon expiry of the concession period,
EB Water (Zibo) will cease to have any rights and obligations
under the concession right agreement and the assets acquired
as referred to above will be transferred back to the Transferors.

The waste-water treatment plants are expected to have
aggregate daily capacity of 220,000 tonnes. The waste-water
treatment revenue charged by EB Water (Zibo) is governed by
the relevant waste water treatment service agreement. During
the concession period, EB Water (Zibo) has the obligation to
promptly repair or upgrade the waste-water treatment facilities
and equipment.

Greenway Venture Limited (“Greenway”), an 80% owned
subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint venture partner
of FZGM, is committed to contribute the full amount of FZGM’s
registered capital. Net profit (after payment of an agreed sum
ranging from RMB600,000 to RMB2,500,000 annually to the
PRC joint venture partner of FZGM) of FZGM should first be
applied for the repayment of capital and advances made by
Greenway. After the capital and advances made by Greenway
have been fully repaid, the net profit of FZGM (after payment of
an agreed sum to the PRC joint venture partner mentioned
above) is to be shared by Greenway and the PRC joint venture
partner on a 90:10 basis.

Pursuant to the joint venture agreement of FZGM, FZGM was
granted a right to construct, operate and maintain a toll bridge
in Fuzhou city, the PRC. After the completion of the toll bridge
construction, FZGM has an operating period of the toll bridge
for a period of 30 years commencing from January 2003. Upon
expiry of the operating period, FZGM will transfer all the fixed
assets and the operating right to the PRC joint venture partner.
The toll fee is based on the type of vehicles and it is subject to
the approval from the relevant local government authorities.
During the operating period, FZGM has the obligation to
maintain the toll bridge in good condition.
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17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

EB-VW HK Holding Company Limited (“EB-VW”), an 60% owned
subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint venture partner
of Qingdao EB-VW, is committed to contribute 60% of Qingdao
EB-VW's registered capital. The remaining 40% registered
capital is contributed by the PRC joint venture partner, by way
of transferring waste-water treatment plants to Qingdao EB-VW.
EB-VW is fully entitled to the net profit of Qingdao EB-VW for
the first 14 years of the joint venture period. From the 15th year
of the joint venture period onwards, the net profit of Qingdao
EB-VW is to be shared by EB-VW and the PRC joint venture
partner on a 98:2 basis.

Pursuant to a waste-water treatment agreement, Qingdao
EB-VW will provide the PRC joint venture partner with design,
construction, maintenance and operation services for waster-
water treatment facilities and the provision of waste-waster
treatment services in Qingdao, the PRC for a period of 25 years
commencing from January 2005. Furthermore, Qingdao EB-VW
is obliged to construct extension of the existing facilities.

Upon expiry of joint venture agreement, the fixed assets of
Qingdao EB-VW will be transferred to the PRC joint venture
partner. The waste-water treatment plants are expected to have
aggregate daily capacity of 220,000 cubic metre. The waste-
water treatment revenue charged by Qingdao EB-VW is
governed by the relevant waste water treatment agreement.
During the joint venture period, Qingdao EB-VW has the
obligation to maintain the waste-water treatment facilities in
good condition.

Everbright Environmental Energy (Suzhou) Investment Limited
(“EB Energy (Suzhou)”, formerly known as Starland Resources
Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
foreign joint venture partner of Suzhou Suneng, is committed
to contribute the full amount of Suzhou Suneng’s registered
capital. Net profit of Suzhou Suneng, after payment of an agreed
sum of RMB880,000 annually to the PRC joint venture partner,
is fully attributable to EB Energy (Suzhou).

Pursuant to a concession right agreement, Suzhou Suneng will
design, construct, operate and manage a waste-to-energy
power plant to provide waste treatment service in Suzhou city,
the PRC for a period of 25 years. Upon expiry of the concession
period, the waste-to-energy power plant and related facilities
will be transferred to the PRC joint venture partner. The waste-
to-energy power plant is expected to have a daily capacity of
1,000 tonnes. The waste treatment service fee charged by
Suzhou Suneng is governed by the relevant concession right
agreement. During the concession period, Suzhou Suneng has
the obligation to maintain the waste-to-energy power plant in
good condition.

Tt.

MBS ()

it (B

(c)

(d)

RABEFE0%ER ZHBA
ARBEELBEINTE BB
KBS KGR BB BRA
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18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES T\ BEATER
The Group The Company
AEH RAT
2005 2004 2005 2004
“ETHE —TENFE ZSTRE _—TTQNF
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000
Fr FiT Fr Fir
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR R AE - = 205,199 205,199
Share of net assets Fiih & E %58 413,304 435,479 - =

413,304 435,479 205,199 205,199

The following list contains only the particulars of associates, all LATNESI H S AR E A B R
of which are unlisted corporate entities, which principally REZFEHERT (BHAIEL
affected the results or assets of the Group. MEFEER) Ekfo

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERELH
Place of
Form of Incorporation/ Group’s held by
business establishment effective the held by
structure and operation interest Company subsidiaries Principal

Name of company ERER  BMAYL/RIR rEEZ HAAR HBKEAR activity

AR AR g L ERER =] 5H TEEH

Newton Industrial Limited Incorporated BVI/PRC 44.12% 44.12% - Investment holding
(“Newton”) (note) Ay RBRZEE/TH REER
(FizE)

Qingdao Veolia Water Established PRC 21% - 21% Operation of
Operating Company AV HE waste-water
Limited treatment plants
BERVIEKEEEERAA 2EHKEER

Note: Newton holds an 34% equity interest in Shenzhen Mawan Power HfiE: NewtoniF A RINIFEE H AR

Company Limited, a sino-foreign joint venture established in REN(—HKRFRBIKL 2 FoNG

the PRC which currently operates two power plants in Shenzhen, ) 34% AR 2 A A

the PRC. BT BERYIE EMKREE
g o
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18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) +N\. BE QAT ER (B)

Additional combined financial information in respect of the

Group’s associates is given as follows:

BRAAREEE QR 2RI G
BERIT:

2005 2004
—EBEALF —TTF
(restated)
(E3R)
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
(i) Operating results (i) KA EE
Turnover &R 18,800 70,571
Depreciation e - 13
Profit before taxation Rt AT & A 154,255 219,306
Profit after taxation krEi1% & T 154,255 194,975
Group’s share of profits after REEFGEE ARZ
taxation for the year attributable REZRTEER
to associates 68,045 80,214
Group’s share of valuation gains PN SE) NG|
on investment properties KEMEGERER
attributable to associates - 4,294
2005 2004
—EELF —TTF
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
(i)  Balance sheet (iy HBEAGBR
Non-current assets IEREEE 935,314 985,860
Current assets MBEE 4,671 2,354
Current liabilities mEEE (2,045) (60)
Net assets BEFH 937,940 988,154
Group’s share of net assets RE BTN
attributable to associates DR BEFE 413,304 435,479

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS +h. Rt EEE
The Group The Company
rEE VAN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EERFE —ZENFE C—EFTRE —“ZITOF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fir Fr Frr
Available-for-sale equity FERAES
securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong —BBLEm 38,282 32,813 - -
— Unlisted outside Hong Kong ~ —&BAIMEE
JEET 13,649 13,649 13,649 13,649
51,931 46,462 13,649 13,649
Market value of listed securities &% 2 mE 38,282 29,471 = =
20. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 4. ERERF-HEWFIE-RER
PREPAYMENTS FEIFIE

Included in trade, other receivables, deposits and prepayments
of the Group are trade debtors of $14,343,000 (2004:
$4,571,000), of which $4,595,000 (2004: Nil) is due from a
minority shareholder. The trade debtors are current and not yet
due for payment and represent toll bridge revenue and waste-

water treatment revenue which are settled on a monthly basis.

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 30(a).
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21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS ~t-. BEBBRITER
The amounts are pledged to secure certain bank loans of the ZERBEEER (ERAREES
Group. TFRITER 2 ERme
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS I BERREEEY
The Group The Company
AEH PN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EE2RE —TTNF —BERFE —TTOF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr F
Deposits with bank RITER 215,946 458,905 198,203 439,819
Cash at bank and in hand BITHESBEES 192,620 113,453 30,204 4,184
408,566 572,358 228,407 444,003

REBZRERRSEFEMERET
SRR AR E R 2 et B

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet

date are the following amounts denominated in a currency other

than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate: LAON B# BB :
The Group The Company
rEH NG|
2005 2004 2005 2004
—ZEHF ZTNFE —EEHFE —ETEF
$°000 $'000 $°000 $000
Fr Fir T T
United States Dollars Ein USsD10,809 uSD8 USD21 uSD8
10,8093 T 8%TT AEYH 8%7T

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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23. SECURED BANK LOANS ZtI FERBITER
At 31 December 2005, the secured bank loans were repayable RZEZERF+-_A=+—H'A&
as follows: EIRRITE R Z B HE T :
The Group The Company
rEE NG

2005 2004 2005 2004

—E2BRE _"TTWF —TBRE _"TITOAF

$°000 $000 $°000 $000

Fr T Fr T

Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIRER 40,227 62,450 31,429 62,429
After 1 year but within —FREMEA

2 years 55,607 8,218 6,429 6,429
After 2 years but within MERERFA

5 years 218,764 62,479 19,286 19,286

After 5 years HF% 297,645 234,141 4,821 11,249

572,016 304,838 30,536 36,964

612,243 367,288 61,965 99,393

At 31 December 2005, the banking facilities of the Group are RZZEZERF+_A=1+—H 'K

secured by revenue from the operations of toll bridge, waste- SEZRITRHE AL 2N EBRBR L

water treatment plants and waste-to-energy power plant, bank WA V57K BB R e b SRR G2 25 R

deposits, mortgages on fixed assets and shares of a subsidiary A RITER BEEERBR

of the Company. Such banking facilities, amounting to REBEM B R FRMDERF-R=

$975,180,000 (2004: $534,432,000), were utilised to the extent TEERF+ _A=+—8 Lu

of $612,243,000 (2004: $367,288,000) at 31 December 2005. 975,180,000 (ZEZ M4 :

534,432,0007T) ZEITRE E A
612,243,0007C (—ZEZ P4
367,288,0007T) °

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS TR0 BN BRRMIE
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable within EERIBAEERR 2B RER—
one year. FAEE-
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25.

26.

CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Included in creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
of the Group is an amount of $1,393,000 (2004: Nil) which is
payable to an associate. The balance is due within one month
and represents service fee for operation of waste-water
treatment plants.

Apart from the above, there are other payables to related
companies and a minority shareholder of $32,012,000 (2004
Nil) and $18,756,000 (2004: Nil) respectively as at 31 December
2005. The amounts are unsecured, interest free and expected
to be settled within one year.

LOANS FROM AND AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

(a) Loans from ultimate holding company

The Group

At 31 December 2005, the loans are unsecured, interest
bearing at 4.9% to 5% (2004: 1.8% to 5%) per annum
and not expected to be settled within one year, except
for a loan of $95,148,000 (2004: $93,501,000) which is
interest free. The interest rates are generally based on
Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate or London Interbank
Offering Rate plus 0.8% to 1.1% (2004: plus 1.1% to
1.3%).

S,

PR IR At B RROR R ST
BH

REE 2 FERBRER B FRIR
REGBRARBEE—EENT—X
B\ \) 2 /I8 1,393,0007¢ (==
PO ) o Z AR —E A R E
HY H A& 5 KRIE M 2 BRIEE

B EXFTIEINR_ZEZERF+
ZA=Et+—RH ARREEENT
BN E Rk — B DB R 2 B b
NFRIE £% 5 51432,012,0007T
(ZZZT M4 : &) £ 18,756,0007T
(ZETHF &) R EREAER
A o8 WHEHAR —FAXZTe

A RREBRQXAERREMNRR

IR A RHE

all

(a) BRERARER

rEE

RIEZRF+A=+—
H BT —EHSEA
95,148,0007T (ZEZH4F:
93,501,0007T) Z B AR
BON W EEFAEER 1
FERKL 9% EE% (T BT
PU4F: 1.8%%25%) 515 KT8
HTrgR—FAEE B
— IR B BRI TRIZERF 23k
RBERTT R ZEHF B IM0.8%
E1.1% (ZZZMFE: N
1.1%%1.3%) 5t &
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26. LOANS FROM AND AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING It BRERERAFDERREMNRR

COMPANY (continued) ERDBNREA (8)

(a) Loans from ultimate holding company (continued) () BAREBRATER (E)
The Company KR E]
At 31 December 2005, the loans are unsecured, interest RIZBEZERAF+—_A=1+—
bearing at 4.9% to 5% (2004: 1.8% to 5%) per annum B W EERAEER RF
and not expected to be settled within one year. The FE4 9% EE% (ZEF Y
interest rates are generally based on Hong Kong F:1.8%%E5%) 71 B R TEH
Interbank Offering Rate or London Interbank Offering TER—FAEERE-FE—
Rate plus 0.8% to 1.1% (2004: plus 1.1% to 1.3%). MAREBRITRIZER Sk fA

HIRITRIZEFREN0.8%E
1.1% (ZZEZWF:I01.1%
£1.3%) 5T 8-

Included in loans from ultimate holding company are the REZERABERBIE T
following amounts denominated in a currency other than IE - H LMH FAER G

the functional currency of the entity to which they relate: BEAIIN B R

The Group The Company
TEE NG

2005 2004 2005 2004
“EERE _—TTMFE C—BFIF _—TTNMF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr T Fr T
United States dollars E USD43,886 USD43,886  USD43,886 USD43,886

43,8867t 43,886k, 43,886t 43,886 %T

(b)  Amount due to ultimate holding company (b) ENRAZERARRE
At 31 December 2004, the amount due to ultimate R-FTNF+ZA=1+—
holding company was unsecured and interest free. It was A BN R A RIFOR
repaid during 2005. AEERRES - EERZ

ETRFRER-

(c)  Continuous financial support () HEAMBXE
The ultimate holding company has given an undertaking REERARIEAHEG TA
to provide the Company with adequate financial support. NR] RS I TSR
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27. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:

Provision for PRC income tax AREFZRBEPTS TR
for the year
Provisional tax paid B TERFTS

Tt BERBERZFAEHR

(a) BEREXRFATIAHBE

The Group
AEM

2005 2004
—EERF —ZTE
$°000 $'000

Fr T

4,748 1,211
(2,610) (1,113)
2,138 98
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(BB BTHN FTEELBEUBYAE)

27. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The Group

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

movements during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 January 2004
Charged to profit or loss

At 31 December 2004

At 1 January 2005

Addition through acquisition
of business

(Credited)/charged to profit
or loss

At 31 December 2005

ERLRIARE:

R-_ZZHRF—F—H
ERWIBESILE

mRmEH GTA) ik

Al
o A
=y
<FH

IR
|4
[1]
T
m
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Tt BERBERZAEH (@)

(b)

ERAELHREERAER

AL

ERRABERABRER
EETUE (BE) /BESHD

NAREEESHINT
Depreciation
allowances in
excess of
related
depreciation  Revaluation
HBEEBEITEZ  of properties Total
HERBE MIEE L HeE
$'000 $'000 $000
T T T
206 18,947 19,153
1,078 591 1,669
1,284 19,538 20,822
1,284 19,538 20,822
(356) - (356)
(17,760) 1,194 (16,566)
(16,832) 20,732 3,900
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

27. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(continued)

Net deferred tax assets recognised RirAEEBBRERLZ
on the consolidated balance sheet  IEIEFIIH & & %5

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R4r& EE B ERERLZ
on the consolidated balance sheet  IEEFIEA EF58

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(q), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
of $26,033,000 (2004: $32,730,000) in respect of
cumulative tax losses as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

The tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

Tt BERBERZHAEH (@)

(b) CHEIBEHRTEERER

(&)
The Group
rEH
2005 2004
—EERF —ZTE
$°000 $'000
Fr T
(16,832) -
20,732 20,822
3,900 20,822

(c) ARERELEHREEE

BB E—(q) FTE 2 &5
BUR ANEE W EERHR
FT AR B RLER IEE
££26,033,0007T (===
%: 32,730,0007T) ' R E &
EEBHG R A ER R EE
A AT BE RS B FR A & A1
LHRBAERNER-RIE
WATBISARA] - Lk eT 330
BB TR e AR A

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

28.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 26 May 2003 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options at nominal consideration to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The exercise price of options is the highest of the
nominal value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant and the average closing price
of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The options are
exercisable six months (or a later date as determined by the
directors of the Company) after the date on which the options
are granted for a period up to ten years or 25 May 2013,
whichever is earlier. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during
the year are as follows, whereby all options are settled
by physical delivery of shares:

it J1§

URB XN 2BRAERS
ARBHRE—EBBESE ER

“EE=FRAZ+BERMAE
It ARREETREEARBAUE
AEERE (BRAKEEIAKE
RAZES) BRI RREANRE
FRRE AN B BUD 2 P A - B A
TEEARMEE RONELA
HETEBMARHABRAT) (15
R 2 BB EEE LA
HA R0 (82 5 BB R Pz I
mE (ARSERE) BRESK
HBEIEANEA (RARBESR
EZBEAH) AR R EITER
BEREFRZETFRE_F—
SERAZTRBALEUUREER
%) -BRIBEEE T ERSBARE
— IR R E B R

(@ TXHEINFARKITEZRE
P 2 % kA6 R R MR A 1B
it BB B A HE AR D B D

RWTAEE R
Contractual
life of
Number of options
instruments Vesting conditions BREZ
XE#E 4 R BHREH
Options granted to directors:
RYEFE 2 BIRE
—on 29 September 2003 49,700,000  Six months from the date of grant 9.2 years
—ZET=FNA=-TNAH X H B #RE < EA 9.2%F
—on 29 September 2003 49,700,000 One year from the date of grant 8.7 years
——ET=FNA=-+NAH B B ERE— 5 8.7
Options granted to employees:
RTES 2 BRE
—on 29 September 2003 4,500,000 Six months from the date of grant 9.2 years
—ZET=FNA-TNAH X H B #RE < EA 9.2%F
—on 29 September 2003 4,500,000 One year from the date of grant 8.7 years
——ZEE=FAA-TIA B B —F 8.7
Total share options 108,400,000

AR R
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options are as follows:

Outstanding at the Y RITE
beginning of the period

Exercised during the period BB 1T

Lapsed during the period EAESA

Outstanding at the end of B RTTHE
the period

Exercisable at the end of HR#& ] P 178
the period

Weighted
average
exercise

price
hEF
fTEEE

$0.296

N BBRBXHZBRAERS (#)

(b) EBREREZEE MnEFET

(VIR
2005 2004
“E2TEHE —ETME
Weighted
average
Number of exercise  Number of
options price options
T
BRERE TEE BREHA
108,400,000 $0.296 109,400,000
(3,000,000) $0.296 (500,000)

$0.296
$0.296

$0.296

$0.296

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise

for shares options exercised during the year was $0.45

(2004: not applicable). The options outstanding at 31
December 2005 had an exercise price of $0.296 (2004:
$0.296) and a weighted average remaining contractual

life of 7.4 years (2004: 8.4 years).

- $0.296 (500,000)

105,400,000 $0.296 108,400,000

105,400,000 $0.296 108,400,000

FRBITEBRERITEH
HR 2 hn#E 1A AR B R0.457T
(ZZETWEF RERA) R
EERF+A=1+—8H
RITEZEBREZITEER
0.2967T (ZZZ Y4 :0.296
7T) MANETHEBR T A 8F
HB A7 4F (ZEZNF:
8.44F) o

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES ZH R BRA R A
(@) The Group (a) ZAK£H
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KAARRELR
Reserve/
(goodwil Revaluation

arising on reserve of (Accumulated

consolidation Capital ~ land and losses)

Ei ] tedemption  buildings retained

Share  Share  Special  E4Y
captll  premium  reseve e/
Bx  BAEE HEEE  (B9)
$000 $000 $000 $000
S S S S

At 1 January 2004 R-EEME-A-A 24831 2817219 - 8177
Shares issued under BEERE ST
share option scheme R 50 % - -

Reduction of share HIRR A (ER

premium - (312113 - -
Share of capial resene  FTEBEDFEAGE

of associate - - - 905
Share of exchange HEEE S

reseves of associates - - - -
Bxchange diferences  AEMELFR

on ranslation of RELHHER

financial statements EE7ERER

of subsidiaries

and associates = = - -

Capialesenverealised ~ WBAFREMER
on iquidaton of S

subsidiary - - = (65 )
Exchange reserves HEBENTTER

realised on disposal LEREE

of associate = - - -
Profifor the year RERRA - = = -
Acquistion of non-wholly &2 EHERA

owned subsidiary = = - -
Capita contrbuton FRENBATNE

recelved bynon-wholy SRR 2R

owned subsidiary from

minority sharholder - - - -
Dividend paid to BT ahR RS

minority shareholder = = - -

Dividend declared in KEERSHRE
espectoftecurent (i)

Exchange  reserve IR Fairvale  Reserve profits
feserve A BT resene fund (Z3tEE) / Total

Minority Total
interests equity

EXff WERE ERRE ORERE  BRe  REER AE JUBREE  REME

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
S8 S8 o8 o8 o8 i i

m now - - IN46) 10003%
- - - - - - 148
- - - - - oam -
: = = = = - %

a0 - - - - -

1471 - - - - -
: = = = = - ()

86 = = = = - ()

: - = - - 86,776 86,776

$000 $000
T T

- 1000,3%

= 148

- 1411

- )

-

(©8) 8218

3 3B

4260 4260

(66)  (566)

Jear (e 1) - : : : : - - - S(01B)  (101%) S %)
Transfer o special ERERDIRR
eserve - - 112016 - - - - - - (112016) - - -
A3 December 2004 H-FERE
t-f=1-8 204881 445004 112,016 58,527 1677 10 A3 - - 20634 1078942 3194 1,082,136
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) “th.BRAEKREE (&)
(@) The Group (continued) (a) ZA£HE &)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KLRRRERE
Reserve/
(goodwill Revaluation
arising on reserve of
consolidation Capital ~land and
Ei ] tedemption  buildings
Share  Share  Special  E4Z  Exchange  reseve  1HR  Farvalue  Reserve  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium  reserve reserve X BF7 resene fund  profits Total  interests equity
Re  ROEE GEEE 0 BR) ENRE  WERE  EGEE OABRE  BEE  REEN 8% JuRFER
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r i i i i r r r r fr r fr i
At 1 January 2005 R-EE0E-A-A 254,881 445,204 112,016 h8,521 1,677 10 43 - - 2634 1078942 3,194 1,082,136
Opening balance THRE BEARE:
adjustments in
respect of.
-negatie qoodwil - BEE (A= (a))
(102 22) - : - ) - - - - - g 80 - 80
- finencialinstuments— ~ $BTE (HE=(b)
(nate 2(b)) - - - - - - - - - (3342) (3342) - (3342)
At 1 January 2005, W-55RE-A-R
after opening bl et
balance adjusiments 254,881 5004 112016 (12614) 1677 10 43 - - 214803 1,076,280 3,194 1079474
Diidend approved i~ £EEEHERS
respect of the (H1)
previous year (note 11) - - - - - - - - - (1528)  (15,298) - (1529)
Shares issued under BEEREEE
share option scheme R (W= TA(c)i)
(rote 29 0 58 - - - - - - - - % - 8%
Share of exchange MEBERAES R
Teserves of associates - - - - 9,598 - - - - - 9,508 - 9,508
Exchange diferences ~ BERBATR
on ranslafon of RELHBER
financial satements ET/ESEE
of subsidiaries
and associates - - - - 8,868 - - - - - 8,668 - 8,668
Revaluation reserve HETHRETHER
realised on cisposal LERRE
of land and buldings - - - - - - (243) - - 13 - - -
Changesinfairvaleof — FEZFAAERS
avallable-for-sale
securities - - - - - - - 8611 - - 8611 - 8611
Proitfor the year KEEEA - - - - - - - - - 105330 105330 15514 120844
Trensfertoresenve fund ~ EEZRES - - - - - - - - 340 (3740) - - -
Share of reserve by HERRERERER
minoriy interests - - - - (2314) - - - - - (2314) 2314 -
Capita contibutions FRENBATNE
received bynon-wholly SRR 2R
owned subsidiaries from
minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 71,881 71,881
Dividend paid fo B FHERE R
minarity shareholder - - - - - - - - - - - (575) (575)
Dividend declared in KEERERRE
fespect of the current (Hitt-)
year (10 11) - - - - - - - - - (B3 (153 - 13
Transfer fiom special g2a5iRk
reserve (note 29(di) (=T A0)i) - - (686) - - - - - - 686 - - -
A3 December 2005 W-55RE
t-f=1-8 206,181 445792 111330 (12614) 17829 10 - 8,811 3740 346718 1,176,857 92328 1,269,185

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

“th.BAREE (8

(b) The Company (b) AT
(Accumulated
Capital loss)/
redemption retained
Share Share Special reserve profit
capital  premium reserve Ex (RitER)/ Total
B REOEE  WERE FORE  REEA m
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i i i T
At 1 January 2004 RZE2ZEE—F—H 254,831 2,817,279 = 70 (2,381,869) 690,311
Reduction of share BRI (DR B
premium - (2,372,173) - - 2,372,173 -
Shares issued under  RIFEEMREAE
share option scheme ~ E{7f& (7 50 98 = - - 148
Profit for the year TEEEF - - - - 152,687 152,687
Dividend declared in MEEEERKRE
respect of the current (At 1—)
year (note 11) - - - - (10,193) (10,193)
Transfer to special ERERRIRE
reserve - - 112,016 - (112,016) -
At31December 2004 ~ RZZTTME
+-A=1+-H 254,881 445,204 112,016 70 20,782 832,953
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) The Company (continued)

At 1 January 2005
Dividend approved
in respect of the
previous year (note11)
Shares issued under
share option scheme
Profit for the year
Dividend declared in
respect of the current
year (note 11)
Transfer from special
reserve (note 29(d)(ii))

At 31 December 2005

R-FThF-A-H
EEEERERE
(Bt +-)

REER S
ki

AEERMN

AEEEERMRE
(WaEt—)

HREERIRE
(HizE=+A(d)ii)

“th.BAREE (8

(b) AAT (&)
Capital
redemption
Share Share Special reserve Retained
capital premium reserve Bx profit Total
B BipEE RhlRE RO#E  REEA a%
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i i i i
254,881 445,204 112,016 70 20,782 832,953
- - - - (15,293) (15,293)
300 588 - - - 888
- - - - 107,778 107,778
- - - - (15,311) (15,311)
- - (686) - 686 -
255,181 445,792 111,330 70 98,642 911,015

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) ZHh.BRAEK e (&)
()  Share capital () EB=R
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i)  EERBETRA
2005 2004
—EBAE —ETPMF
No. of No. of
shares shares
% &5 R &
000 $°000 ‘000 $'000
TR Fi Fhig Fr
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of BAREE0.107T
$0.10 each ZERR 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000 500,000
Ordinary shares, BER
issued and EBTR
fully paid: BEHE:
At 1 January R—A—H 2,548,812 254,881 2,548,312 254,831
Shares issued under IR BRI 2
share option scheme 8172 D 3,000 300 500 50
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 2,551,812 255,181 2,548,812 254,881
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TmBEE ABRER
receive dividends as declared from time to time BARERZKRE
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings WA A EIRNE L]
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally RERERNEE—F
with regard to the Company’s residual assets. KR -BARAZ

RSBEEMS A
EBRREERSHE

Ao
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

ZHh.BRA K (8

(c)

MR (&)

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme (i)  WRIRBBAREFEIETT
R 17
On 20 May 2005, options were exercised to R_EZETRFRA-
subscribe for 3,000,000 ordinary shares in the TH BREREA
Company at a consideration of $888,000 of which TEERE RBE
$300,000 was credited to share capital and the 3,000,000% A5/ &)
balance of $588,000 was credited to the share TEakR - RER
premium account. 888,000 HH
300,0007TE sE ABX
A $T7588,0007T
BllEE ARR 5 5 ERR
(iii)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (i) RAEEH EARERR
options at balance sheet date AR TIEZ FER A~
&1
2005 2004
Exercise —EZhHEF —ZTE
Exercise period price Number Number
fT1EH TEE £ Eg=
29 March 2004 to —TENFE=A=+1H
25 May 2013 ET =%
EA=-+HH $0.296 52,700,000 54,200,000
29 September 2004 —ZEEWMFEAA -+ HH
to 25 May 2013 ET =%
HEA=-+HH $0.296 52,700,000 54,200,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Further
details of these options are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements.

105,400,000 108,400,000

GAREEAER T E
BAARE—RAR
AIEER RN A
AR 2 — &
R 5 RaR aE
iy A

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) TR K #EE (E)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (d) RFEHEERBD
(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve ()  BROBERERERD
]
The application of the share premium account Mt BER B AR
and the capital redemption reserve is governed Elf#EE Aign Rl
by Sections 48B and 49H respectively of the Hong O QN =T I S
Kong Companies Ordinance. B) & H+ AB &
REM+ AH ER
"l’é‘ o
(i) Special reserve (i)  EHIFEE

On 5 January 2004, the Company announced its
intention to put forward a proposal for the
reduction of the Company’s share premium
account by the sum of $2,372,172,824 (i.e.
accumulated losses of the Company as at 30
September 2003) and the application of the same

RZZFTNF—AR
SRRANNCI VNGRS
REZZ HIBEAR
| & R B R
2,372,172,8247T
(ARRBE=F

amount of credit arising from such reduction E=FNA=1+HZ
towards the elimination of the accumulated losses ZEHEE) W H
of the Company. The reduction of share premium B = B RRFTEE A
account, approved by the shareholders at the ZA—BFEERESE
extraordinary general meeting held on 2 February AREHEARRRIZ R
2004, was confirmed by an order made by the sTETE - BB AR 17 &

High Court of Hong Kong (“the Court”) on 2 March
2004 and became effective upon registration of
the said order by the Registrar of Companies in

Hong Kong on the same date.
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(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(ii) Special reserve (continued)

To safeguard the interests of the Company’s
creditors, the Company undertakes to the Court
to create a special reserve upon the reduction of
share premium account on the terms set out
below:

(i) that for so long as there shall remain
outstanding any debt of or claim against the
Company which, if the date on which the
reduction of the share premium account of the
Company (“the Effective Date”) were the
commencement of the winding-up of the
Company, would be admissible to proof in
such winding-up and the person entitled to
the benefit thereof shall not have consented
to the said reduction of share premium
account or agreed otherwise, the Company
shall credit to a special reserve in the books
of the Company (“the Special Reserve”):

— any amount arising by reason of a release
of any provision taken into account in
establishing the accumulated losses of the
Company shown in the balance sheet of
the management accounts of the
Company for the nine months ended 30
September 2003; or

ZHh.BRA K (8

(d)

REEEREN (B)
(i)  FRIEE (&)

RTRERRRIERE
AZ s R R B[R
SEBT M RS RO H
LR A7 (B AR R AR L
— (%5 Bl A - 153K
s

(i) R A2 FIHIR
P £ (B R A 28
Z B ([E£#%AE
1) (F%B A
ENNSIVEL: SGE
B) REMLAEE
fAIARBEERHL
RTHEBR M
HEEBHAR
RARAFRE
HZAEMNE
B BEARESR
Z NET K
AEE L HR
B 1 (B Bk =
B RIARRBEE
ET B HTA
AREERE 2%
Rl (TR RIRE
) T

- A#EEE
PN N/NCTR:2
E-EET=
FNA=T
B 1k E A
ZEIRER R
RrEBEESB
&R W T~
2 EBEL
F {77 £ 18 BT
EECE5E:
K

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM
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(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) TR K #EE (E)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) RFEEEREN E)
(i)  Special reserve (continued) (i)  FHIEE (&)
(i) (continued) (iy (&)

— any amount received by the Company as — RRQRHK—
profit by way of distribution from a E/NS L :)
corporation which was a subsidiary or an FrigtE R nD
associated company of the Company at DI P

the Effective Date (a “subsidiary” or an
“associated company” respectively) which
is made by such subsidiary or associated
company out of profits available for
distribution prior to the Effective Date or
any dividend paid to the Company in
respect of any liquidation of a subsidiary
or an associated company commencing
prior to the Effective Date; and
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) ZHh.BRAEK e (&)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) REMERENE)
(i)  Special reserve (continued) (i)  HIERE (&)
(i) the Special Reserve: (ii) FrRlFEME:
— shall not be treated as realised profits of - TNEHERA
the Company; and RKAAlzZE
FHRAHN R
— shall, for so long as the Company shall - REAXRRT
remain a limited company, be treated as TRERA
an undistributable reserve of the Company Al RIBAF]
for the purposes of the Companies 1651 (FREEA
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of the REMBEEF
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region 7 % Al 17 X
of the People’s Republic of China) or any EEBE32
statutory modification or re-enactment ) SOEBIR
thereof. 7E gt H AT {E
2 E A& K
HIEFT B JE
WHRBRRD
Al 2 A 5
I fE
Provided always that: HE:
(1) the Special Reserve may be applied for the (1) B Rli# ] B
same purposes as a share premium account ARG ®E
may lawfully be applied; R & ER%E:

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(ii) Special reserve (continued)

(2) the amount standing to the credit of the
Special Reserve may be reduced by an
amount equal to any increase, after the
Effective Date, in the share premium account
of the Company which results from an issue
of shares (other than for the purposes of any
redemption or purchase by the Company of
its own shares) for cash or other consideration
or by way of the capitalisation of distributable
profits or reserves, and the Company shall be
at liberty to transfer the amount so reduced
to the general reserves of the Company and
the same shall become available for
distribution;

(3) the amount credited to the Special Reserve
in accordance with the foregoing provisions
of this undertaking shall not at any time
exceed $1,762,999,500 (“the Limit”");
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(d) REMEEREWN (&)

(i)  FRIEE (&)

(2)

(3)

FrhlEEERS
B2 AI A5 ARG - B
BAEERAH
% FEETRMD
(AARAEE
SEERH KD
FERRON) ]ER
THEMREL
BERERMEA D
& & N 28 R S T
SIBARBRG
il 1
L CFNNG N
BRI 2 2
ERRAZ R
- mMEBAE
BAl DIk 2
A

BEAAEZ £
AR E LA R
Rz RBEE
EEDEERES
i#1,762,999,500
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) ZHh.BRAEK e (&)
(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d HEEEREN (E)
(i)  Special reserve (continued) (i)  HIERE (&)

(4) the Limit may be reduced by the amount of (4) EEBMHE% -
any increase, after the Effective Date, in the HEETR G (B
paid-up share capital or share premium AN
account of the Company which results from BARF &R
an issue of shares (other than for the purposes HN) HAEUIR & 3k
of any redemption or purchase by the HREB3iE R
Company of its own shares) for cash or other BRI IR A
consideration or by way of the capitalisation sk A 5| 2
of distributable profits or reserves; AR Z R
ANk 4 (B AR
0,z #R] R {E

BB RS
(5) the Limit may be reduced upon the liquidation, (5) MAERH H& -
disposal or other realisation, after the Effective EER - HEXK
Date, of a subsidiary, an associated company VA A 75 =438
or any of the financial or fixed assets of the WS RNCTR: ey
Company by the amount of the provision NAEIHA R FME
made in relation to such subsidiary, A B 75 =X B FE &
associated company or financial or fixed ER RN_ZET
assets as at 30 September 2003 less such =FNA=+H
amount (if any) as credited to the Special REBENE R
Reserve as a result of such liquidation, IR N k=l
disposal or realisation; and W EEEE
FriR iz e
BRI )& A%
HES#IREIE
FTEE & 2 R Rl

BERESRER (1
B) 28 ARk
BB R
K
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) Zth. BRARKH#E (&)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) HEEEREN (E)
(i)  Special reserve (continued) (i)  FHIEE (&)

(6) in the event that the amount standing to the (6) MR IREE EXCE
credit of the Special Reserve at any time (4) X%,/ 3(5)1&
exceeds the Limit after any reduction of the HIJB B R 5E &
Limit pursuant to provisos (4) and/or (5) 1 Rl 8 2 E B
above, the Company shall be at liberty to SREBAA ER
transfer the amount of any such excess to the [ NN T
general reserves of the Company and the BB 2 BB AR
same shall become available for distribution. NAElz — MR

B mEBESE
AP IR Z Ao

During the year, an amount of $686,000 was FRNBRE i

transferred from the Special Reserve in 5 AME R I i 1S B

accordance with the undertaking. 686,0007T°

(iii)  Reserve/(goodwill) arising on consolidation (iii)  ARERREAELZF
w7 (EE)

The reserve/(goodwill) arising on consolidation EAREM = (a)FT

has been set up and dealt with in accordance (& ETBR RN R

with the accounting policy set out in note 2(a). BITERIEFTEE 2

() -
(iv)  Exchange reserve (iv) B FE

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign b W R & Sl E s

exchange differences arising from the translation B S 765 2 BA TS SRR

of the financial statements of foreign operations. EXCZABEERE

The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the o AN N AIRIRM

accounting policy set out in note 1(t). —(O)PTE IR R

BiEHE
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(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) “th.BRARGEE (&)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) HFEEEREN (E)

(v)  Fair value reserve (v) AnER#FE
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative RN BEREBRERGE
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale BEHRBEZHERS
securities held at the balance sheet date and is NREz RetEaEF
dealt with in accordance with the accounting R EARKRFT 52— (F)
policies in notes 1(f) and (k). R (k) FTE & 5T BUR

BRI
(vi)  Reserve fund i) fEEE

Statutory reserve — wholly foreign-owned
enterprises

EERE—-RINED
%

Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which are IR &S B AR B 2
wholly foreign-owned enterprises, follow the BATRHARINER
accounting principles and relevant financial FREKBEAR
regulations of the PRC applicable to wholly EINEREZPEE

foreign-owned enterprises (“PRC GAAP -
WFOE”), in the preparation of its accounting
records and financial statements. Pursuant to the
accounting regulations for business enterprises
(EEestHE[BE (2000) 25 5%]), the
subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of
the profit arrived at in accordance with PRC GAAP
— WFQOE for each year to a statutory reserve. The
profit arrived at must be used initially to set off
against any accumulated losses. The
appropriations to statutory reserve, after offsetting
against any accumulated losses, must be made
before the distribution of dividends to
shareholders. The appropriation is required until
the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the

FTRA XA RIS
B(PEAREE
RA - 25 E B
ESIDRE e
M HRE R
2 HE (g
(2000)25%5%) - Bt B
NEEBIERREA
REFTRA—2HNE
EEMS 2 AT
Hrh10% 2| E%
TR B NER
FALAIK S8 (] 251
Beboh RS
A5 (BB ERR

registered capital. This statutory reserve is not FTEER) BEER
distributable in the form of cash dividends, but 1875 Pl AR K
may be used to set off losses or be converted A& B oMt B A RIAE—

into paid-in capital.

HERBNEEER
H EELTEREE
EAMERS0% A
b lbEERETE
LReREFERD
K- HER] AR KRS
B ER AT
j;o

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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29.

30.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(e)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2005, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $98,642,000 (2004: $20,782,000). After
the balance sheet date the directors proposed a final
dividend of 0.6 cent per ordinary share (2004: 0.6 cent
per share), amounting to $15,311,000 (2004:
$15,293,000). This dividend has not been recognised
as a liability at the balance sheet date.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks

are limited by the Group’s financial management policies and

practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Debts are usually due within 30 days from
the date of billing.

Debtors of the Group represent receivables in respect
of toll bridge revenue and waste-water treatment revenue
which are settled on a monthly basis.

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s trade debtors of
$14,343,000 were due from three customers including
the largest customer of the Group. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet. The
Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits, bank loans and loans from ultimate holding
company. The Group does not use financial derivatives

to hedge against the interest rate risk.

=t+. €@MIA &)

(b)

(c)

RBE TR

REBE N 2B LERR
AETRERSEETIE
BREASBHBIEBRER
ERETAENERE ST
KOWEARBARESEE L
BAEDAEE-ARBEZR
REEHERNY AR
BETH® BREEGR
TR FHEERNEEY
BHBES R AN A EE
BME ARMNEEHLES

REEL TR
IR

R E 2 F R FE
g HIBHFEREZRS
MASEFEY RITHER R
TERRSKKERARE
e AEBEWEN AR
AT RREHA R E M-
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) =t. @®I A #)
(¢) Interest rate risk (continued) () R=EEE (&)
Effective interest rates and repricing analysis FERFEREZTE XK
In respect of income-earning financial assets and BEREUMA MBS E E RETE
interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following table BiSaEms TREHRE
indicates their effective interest rates at the balance sheet EREE R 2 BRFIR R
date and the periods in which they reprice or the maturity #EJ S 7 M= 2 H1 B
dates, if earlier. (WAREE) -
The Group AEE
2005 2004
“2%1f TR
Effective One More  Effective One More
interest year 12 25 than  inferest year 12 25 than
rate Total orless years years  Syears rate Total or less years years 5 years
BBz B -FENT  -BESE ZERE BEME  EREE g T -EF CERE RN
% $1000 $7000 $7000 $7000 $7000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r S S S S ﬁ I S S S
Repricing dates for RHBRAETEE
assets/labiltes) which ZEE/ (Bf)2
reprice before maturity EHEE ]
Pledged bank deposis BERERR 0.7%1.9% 89,197 89,197 - - - 18%23% 6,912 6,912 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLSEN 0.3%1.4% 192620 192,620 - - - 0.1%0.7% 113453 113,453 - - -
Secured bank loans HAROER 4% (3695)  (6429)  (6429)  (19.286)  (4821) T1%5%  (49393)  (1249)  (642)  (19.286)  (11249)
24485 275,368 (6429)  (19.286)  (4821) 10972 107,936 (6429)  (19286)  (11.249)
Maturity dates for assets/ YERHERAET
(labiliies) which do B%s8%/(8R)
not reprice before maturity ZHER
Deposits with bank FER 21% 907 907 - - - 16%21% 5,854 5854 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLEE 168% 25046 215946 - - - 02%24% 48905 458905 - - -
Secured berk oans EERSAER L1%64%  (STSOT8)  (3798)  (AS178) (199478) (92824) 15%52%  (3T8%)  (B0021)  (1789)  (3193) (228%2)
Loans fiom uimate SUERLAER
halding compary 095 (M0480) - (M04%0) . - 1BRST%  (451705) - (sh) - -

(798905) 183,055  (489.658) (199.478) (292824 (304841) 414738 (463494)  (43193) (2228%2)
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) =t. @I A #)
(¢) Interest rate risk (continued) () R=EEE (&)
The Company PN
2005 2004
ot £ 5t EIME
Effective One More  Effective One More
interest year 12 25 than inferest year 12 %5 than
rate Total or less years years  Syears rate Total 0r less years years 5 years
BBz B -F9NT  -BESE ZERE BEME  EREE B -EIT -EZE ZERE RENL
% $1000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i o o fz T I T T
Repricing dates for HHBAAETREL
assets/labilites) which EE/(8f) ZE7
reprice before maturity B H]
Cash and cash equivalents RERRLSEN 03% 004 30204 - - - 01%02% 4184 4184 = = =
Secured berk oans BERRER 5% (6965)  (6423)  (6429)  (19286)  (4%21) TI%1S%  (9393)  (12429)  (64%9)  (1966)  (11249)
6761) 275 (649)  (19286)  (4820) (5209)  (825)  (649)  (19288)  (11249)
Maturity dates for assets/ GENIBAAET
(labiliies) which do B%08%/(8R)
not reprice before maturity AL
(Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEN 16% 198203 198,203 = = - 02%24% 439819 439819 - - -
Secured bank loans BEREAES 4% [5000) (2500 . . - 1% [(000)  (000) - - -
Loans fom ulimate BRERATER
halding company 195 (W0480) - (0480 - - 1BEST%  (451705) - (417) - -

(267.217) 173208 (440.480) = = (61866) 389819 (461,705) = =

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the
foreign exchange exposure. The Group’s transactional
currencies are Chinese Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars
as substantially all the turnover are within Hong Kong
and other parts in the PRC. With the natural hedging of
the revenue and costs being denominated in Chinese
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, the Group’s
transactional foreign exchange exposure was

insignificant.

With respect to borrowings denominated in United States
dollars (USD), the impact of foreign exchange rate
fluctuations is insignificant as the HKD is pegged to USD.

Sensitivity analysis

In managing interest rate risk, the Group aims to reduce
the impact of short-term fluctuations on the Group’s
earnings. Over the longer term, however, permanent
changes in interest rates would have an impact on
consolidated earnings.

At 31 December 2005, it is estimated that a general
increase of one percentage point in interest rates would
increase the Group’s profit before tax by approximately
$2,449,000 (2004: $710,000) so far as the effect on

interest-bearing financial instruments is concerned.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

()

Fair values

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits, debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments and creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the immediate or short term maturity
of these financial instruments. The carrying amounts of
bank loans and loans from ultimate holding company

approximate their fair values.

As set out in note 17, the Company had amounts due
from/to subsidiaries. It is not practical to estimate the
fair values of the amounts due to the related party nature
of these instruments.

Estimation of fair values
The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of the
following financial instruments.
(i) Securities
Fair value is based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date without any deduction for
transaction costs.
(ii) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value

of future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.

=t+. €@MIA &)

()

(9)

[RE

RehReFEY RITF
TR~ U BR R~ EL A R U R
B RE MIBNRIE AR
1 BR R~ E At AN SRR K
SEREFHA ZAREER
FZREELEEAER,
FRASIEFS R T A EE
BN ERRNE#-RITE
REBEERRRERZ A
REEREZREERS

AP+ PAE AL A
BERYKENHBARR
TR AR B B R A1
g B TEGBFAEEREL

AVNIER

DAEM

=113

TR TR SR T
ARAERERZ BT
RB&-

(i) 5

AR ETEEEEZ
TR E TL
FNREAL DK
$0

(i) EFEEXEENK
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31.

ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS

On 1 December 2005, the Group acquired the waste-water
treatment business together with the corresponding assets and
liabilities (“the Acquired Business”) from Zibo Finance Bureau
and Zibo Environmental Waste Water Treatment Company at a
consideration of RMB224,055,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$214,891,000). For the one month ended 31 December 2005,
the Acquired Business contributed net profit of $268,000 to the
consolidated net profit for the year. It is impracticable to disclose
the impact on the Group’s revenue and net profit had the
acquisition occurred on 1 January 2005 since the Acquired
Business was previously held by the local government
authorities in the PRC and no waste-water treatment revenue
was charged for the waste-water treated.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets
and liabilities.
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31. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (continued) - NEEEK (2

WREEBRIKER 2 EEFRE:

The Acquired Business’s net assets at the acquisition date:

Carrying Fair value Recognised

amounts adjustments values

IREE AREFAE ERAEE

$°000 $°000 $'000

Fir Fr Fr

Property, plant and equipment  #1% BE K& &iE 103,179 (3,185) 99,994
Interest in leasehold land BRI EHEFE

held for own use under BRZHEELTH

operating lease S 97,361 (31,285) 66,076
Intangible assets mEAE = 34,548 34,548
Deferred tax assets B IHEE - 356 356
Debtors, other receivables, FEUBR N - Bt FE UL

deposits and prepayments IR me RIBNFRIE 15,124 = 15,124
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY 281 = 281
Accrued expenses EsTER = (3,591) (3,591)
Net identifiable assets AIHREERBE

and liabilities R 215,945 (3,157) 212,788
Goodwill arising on acquisition — WEEEA 7 &

(note 16) (BtaE+73) 2,103
Consideration, satisfied in cash X&' LB & 214,891
Balance payment shown as TEiREBEERAGBE

other payable in the HI1E [ B fth FEHERIE

consolidated balance sheet ZERTEI R (114,727)
Cash acquired R RIS S (281)
Net cash outflow HEmHFRE 99,883

Goodwill has arisen on acquisition of the Acquired Business 1 U B B T A P B
AR BB A DR R A

RSB EE 2 #R

because of assembled workforce that did not meet the criteria

for recognition as an intangible asset at the date of acquisition.
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions.

(a) The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with its ultimate holding company, China
Everbright Holdings Company Limited (“CEH”):

— Interest expense —F B
— Rental income for provision of — M AEEA
office premises Z S A

(b) The Group entered into the following related party
transaction with an associate:

Service expense for operation of B RS E 5K R IR R
waste-water treatment plant i
(note 32(g)) (HE=+=(g))
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) ST EHBEBAGCZEARRS (&)

(¢)  The Group entered into the following related party (c) AEEZGHEEIEZEHBA
transactions with the minority shareholders of non-wholly A2 DEPRERET L 5| BaHE
owned subsidiaries of the Group: AER 5

2005 2004
—EZREF —ETNF
$°000 $'000
F Fr
Waste-water treatment revenue TEIKEEUA

(note 32(g)) (Btat=+=(g9)) 52,423 =
Technical service expense F g AR 7% & 2,211 -

Operating lease charge in respect AR5 /KERIRRHE 2
of waste-water treatment facilities wEAEY N 959 =

(d) The Group entered into the following related party (d) REFETLHEEIEZENRBA
transactions with subsidiaries of a minority shareholder A2 VEIRER 2B AT
of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group: ST R REEE AR S

2005 2004
—ETHF ZETPNF
$°000 $'000
Fr Frr
- Fee paid/payable for work — WRBEIRZ - RER
performed in connection EEA R KRR
with the construction of & RIEE SRR IR R
waste-water treatment P17 .2 T32 1M
plant pursuant to an BN B

engineering, procurement
and construction contract
and a service contract 51,446 -

oo oa

= Purchase of equipment — BEREB 3,114 =

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) The Group paid key management personnel
compensation as follows:

Salaries and other short-term e R HAKEE
employee benefits BB R
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEI R

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 5(b)).
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) ST.EBEBACZEARS (&)
(f) Included in the balance sheets are the following balances f BEEEEAERANE T
with related parties: L BREE A (T2 AEA:
The Group The Company
5@ b NG|
2005 2004 2005 2004
“EZRE “ZIMF “ZZIF “ZTQEEF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fir Fr Fir
Amount due from minority FEW D ERER IR
shareholder (included in (BFEERURERR
debtors, other receivables, H i EIE
deposits and prepayments) &e REFFER) 4,595 = - =
Deposits placed with related TR B At iR1T
party bank (included in cash LEHR(BEERE
and cash equivalents) REEEENA) 27,394 49,003 (23,737) 288
Loans from ultimate holding RRERREER
company (535,628) (545,206) (440,480) (451,705)
Amount due to ultimate JER SRR A R
holding company IR - (9,186) - (8,559)
Amounts due to minority B PSR TR
shareholders (575) (7,962) - -
Amount due to minority FER DB FRIR
shareholder (included in (BEEENERER:
creditors, other payables H A fERTFIE R
and accrued expenses) EEERRN) (18,756) - - -
Amount due to associate B & R R 5R
(included in creditors, other (BEE MR
payables and accrued H At ERTFOE R
charges) BT ERR) (1,393) = - =
Amounts due to related JE R R B 5RIR
companies (included in (BT EMERR
creditors, other payables HiERHER
and accrued expenses) [EETERR) (32,012) - - =
(9)  During the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group (9) EHEZTTHF+-A=1
entered into certain continuing connected transactions. —BIEFE - REEFTLT
The Company’s independent non-executive directors B THBBER S ANAT
have reviewed these transactions. Details of which are 2B IEHITESEERAE
disclosed under the paragraph “Continuing connected AR BERXGHBEE
transactions” in the report of the directors. SWET [FHERERS]
EE R

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER



Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

33. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2005
not provided for in the financial statements were as

== RIE

(1) R-FBEFI=A=t-
B AR MR P R

follows: ZERESENT:
The Group The Company
rEE RAF

2005 2004 2005 2004
—EE2RE —TTNF C—BERE —"TTMOF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Contracted for BETA 289,081 235,630 27,564 58,480
Authorised but not contracted for EREERS 19,667 = = =
308,748 235,630 27,564 58,480

(b) At 31 December 2005, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

Within 1 year —FA
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFNA
After 5 years hFiE

The Group leases waste-water treatment facilities from a minority
shareholder under an operating lease. The lease runs for twenty
years, with an option to renew the lease for a further five years.
The Group also leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
two years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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(b) M- EZERF+_A=*+-—
B iRBETAIRRA L&
EFHBEMNNRERER

TRERAREIAT
The Group

TEE
2005 2004
—EERF —EEFNF
$°000 $'000
Fr T
1,341 287
3,836 165
13,427 =
18,604 452

AEERBEERER —BPHK
REESKEERE-E@HEER
-+ WAEBEEADF M
S AREBEREREHEHEES A
ME-BRAHE-—RNFTBHE—ZE
ME BY T EESAES



Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

34.

35.

36.

37.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2004, there were contingent liabilities in respect
of guarantees given to banks by the Company for end user
financing guarantees and undertakings executed by a disposed
associate to banks amounting to $745,000. Such contingent
liabilities were released as at 31 December 2005.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of assets pledged are set out in note 23. The aggregate
net book value of assets pledged amounted to approximately
$662,693,000 as at 31 December 2005 (2004: $300,607,000).

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified as a result
of the changes in accounting policies. Further details are
disclosed in note 2.

PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

At 31 December 2005, the directors consider the parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Guildford Limited
and China Everbright Holdings Company Limited, which are
incorporated in BVl and Hong Kong respectively. Neither of
them produces financial statements available for public use.

SO HEAERE

RZZETMF+_A=+—H 'K
AEE—RE LS E AR MRIT
BUBRKEAPRMERRBRESEM

MA AR TIREERATEAE 2B
BEAT45,000 RS HF 1
ZA=T—H hEIFAELE

fRBR o

TR EEEA
EEREEFRENME—1T="-
R-_ZETAF+-A=1+—H B
EMEECREFELBOR
662,693,0007T (ZZEZMF:
300,607,0007T) °

SR HEBREF
“?ﬁ?%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁg
MEM A - E— T FBRNME

——l_‘t-ﬁ/ EJ& X%Eﬂﬁ’l\\ﬁ

RZETRF+-_A=+—H &

REREE 2 AR MK TR
A" Bl AGuildford Limited K2/
BEAAREEBRAT HEDRIR
RERRHS REBTMAKL K
EHEERTEREABRARAL
ENFH -

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS SHA\EAHERBE-ZSZTHE+
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE “A=t—BLFEEZETH
FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31 B e R AE M2 IERT - SRl R =2
DECEMBER 2005 B E
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA REEMBHRETIEBRE  FES
has issued the following amendments, new standards and RIS E AWM MER] « ¥R
interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting N2 - 25 &5 - BFRAIRRER
period ending 31 December 2005 and which have not been HE-ZEERF+-_A=1T—Hz
adopted in these financial statements: SETHR AL - WEMBIRE

TMERAZEFER] - EH M2 -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BUATHERz#%
Mz et HEEXR
HKFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation of 1 January 2006
BB E AERIE 655 mineral resources —ZEERF-A—H
BEERMGEZ BT
HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining whether an arrangement 1 January 2006
BB E ERIREE 455 contains a lease ZEERF-A—H
BEX-RZHRLEEHE
HK(IFRIC) 5 Rights to interests arising from 1 January 2006
BB ERIREE LR decommissioning, restoration and ZEERF-A—H
environmental rehabilitation funds
RERRREE - BERRREERES
EE R
HK(IFRIC) 6 Liabilities arising from participating in 1 December 2005
BRI WS LERREENR a specific market — Waste electrical —EERFE+_A—H

and electronic equipment
ZHEFEMS BN RETFRERER
FRES BT
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R RM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2005 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19
BRI ERF195R 2 ER]

Employee benefits — Actuarial Gains
and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

SHNEAERBE—SSHF+
ZHA=t+—BLFEZEH
1] R A R 2 18 /] ~ #T 2RI K 52
BowEE @)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BUT RSz
Bth 2 St AR

1 January 2006
—EEAE-A—H

REEN - REEE - SEEIRNE

Financial instruments:

TRTH :

Amendments to HKAS 39
ARSI ERIZE395R 2 ER]

Recognition and measurement:

BRRIE

- Cash flow hedge accounting of

1 January 2006

forecast intragroup transactions —ETRFE—H—H

B EEARRZZHERE

HmgEHA

- The fair value option

RNEEETR

— Financial guarantee contracts

B HEIR
G4 —ETRF—-HA—H
Amendments, as a ZEERFHEBAA
consequence of the (E&]) &bl 2
Hong Kong Companies CHEEEE
(Amendment) Ordinance
2005, to:
— HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements
BB ERFE15R IR 2 2
— HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements
BB GTERIFE275R fre KB B TSR
— HKFRS 3 Business combinations

FRMT RS ERE 35 XBadt

1 January 2006
—EERF—H—H
1 January 2006

1 January 2006
—EERF-H—H
1 January 2006
—EERF-H—H
1 January 2006
—EEAF-A—H

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS SHAEAERBE_ZZTHF+

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2005 (continued)

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosures
BB mEERETH SRTAE : #E

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements:
BB GTHERIE 1R 2 (EF] capital disclosures

MBHREZ2H - ENRE

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies (Amendment) Ordinance
2005 came into effect on 1 December 2005 and would be first
applicable to the Group’s financial statements for the period
beginning 1 January 2006.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether these
amendments, new standards and interpretations would have a
significant impact on its results of operations and financial
position.
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ZHA=t+—BLFEZEFH
1] R AE Rz 18 /] ~ #T 22 R K 52
Bzugesd (@)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BUT RSz
Bz EH RN

1 January 2007
—TTtLF—A—H

1 January 2007
—BTLE—A—A

IEoN - K ZZEZRFRABRF (1B
1) &) ERZZEERE T A
—BAER  AEERBR-_ZTTRF
—A—REFEZHBEHRRAXSL
ERANLL IR P o

AEBEFEZFER] - FEAR
MnBEEERRRELCTE
He B AT RBEHEE X FER] » #TER|
KB e R UKL XA RIIK
RABREATE -



Five Year Summary

AEZGENE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB E)

Assets and liabilities BERERE

Fixed assets ETEE

Intangible assets RV EE

Goodwil mE

Interest in associates BANAIRES

Interest in jointly controlled BERAER
entity

Other financial assets HhiiEE

Deferred tax assets BEREEE

Net current assets/(liabilities) TBEE/ (BF)FE

Non-current liabilities E e =N

NET ASSETS FAE

Share capital RA

Reserves M

Total equity attributable to NG
equity shareholders [Efh R 2
of the Company

Minority interests PERRER

TOTAL EQUITY ERfs

At 31 December

Rt=A=1-H

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
—EERE “EEQNE “EE=F “2%°F 2%
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
1 Fr 1 o Fr
1,501,291 888,392 878,121 562,084 583,752
34,433 = = = =
48,236 45,453 26,715 = =
413,304 435,479 928,408 904,934 852,241
- = = 523,585 524,602

51,931 46,462 46,462 81,300 92,702
16,832 = = = =
331,534 546,402 33,080 (248,177) (297,117)
2,397,561 1,962,188 1,912,786 1823726 1,756,180
(1,128,376) (880,052) (912,390) (870,736) (802,741)
1,269,185 1,082,136 1,000,396 952,990 953,439
255,181 254,881 254,831 254,831 254,831
921,676 824,061 745,565 691,270 691715
1,176,857 1,078,942 1,000,396 946,101 946,546
92,328 3,194 = 6,839 6,893
1,269,185 1,082,136 1,000,396 952,990 953,439

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that
are effective or available for early adoption for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005. Information on the changes in
accounting polices resulting from initial application of these new and
revised HKFRSs is provided in note 2 to the financial statements.
Figures for 2004 and 2005 have been adjusted for these new and
revised policies in accordance with the transitional provisions and as
disclosed in note 2. Earlier years have only been restated to the extent
that the new accounting policies are adopted retrospectively as

disclosed in note 2.

BR B AGRM T IR REER]
ZEBMBRELA -FHENS —FTTAH
F—A—BRARFEBZ ST BE ARk
LR RTER A - B R % F R ] A
BRI 2 BEARH B MEERMER SRR
B8 ERENUBREME— —TTM
FR_TERFZEFERRBEMRIZ
M EEZ S LB BRF
B WO AEMTE-—HE-ABRRFEZHF
ME RBESREEPRABZETHR (R
M=) ZBF e TIAER

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Five Year Summary

AERGEME

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BLB%E)

Results

Turnover

Profit/(loss) from operations
Finance costs
Share of profits less
losses of associates
Gain on disposal of associate
Write back of interest
in associate
Share of profit of jointly
controlled entity
Gain on sale of

discontinued operation

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders
of the Company

Minority interests

Profit/(loss) for the year

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

S
fmeril/ (Bi)

B ER
Mk RRIZN

HERIHBEERE

BHAAN/ (BR)

HE

AEERN/ (B])

FefEE(n:
ARFRR

AEREN/ (BR)

BREREHN/ (BR)

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-RLEE
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
—EERE “EENE “%%= S k2 ZET-F
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr r
133,823 65,244 83,613 261,049 296,358
73,021 28,322 (41,237) (25,420) (55,325)
(32,090) (27,614) (31,374) (64,612) (91,514)
68,045 85,182 83,233 90,826 (40,466)
- - - - 123,028
- - - - 36,927
- - 31,982 2,132 11,276
- - 19,576 - -
108,976 85,890 62,180 2,926 (16,074)
11,868 328 (4512) (974) 6,085
120,844 86,218 57,668 1952 (9,989)
105,330 86,776 56,837 1,009 (6,111)
15,514 (558) 831 943 (3,878)
120,844 86,218 57,668 1952 (9,989)
4.13 centsfll 3.41 centsfll 2.23 centsfll 0.04 centfll (0.24) centll
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Major Properties held by the Group
FEEFMBEZEEYE

As at 31 December 2005
R-ZEZEHEF+=-A=1+—H

Location Existing use
3 B REFAR
1. 8th Floor Commercial
Tower | (EES

Lippo Centre
89 Queensway
Hong Kong
BB

SEBE/\ TR
HEH L
—BN\E

2. Units 2703 and 2704, 27th Floor Commercial
Far East Finance Centre [EES
16 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong
EBERE TR
ERETRP O
TR CATOE

8, Flat A on 22nd Floor Residential
Good View Court =
21 Robinson Road
Mid-Levels
Hong Kong
HBFLE
BERE—T—%
FREZ T ZEARE

4, Units 3 and 4, 11th Floor Residential
Qingsong South Lane F=
Dalian Development Zone
the PRC
PREAERERELREE
+T—RB=KIET

Term of lease

HEFH

Long
RHEIE

Medium

R

Long
REIE

Medium

A

Percentage
of interest
FritERB DL

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Major Properties held by the Group
FEEFMBEZEEYE

As at 31 December 2005
R-ZEZEHEF+=-HA=1+—H

Location

i B

Shop Units at Sections 1 & 3 of
Lower Ground Floor and on
Levels 1 & 2, Office Units

on Level 3 of the commercial
podium, Zhongshan Garden
Shenzhen

Guangdong Province, the PRC
PEERE

RYITH R ILTEE
HAEREHTE—E

E—abMp RE=EH
F-ERFE_[ENHE

EA /N

Room 1301-1309

Central Business Building

No. 88 Fuhua Road One

Futian District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC
mEERE AT REAR
RE—BN\T/URPLEBARE

—Z2-E-=TNE

24th Floor

Tower of Education, Science

& Technology Buildling

Zhuzilin, Futian District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC

B ERE R
RERTFM®
HERMBAREZ_TME

Existing use
BRAR

Commercial

GES

Commercial

EES

Commercial

EES
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Term of lease

HEFH

Medium

R

Medium

R

Medium

ool

Percentage
of interest
FritERB DL

100%

100%

100%



